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Purpose:
The Finance Committee is responsible for:

1. Monitoring Council’s financial strategy, and financial performance against the Long Term Plan and
Annual Plan.

2. Determining financial matters within its delegations and Terms of Reference and making
recommendations to Council on financial matters outside its authority.

In addition to the common delegations, the Finance Committee is delegated the following Terms of
Reference and powers:

Terms of Reference:

1. To provide direction on Council’s financial strategy and monitor performance against that strategy.

2. To monitor Council’s financial performance against the Council’s 10 Year Plan and the impact of the
financial performance on services levels and rate payers’ value.

3. To monitor deferred capital expenditure.

4. To develop and monitor policy related to the following matters:
a) financial management;
b) revenue generation; and
¢) procurement and tendering.

5. To monitor the probity of processes relating to policies developed by the Finance Committee.

The Committee is delegated the following powers to act:

e Approval of operating expenditure within the Long Term Plan or Annual Plan that exceeds the Chief
Executive’s delegation, excluding expenditure which:

] contravenes the Council’s Financial Strategy; or

= significantly alters any level of service outlined in the applicable Long Term Plan or
Annual Plan; or

] impacts Council policy or practice, in which case the delegation is recommendatory
only and the Committee may make a recommendation to the Council for approval.

e Approval of contractual and other arrangements for supply and services, and revenue generating
contracts, which:

o exceed the Chief Executive’s delegations, but

o exclude contracts or arrangements that are reserved for the Council or another
Committee’s approval.

e Approval to write-off outstanding accounts greater than $10,000 (in accordance with the Debtor
Management Policy).

The Committee is delegated the following recommendatory powers:

e To set the direction of Council’s Financial Strategy.
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e The Committee may make recommendations to Council.
e The Committee may make recommendations to other Committees.

Recommendatory Oversight of Policies and Bylaws:

e funding Needs Analysis Policy

e Investment and Liability Management Policy
e Rates Remissions and Postponements Policy
e Rating Policy

e Revenue and Financing Policy
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1 Apologies — Tono aroha

2 Confirmation of Agenda — Whakatau raarangi take
The Committee to confirm the agenda.

3 Declaration of Interest — Tauaakii whaipaanga
Members are reminded of the need to be vigilant to stand aside from decision making when a
conflict arises between their role as an elected representative and any private or other external
interest they might have.

4 Public Forum — Aatea koorero
As per Hamilton City Council’s Standing Orders, a period of up to 30 minutes has been set aside for
a public forum. Each speaker during the public forum section of this meeting may speak for five
minutes or longer at the discretion of the Chair.

Please note that the public forum is to be confined to those items falling within the terms of the
reference of this meeting.

Speakers will be put on a Public Forum speaking list on a first come first served basis in the Council
Chamber prior to the start of the Meeting. A member of the Council Governance Team will be

available to co-ordinate this. As many speakers as possible will be heard within the allocated time.

If you have any questions regarding Public Forum please contact Governance by telephoning 07
838 6727.
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Council Report

Commiittee:
Author:

Position:

Finance Committee Date: 05 October 2021
Narelle Waite Authoriser: Becca Brooke
Governance Advisor Position: Governance Manager

Report Name: Confirmation of the Finance Committee Open Minutes of 24 August 2021

Report Status

Open

Staff Recommendation - Tuutohu-aa-kaimahi

That the Finance Committee confirm the Open Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting held on
24 August 2021 as a true and correct record.

Attachments - Ngaa taapirihanga

Attachment 1 - Finance Committee Open Unconfirmed Minutes 24 August 2021
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b Hamilton

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa

Finance Committee

Komiti Tahua
OPEN MINUTES

Minutes of a meeting of the Finance Committee held via audio-visual link on Tuesday 24 August 2021 at
10.31am.

PRESENT

Chairperson Cr R Pascoe
Heamana
Deputy Chairperson  Cr M van Oosten
Heamana Tuarua
Members Deputy Mayor G Taylor
Cr M Bunting
Cr M Gallagher
Cr R Hamilton
Cr K Naidoo-Rauf
Cr A O’Leary
Cr S Thomson
Cr E Wilson
Cr D Macpherson

In Attendance: David Bryant — General Manager People and Organisational Performance
Lance Vervoort — General Manager Community
Eeva-Liisa Wright — General Manager Infrastructure Operations
Chris Allan — General Manager Development
Sean Murray — General Manager Tourism, Venues and Major Events
Tracey Musty — Financial Controller
lain Anderson — Capital Projects
Chris Barton — Capital Projects Manager
Maire Porter — Director Strategic Water Operations
Cory Lang — Building Control Manager

Governance Staff: Becca Brooke — Governance Manager
Carmen Fortin and Narelle Waite — Governance Advisors

1. Apologies - Tono aroha

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr Wilson)

That the apologies for partial attendance from Cr Naidoo-Rauf are accepted.
2. Confirmation of Agenda — Whakatau raarangi take

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr Wilson)
That the agenda is confirmed.
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Declarations of Interest - Tauaakii whaipaanga
No members of the Council declared a Conflict of Interest.

Public Forum - Aatea koorero

Bruce Clarkson spoke to Item 11 (Zoo Waiwhakareke Entry Precinct Stage 1B - Project Funding
Options) noting his role as Chair of the Waiwhakareke Advisory Group, his support of the project,
the efforts made by staff to secure external funding, community expectations, and the Zoo’s capital
revenue targets.

Confirmation of the Finance Committee Open Minutes of 15 June 2021

Resolved: (Cr Bunting/Cr van Oosten)

That the Finance Committee confirm the Open Minutes of the Finance Committee Meeting held
on 15 June 2021 as a true and correct record.

Chair's Report

The Chair introduced his report noting his focus on the financial aspects of the Three Waters
reform. He responded to questions from Members concerning public engagement opportunities,
governance structure and ownership of assets.

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr Wilson)

That the Finance Committee receives the report.

Capital Portfolio Monitoring Report

The Capital Projects Manager introduced the report noting key capital works project achievements
in the past three years and presented a video highlighting this work. The Capital Financial Lead
outlined the report noting the report covers the draft annual results, asset investment increase,
project deferrals, savings, Work in Progress, capitalisation delays and depreciation impact,
outstanding project risks, Waka Kotahi funding expectations, expected variation claims concerning
the Covid-19 level 4 lockdown. They responded to questions from Members concerning the
Ruakura Road project and traffic management, external funding sources, financial risks of project
deferrals and cost escalation, development contributions, and revenue loss off-set.

Staff Action: Staff undertook to provide Members with a breakdown of project funding from
external sources.

Staff Action: Staff undertook to provide Members with financial information concerning a land
purchase for green space in Rototuna.

Staff Action: Staff undertook to report back to Members on opportunities to request additional
Waka Kotahi funding in recognition of cost escalation.

Resolved: (Cr Hamilton/Deputy Mayor Taylor)
That the Finance Committee receives the report.
The meeting was adjourned from 11.51am to 11.12pm

Apologies - Tono aroha (Continued)

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr van Oosten)
That the apologies for absence from Mayor Southgate are accepted.
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11.

Annual Monitoring Report to 30 June 2021

The Financial Controller introduced the report noting that the draft year-end results are subject to
change prior to release in the Annual Report, favourable variants in the accounting result
concerning revaluations, fees and charges, capital revenue, the variants contribution to a
favourable result in balancing the books, and personnel costs unfavourable to budget. She
responded to questions from Members concerning personnel costs and capacity to deliver the
work programme.

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr Wilson)

That the Finance Committee receives the report.

Financial Strategy Monitoring Report - Recommendation to the Council

The Financial Controller spoke to the report noting the balancing of the books, conservative
budget and delivery of final audited results.

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr van Oosten)

That the Finance Committee receives the report.

That the Finance Committee recommends that the Council:

a) approves the capital movement as identified in paragraph 30 of the 24 August 2021 Capital
Portfolio Monitoring Report;

b) approves the significant forecast adjustments as set out in paragraphs 19 and 20 of this
report; and

c) approves the revised Financial Strategy position for Debt to Revenue, Net Debt and Balancing
the Books as set out in paragraphs 22 to 24 of this report.

Weathertight Annual Update

The Building Control Manager spoke to the changes to the reporting format and differences
between weathertight and defect claims, and Hamilton City Council’s comparison to other metro
Councils. He responded to questions from Members concerning budgeting and risk of industry cost
increases.

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr Hamilton)

That the Finance Committee receives the report.

Zoo Waiwhakareke Entry Precinct Stage 1B - Project Funding Options

The General Manager Community outlined the report and provided a presentation detailing the
project stages and the efforts to secure funding for the project. He responded to questions from
Members concerning reasons given for funding rejections, project types that succeed at securing
funding, and Council mitigation plans for funding shortfalls.

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr Bunting)

That the Finance Committee:

a) receives the report;

b) approves the completion of the full scope of Zoo Waiwhakareke Entry Precinct stage 1B as set
out in the staff report;
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c) approves a reduction in expected external revenue for stage 1B of $1,170,000 in 2021/2022;
and

d) notes that the corresponding external revenue expectation of $1,170,000 will be planned for
the zoo animal enclosure in 2026/2027.

12. Resolution to Exclude the Public

Resolved: (Cr Pascoe/Cr van Oosten)
Section 48, Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987

The following motion is submitted for consideration:

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting, namely
consideration of the public excluded agenda.

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for
passing this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of
the Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this
resolution follows.

General subject of each Reasons for passing this Ground(s) under section

matter to be considered resolution in relation to each 48(1) for the passing of this
matter resolution
C1. Confirmation of the ) Good reason to withhold Section 48(1)(a)
Finance Committee ) information exists under
Public Excluded Minutes ) Section 7 Local Government
of 15 June 2021 ) Official Information and

) Meetings Act 1987
)

C2. Report on overdue
debtors as at 30 June
2021 and Debt write-offs
2020/21

C3. Rototuna Village -
Construction Contract
Award Delegations

C4. Renewal of Natural Gas
Contract

C5. Information Services -
Adobe and Datacom
Contract Renewals

C6. Information Services -
Microsoft and Cisco
Security Contract
Renewals

C7. Information Service
Contract - Houston
Productivity Solutions Ltd

This resolution is made in reliance on section 48(1)(a) of the Local Government Official
Information and Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6
or Section 7 of that Act which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of
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the proceedings of the meeting in public, as follows:

Item C1.

Item C2.

Item C3.

Item C4.

Item C5.

Item C6.
Item C7.

to prevent the disclosure or use of official
information for improper gain or improper
advantage

to protect the privacy of natural persons

to maintain the effective conduct of public
affairs through protecting persons from
improper pressure or harassment

to enable Council to carry out commercial
activities without disadvantage

to enable Council to carry out negotiations
to enable Council to carry out commercial
activities without disadvantage

to prevent the disclosure or use of official
information for improper gain or improper
advantage

to enable Council to carry out negotiations
to enable Council to carry out negotiations
to enable Council to carry out negotiations

Section 7 (2) (j)

Section 7 (2) (a)
Section 7 (2) (f) (ii)

Section 7 (2) (h)
Section 7 (2) (i)

Section 7 (2) (h)
Section 7 (2) (j)

Section 7 (2) (i)
Section 7 (2) (i)
Section 7 (2) (i)

The meeting went into Public Excluded session at 1.09pm.

The meeting was declared closed at 3.07pm.
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Council Report

Commiittee: Finance Committee Date: 05 October 2021
Author: Narelle Waite Authoriser: Becca Brooke
Position: Governance Advisor Position: Governance Manager

Report Name: Chair's Report

Report Status Open

Recommendation - Tuutohu

That the Finance Committee receives the report.

Attachments - Ngaa taapirihanga

Attachment 1 - Chair's Report - Finance Committee Meeting - 5 October 2021
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Chair’s Report

The Chair of the Finance Committee will present a verbal update at the Finance Committee
meeting on matters including:

i. the Annual Plan;

ii. Three Waters Reform; and

iii. other timely updates concerning the Finance Committee.

Recommendation:
That the Finance Committee receives the verbal report.

Cr Rob Pascoe
Chair Finance Committee
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Council Report

Commiittee: Finance Committee Date: 05 October 2021
Author: lain Anderson Authoriser: Chris Allen
Position: Capital Financial Lead Position: General Manager

Development

Report Name: Capital Portfolio Monitoring Report

Report Status Open

Purpose - Take

1. To inform the Finance Committee on the financial performance of the capital portfolio for the
two months ended 31 August 2021.

Staff Recommendation - Tuutohu-aa-kaimahi

2. That the Finance Committee receives the report.

Executive Summary - Whakaraapopototanga matua

3. This report is to be read in conjunction with the Financial Performance and Strategy Report to
30 August 2021.

4, This is the first year of the 2021-31 Long Term Plan (LTP). For 2021-22 the total approved
capital expenditure budget is $380.1m, inclusive of deferrals approved from prior years. The
approved capital revenue is $96.5m inclusive of prior year deferrals and recommended
forecast changes.

5. The total capital expenditure for the two months ended 31 August 2021 is $32.2m, while the
associated capital revenue for the same period is $9.5m.

6. No deferrals have been identified as at 31 August 2021. As the year progresses and deferrals
and brought forward are identified these will be reported to the Committee.

7. There is one change being reported in capital revenue.

8. Capital work in progress (WIP) is $474.2m, within this amount is $49.2m of assets that are in
service but have not yet been capitalised. To negate the impact on the operating result an
estimate of the depreciation amount and been made and is reflected in the Annual Monitoring
Report 31 August 2021.

9. Four projects across the portfolio have been flagged as having a risk(s) that is being brought to
the attention of the Finance Committee. Two are classified as significant and will require a
Council decision (Red), and the two are significant and are being monitored (Orange).

10. There are three portfolio risks, two were identified in the previous report and one is new,
these are:

i. shortage and cost escalation of construction materials;
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ii. Waka Kotahi NZTA funding in the 2021-24 National Land Transport Programme;
and

iii. increase in costs due to COVID lockdown.

11. Staff consider the matters to be of low significance and that the recommendations comply
with Council’s legal requirements.

Discussion - Matapaki
Programme Summary and Significant Highlights
12. The following definitions are relevant:

i. Portfolio: refers to the total organisational capital work budget for 2020-21. As per the
approved 2021-31 LTP the portfolio is $328.7m. This is subsequently modified through
the Forecast, including deferrals from prior years;

ii. Programme: refers to the nine programmes that are referred to in this report, which
when added together equal the portfolio; and

iii. Project: refers to the individual project under a particular programme. These projects
may have funding from multiple activities and occur across multiple years.

13. Attachment 1 is a summary table of the full 2021-31 LTP Capital programme, including both
expenditure and revenue. It is presented using the nine programmes to ensure consistency in
reporting. Note for external reporting we use the 12 Activities

14. Attachment 2 contains an overview of the nine programmes. Since the previous LTP a new
programme summary has been included for the Central City. Each overview contains a
summary of the key achievements and a graphical representation of the financial performance.
The nine programmes are:

=

Central City

N

City Wide Community,

w

City Wide Waters,

N

Peacocke,

A U

Rototuna,

~N

Ruakura,

00

)

)

)

)

) Rotokauri,
)

)

) Transport Improvement, and
)

9 Renewal and Compliance.

Capital Expenditure Forecast Groups

15. For the purposes of this Capital Portfolio Monitoring report, there are three main types of
capital budget movement that will impact on the forecasted total spend for this financial year.
They are:

i. Deferrals and Brought Forwards: These are approved budgets where a timing change
has been identified. The timing change is either, a deferral, where the budget is moved
out to a future year or a brought forward where the future budget is brought forward to
the current year.
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ii. Capital Savings: these are permanent reductions in the budget. The savings are tied
back to the Organisation savings targets established through the 2021-31 LTP; and

iii. Other Changes: these are new budgets that either did not previously exist or is an
amendment to an existing approved budget.

16. These three types apply to all programmes except the Renewals and Compliance Programme.
This programme is managed as whole over the first 3 years (see paragraph 17).

Looking Forward - The next Three Years

20. The 2021-31 LTP first 3 years has a total capital expenditure programme of $922.9m. In the
previous LTP the first 3 years had a budget of $740.2m. This continues to reflect both the
significant growth the city is responding to and the need to renew/replace our existing assets.

Renewals and Compliance

17. This programme has been managed as a 3-year programme. This has proven to be successful in
managing the renewals programme across a large and diverse range of assets. It has also
allowed new projects to be accommodated within the financial envelope.

18. The approved budget from the 2021-31 LTP is $235.3m, there is $25.4m in associated capital
revenue. Once deferrals for the prior years are included the total budget increases to $247.7m
Capital Expenditure and Revenue Actual

19. The actual capital expenditure for the two months ended 31 August 2021 is $32.2m [$32.7m].
The amount in the brackets is the comparative from the previous financial year.

20. The actual capital revenue for the two months ended 31 August 2021 is $9.5m [$7.9m]. The
amount in the brackets is the comparative from the previous financial year.

Capital Forecast

21. This section includes changes that are being recommended to the Approved 2021-31 LTP.
Changes in this section are classified in the three groups described in para 16.

22.  Afull 2021-31 LTP budget table has been included in Attachment 1. This includes both the
expenditure and capital revenue. It is presented at the nine programme level.

23. The changes that included here are reflected in the Financial Strategy results published in the
Financial Performance and Strategy Report.

24. The following table starts with the budget as per 2021-31 LTP and then shows the additional
movements through each change class.

Expenditure in 000°s As at 1 July As at 31 August

Approved Budget as at 1 July 2021 328,668 380,132
Deferrals & b/fwds 51,463 0
Savings 0 0
Changes 0

0
Closing Expenditure Budget (Forecast) 380,132 380,132
Revenue in 000°s Jul-21 Aug-21

Approved Budget as at 1 July 2021 101,588 97,698
Deferrals & b/fwds (3,890) 0
Savings 0 0
Changes 0 (1,170)

Closing Revenue Budget (Forecast) 97,698 96,528
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Capital Deferrals
25.  As at 31 August no deferrals or brought forwards have been identified.

26. The deferrals approved from prior years have been bought in and are reflected in the 1 July
2021 opening forecast.

27.  For future Monitoring reports as deferrals and brought forwards are identified these will be
reported through a detailed attachment. This will track not only the current financial year but
also be show the impact on the future financial years. This will give better visibility of the
impact on deliverability and the financial strategy.

Capital Savings

28.  Asat 31 August 2021 no capital savings have been identified.

Work in Progress (WIP)
29. The total value of WIP as at 30 June 2021 is $474.2m, inclusive of vested assets.
30. The breakdown by status is:

i. Current - $425.0 (89.6%): this is legitimate WIP and reflects the assets that cannot be
capitalised until they are complete and in use; and

ii. Outstanding $49.2m (10.4%): these are assets are in service, but the capitalisation
process has not yet been completed. This group is treated with priority. Depreciation is
applicable but not yet charged.

31. Asreported previously, WIP is simply an accounting disclosure of capital expenditure. It
reflects fixed assets that are not yet fully operational. Until they are complete and operational
the expenditure remains classified as WIP. However, once the asset is fully operational it is
required to be capitalised, it is at this point the depreciation begins.

32. Therefore, the focus is the WIP amount that is classified as outstanding. It is this balance that
continues to get priority to resolve. However, to ensure that we do not understate the amount
of depreciation an assessment has been made and recorded as an expense on the Statement
of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense.

33. Across organisational team is reviewing the current processes and implementing changes
required to get a sustainable solution.
Project Risks - update

34. Overall, four projects have been identified as having a significant risk profile. Two are classified
as Red and therefore will require a Council decision, while two are classified Orange meaning
they are being closely monitored and managed.

Walking and Cycling Bridge

35.  Financial risk. This project was budgeted with NZTA Waka Kotahi subsidy. This funding was not
approved through the National Land Transport Programme announcement. This a four-year
project starting in 2021/22, total value is $27.9m. Staff will now report back to Council as to
options.

Biking and Micro-mobility

36. Financial risk. This project was budgeted with NZTA Waka Kotahi subsidy. This funding was not
approved through the National Land Transport Programme announcement. While a 10-year
programme the total cost in the first 3 Years is $13.5m. Staff will now report back to Council as
to options.
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Te Awa Cycleway Extension

37. Timing risk. The project has an estimated completion date of December 2021 in accordance
with other sections of the overall Te Awa route. Construction is underway however delivery
timeframes are tight. Staff are working closely with the contractor to monitor progress and
regularly review forecast timeframes to completion.

Eastern Pathways — University Link

38. Financial risk. This project was budgeted with NZTA Waka Kotahi subsidy. Funding has been
approved for the pre-implementation phase but not the implementation phase.

Portfolio Risks

Shortage and cost escalation of construction materials

39. This risk was first reported to Finance Committee on the 24 August 2021. The risk described
continues to exist, to recap:

i potentially significant portfolio risk is emerging relating to construction material and
supply chain pressures. The risk is caused by both the national and international demand
for certain materials as well as significant delays and increased costs of international
freight. The risk consequences are project delays and escalating cost; and

ii. discussions with our contractors indicate recent shortages and/or significant cost
escalations for certain products such as steel, concrete, pipes, fittings, bitumen, and
glass to name a few.

40. Itis very likely this risk will put pressure on budget adequacy to deliver projects over the next
few years.

41. Staff are continuing to monitor this risk carefully in conjunction with construction industry
skills and labour shortages. As the risk will potentially extend beyond the Capital programme
the work is being done in conjunction with the Finance Unit to ensure the full impacts are
considered.

42.  While this risk is further dimensioned, risk analysis on each project around supply issues prior
to committing to physical works procurement and contracts will be undertaken.

43.  We will report this to the December 2021 Finance Committee meeting.

Confirmation of Waka Kotahi NZTA funding in the 2021-24 National Land Transport Programme

44. Waka Kotahi NZTA published the approved National Land Transport Programme on 7% of
September 2021. This programme confirmed the amount of subsidy that HCC is likely to
receive in the next 3 years.

45.  As has been reported the outcome was much better than previously messaged by Waka Kothi
but still below the budgeted expenditure.

46. A high-level summary shows, the amount of subsidy we will not receive in the 3 years is
approximately $24.5m and over the 3-year period is s spread $3.3m, $5.5m and $15.7m.

47. The key capital projects affected are:
i Rotokauri Arterial further Designation;
ii. Boundary Heaphy Intersection Upgrade;
iii. Biking and Micro mobility — implementation;
iv. CDB River Cycling Bridge — business case, pre implementation and
implementation;
V. Eastern Pathways - University Link — implementation; and
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vi. Norton/Seddon roundabout — business case, pre implementation and
implementation.

48. Now that we have certainty the immediate focus was on the impact on the 2021-31 LTP
financial strategy. Using the confirmed NLTP data and comparing to the amount allowed within
the 2021-31 LTP staff modelled a simple worst-case scenario where this revenue was deleted
but the programme of work was retained. In other the projects are still undertaken but fully
funded by Council. This modelling demonstrated that this could be achieved without a breach
in the financial strategy across the 10-year period.

49. The next step is for staff to report back to the Infrastructure Operation Committee to seek
direction on the precise response to those projects where the subsidy has not been approved.
Once this is known then this will be formally modelled and reported back to the Finance
Committee as part of the Financial Performance and Strategy Report.

COVID Contract Claims

50. The country was subject to a nationwide lockdown during August 2021 this lockdown
continued through into September 2021. For some projects Council is subject to cost claims
under the terms of the contracts. Due to commercial sensitivities this will be covered in the
Public Excluded section of this Finance Committee meeting.

Legal and Policy Considerations - Whaiwhakaaro-aa-ture

51. Staff confirm that matters and recommendations within this report comply with Council’s legal
and policy requirements.

Wellbeing Considerations - Whaiwhakaaro-aa-oranga tonutanga

52. The purpose of Local Government changed on the 14 May 2019 to include promotion of the
social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of communities in the present and for
the future (‘the 4 well-beings’).

53. The subject matter of this report has been evaluated in terms of the 4 well-beings during the
process of developing this report as outlined below.

54. The recommendations set out in this report are consistent with that purpose.
Social

55. Work is currently underway to understand social procurement opportunities across our
portfolio, which involves enhanced recognition and valuing of social benefits through
particularly our selection of contractors.

Economic

56. Delivery of our capital works portfolio is required for the city to continue to grow and generate
employment and wealth.

Environmental

57. Across the capital portfolio, environmental consideration is integrated throughout the project
life cycle, including through design, procurement and construction.

58. Inthe procurement phase all physical works contracts include a component to incorporate
environmental and sustainability considerations into tender evaluation, where contractor
initiatives such as materials reuse, energy requirements, electric vehicle utilisation, carbon
offsets etc. can be valued.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN Page 19 of 176

ltem 7



L W3]

59. Across the portfolio several works projects and programmes are specifically focussed on
enhancing Hamilton’s natural environment or ensuring effects of city development are not at
the detriment of the natural environment.

Cultural

60. Across the portfolio, engagement and partnership with iwi is continuing at a project level, and
work is underway to further align and partner at programme and portfolio levels to identify
opportunities for enhanced partnership and shared outcomes. This is particularly in regard to
alignment with objectives of the Waikato Tainui Environmental Plan — Tai Tumu Tai Pari Tai Ao.

Risks - Tuuraru

61. There are no known risks associated with the recommendations in this report.

Significance & Engagement Policy - Kaupapa here whakahira/anganui
Significance

62. Staff have considered the key considerations under the Significance and Engagement Policy
and have assessed the matters and recommendations in this report have a low level of
significance.

Engagement

63. Community views and preferences are already known to the Council through the 2018-28 10-
Year Plan and 2019-20 Annual Plan.

64. Given the low level of significance determined, the engagement level is low, and no further
engagement is required.

Attachments - Ngaa taapirihanga
Attachment 1 - 2021-31 LTP Capital Budget

Attachment 2 - Nine Programme Summaries
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2021-31 Long Term Plan

Capital Expenditure and associated Revenue

(000's)

Row Labels 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2023/25 2025/26 2026/27 2027/28 2028/29 2029/30 2030/31

Capex
City Wide Community Programme $ 12408 $ 28710 § 14260 % 6,056 $ 4,944 § 10,167 $ 16016 $ 5609 $ 597 § 4,824
City Wide Transport Programme $ 50276 $ 16228 § 54,775 § 43,007 § 18254 § 21,897 § 24810 $ 22302 $ 2,92 § 24,815
City Wide Waters Programme $ 37,046 § 36,058 § 10163 ¢ 23231 § 38720 $ 2239 § 38468 & 41482 § 65,014 $ 53,371
Peacocke Programme $ 78387 $ 98442 § 67,885 $ 29912 § 10,824 $ 6300 $ 2574 § 12,938 $ 28216 $ 26,207
Renewals & Compliance Programme $ 76,608 $ 79470 § 79264 ¢ 87,190 $ 89,662 $ 92,882 ¢ 101,876 $ 104582 § 106843 $ 111,166
Rotokauri Programme s 9,072 $ 2737 8562 ¢ 74 3 -8 -8 1086 $ 22,69 $ 29,06 $ 27,564
Rototuna Programme $ 19879 § 13082 ¢ 11203 % 5196 $ 5031 $ 719 § 77§ 6,558 & 11,413 § 15,052
Ruakura Programme $ 13,092 $ 2,889 § 265 § -8 225 § 752§ 1,069 § 27,036 § 28,006 $ 25,651
Subregional Programme S 1,000 S 6,695 §$ 1,591 S - S - S - S - S - $ - S -
Te Rapa North Programme S - S - S - S - $ - $ - S 432 & 5,858 § 13,380 § 211

S 328,668 S 316,310 $ 277,969 S 194,787 S 168,560 $ 158,111 $ 191,368 § 249,061 $ 306,805 $ 288,862

Revenue
City Wide Community Programme $ 1,835 § 3,752 § 182 $ 628 $ 647 % 260 $ 19 $ 522§ 917 $ 1,332
City Wide Transport Programme $ 24258 § 20545 § 29498 ¢ 24,108 $ 9,184 $ 12,568 $ 12520 11,237 $ 11,549 $ 12,511
City Wide Waters Programme $ 150 $ 155 ¢ 159 $ 164 $ 169 $ 174 179 § 18 $ 190 $ 195
Peacocke Programme $ 29,012 § 34,316 § 8,390 $ 5,519 § 519 § 433§ 83 § 572§ 35 § -
Renewals & Compliance Programme S 8246 S 7,715 § 9475 $ 7,637 S 7,999 $ 8,097 S 8231 § 8435 S 9,663 S 9,970
Rotokauri Programme $ - s - 8 297 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
Rototuna Programme H 4,000 S 4,119 § 1,379 $ - s - H - S - s - S - s -
Ruakura Programme $ 34,087 S 1,059 $ - $ - $ - $ 381 S 423§ 13,788 $ 14,154 $ 13,082
Subregional Programme $ - S - S - S - $ - $ - S - S - $ - $ -
Te Rapa North Programme S - S - S - S - S - S - S - S - $ - S -

s 101588 § 71661 & 19,679 & 38057 § 18518 § 21916 § 21,585 & 34,738 § 36,508 & 37,000
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CITY WIDE COMMUNITY
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

PROGRAMME UPDATE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Whakapai atu te mauri o ngaa waahi taangata me ngaa waahi wairua auaha
. . . . 2021/22 Performance
Improving the vibrancy of our social and creative spaces

Through delivering the Community pregramme, we are investing in places and spaces across our city, that can be enjoyed by all .
Hamiltonians and the people who visit us here. The outcome will be a city that’s easy to live in and a fun city with lots to do. 350 M
The key goals for the 3 year capital programme are: s40 M
Completion of the Zoo Waiwhakareke Entry Precinctincluding:

¢ Stage 1A (Zoo entry building and Waiwhakareke connections) oM

s Stage 1B (Viewing Tower, Rongoa Walkway and Walkway Canopy) $20 M

* Stage 2 includes carparks for the Zoo and Waiwhakareke (bringing both sides of the precinct together with stormwater s

management and landscaping) and also includes the urbanisation of Brymer Road.

¢ Completion of the Savannah Accommodation project at the Zoo. SOM Aug | Sep | Oct | MNov | Dec | lan Feb = Mar | Apr  May | lun

==mForecasted Budget $1.9M $44M $13.0M 5166 M $20.3M $24.0 M $29.0M $32.7 M $36.4 M $42.4 M $47.6 M 5497 M
—pctuals S19M $44M

3 Year Forecasted Budget

* Completion of the following: 525M

* The ongoing development of the Hamilton Gardens including the Egyptian Garden, Palm Court, upgraded Visitor Arrival Centre
and design of the Medieval Garden.

* Covering of the Lido Pool.

* 9 new or upgraded playgrounds

¢ Sports park drainage and irrigation improvements at 3 parks o
¢ Sports park floodlighting and safety lighting improvements at 3 parks s15M
¢ Sports park toilet and changing room improvements at 3 parks
¢ Delivery of a purpose-built facility for Pukete Neighbourhood House to operate community outreach services. S10M
* Commence the construction of gully connections to enable deliver of the Nature in the City Strategy and Implementation Plan.
$5M
The key capital programme milestones for 2021/22 include: soM /— /- P
2021/22 2022423 202324
2021/22 Milestone Performance u Capex $217M $19.1M $10.7 M
Stage 1A and 1B Complete of Zoo Waikwhakareke Entry Precinct. Stage 2 construction started. @ On Track = fevenue 215 M —_ M 0sM
Zoo Savannah Accommodation feasibility study carried out. @ On Track
Egyptian Garden and Palm Court open. @ On Track
Hamilton Gardens Visitor Arrival Centre design complete. @ On Track
Feasibility and options study forthe Lido Pool Cover. @ On Track
Mahoe Park, Zoo and Melville Park playgrounds upgraded. @ On Track L el /Ry ¥ .
Drainage and Irrigation at Flagstaff and Swarbrick Parks. @ On Track I = || / / - Hamllton
Flood lighting and safety lighting at Korikori Park and Porritt Stadium. @ On Track Zoo/ ‘ - ' Cit CounCil
Toilet and changing room improvements at Deanwell Park. @ On Track Waiwhakareke y
Programme set up with scoping of works complete for Nature in the City. @ On Track Entrv Precinct Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
Pukete Neighbourhood House design complete @ On Track y
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Project Name Project Description

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

@ [ @ [ & [ @ [ a [ @ [ o] I T B TN

Forecast
Total Cost

Construction of a building or semi-permanent cover over the existing Lido pool
Lido Pool Cover at Waterworld to enable pool usage in winter while also enabling summer
open space swimming.

Building of a purpose built facility (attached to Te Rapa Sportsdrome) for
Pukete Neighbourhood House (PNH) to operate community outreach services.
This enables Te Rapa Sportsdrome to be fully utifised as @ indoor sporting
facility.

Pukete Neighbourhood House

The renewal and upgrade of playgrounds across the City. Budget shown
Play Spaces includes both playground upgrades and renewak. The budget shown is for
2021/22 to 2023/24.

$2.2M  $01M  $22M

These projects will deliver improvements to drainage, sports field surfaces and
flood lights to improve levek of service and increase capacity of Sports Parks.
The budget shown is for 2021/22 to 2023/24.

Sports Park Improvements $6.1M  SO.0M  $6.1M

Undertake ecological restoration and development in the city’s main gully
systems and enrichment planting, improved access paths and land aquisition in
Nature in the City selected Reserve. The restoration works include site preparation, native
vegetation planting and ongoing maintenance. Timeline to be developed
through the investigation phase.

$19.3M S0.0M  $19.3M

Hamilton Gardens Development - Egyptian

Garden and Palm Court $20M  $11M $2.0M

The completion of the Egyptian Garden and Palm Court.

Hamilton Gardens Development - Visitor Arrival ~ The extension of the visitor arrival and retail space as well as planning and

Centre enabling works for future developments $32M  S00M  $32M

Creating a shared entry precinct with Hamilton Zoo and Waiwhakareke
Natural Heritage Park. The project includes stage 1 (New Zoo Entry building
and connection to Waiwhakareke) and stage 2 { New visitor car parks and
Brymer Road urbanisation).

Zoo Waiwhakareke Entry Precinct $17.8M  $4.4M  $17.8M

This project will deliver an accommodation option based on a safari-style
experience overlooking the Savannah exhibit where the giraffes and zebras
gather. The project continues the redevelopment and revitalisation
programme identified in the Zoo's Master Plan. Year 1 funding is allocated for
afeasibility study to be undertaken.

Zoo Savannah - Accommodation $47M  S0.0M  $47M

Project status

Project has significant risks that will
require Council decision

Project has significant risks that are
being monitored and managed

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

CITY WIDE COMMUNITY
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

To be added for December Finance Committee.

Zoo/Waiwhakareke
Entry Precinct

Hamilton
City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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PROGRAMME UPDATE

To shape a central city where our people love to be

We recognise Hamilton's role as the civic, cultural and commercial heart of the Future Proof sub-region and the importance a
well-connected, vibrant Central City plays in this. Council is working to encourage more people to live, work and play in the central
city. Through delivering the Central City programme in alignment with the Central City Transformation Plan and the National Policy
Statement on Urban Development (NPS-UD), we are investing in our central city, opening it up to the Waikato River, encouraging

people to live and work here, and making it easy to access and move around in.

The key goals for the 3 year capital programme are:

» Aligning with the development of Regional Theatre to ensure connection between Victoria Street, the Theatre and the Waikato River

through the development of Embassy Park and the Sapper Moore-Jones and Victoria Street theatre access.

¢ The enhancement of the Ferrybank Park through the demolition of the municipal pool in readiness for site restoration and
interpretation

¢ The upgrade of the Founders Theatre site.
* Commence upgrades to Alexandra Street to align with the new design guidelines for the central city.

* Construction underway for the Walking and Cycling bridge across the Waikato River.
¢ Complete upgrade of the Tristram/Collingwood intersection.

¢ Updating of the front entrance of the Museum, including upgrading of the foyer.

¢ Deliver upgrades at Wellington Street Beach.

The key capital programme milestones for 2021/22 include:

2021/22 Milestone Perormance

On Track - This project is going to the Infrastructure

Tristram/Collingwood Intersection Upgrade complete. @  Operations Committee on 28 September to gain any

additional feedback and approval to proceed

Investigation, scope and design underway for:
® Embassy Park
® Sapper Moore-Jones and Victoria Street

On Track
® Alexandra Street ®
* Museum Road Entrance
* Wellington Street Beach
Municipal Pool demolition completed and site restoration
P P @ OnTrack

design underway.

Delivery programme and timing subject to further
A Council decisions following Wata Kotahi not
confirming funding.

Walking and Cycling Bridge Business Case and Funding
Strategy complete.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

CENTRAL CITY
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
S8 M

47 M
$6 M
45 M
$4M
$3Mm
$2M
1M

S0M

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec lan Feb Mar

Apr May Jun

===Forecasted Budget $0.0M $0.1M $19M $2.5M | $3.1M $37M $43M $50M $56M S62M $6.8M $7.4M

===Actuals

S00M S0.1M

3 Year Forecasted Budget

§25 M

$30M

S15M

S10M

S5 M

oM

W Capex
W Revenue

Central City
Jett

| E—
2021/22 2022/23
574M $22.7M
SL1IM $4.1M

9

2023/24

$16.3 M
$82 M

Hamilton
City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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CENTRAL CITY
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

Project Name Project Description

Total Project

Hamilton Central City Growth will be supported by incrensed walking and biking
connectivity, enhanced by new walking ond cycling infrostructure. The bridge wilt
support this o well as acting os o destination and centrepiece for wider riverside

developments and supporting the long-held desire tofoce the central ity towords the

river, Red os the defivery progromme ond timing is subject to futher Council decisions
following Wota Kotahi not canfirming funding.

Walking and Cyeling Bridge

$27.9M

To support the Waikato Regionsl Theatre development, we're making some
Embassy Park [River Plan South End Precinct) improvements to the public spaces in the area. This will create a better connection
between Victoria Street, the Theatre and the Waikato River.

$51M

To support the Waikoto Regiona! Theatre Development, we're moking some
Sapper Moore-Jones and Victoria St - Theatre  improvements to vehicle and pedestrion access to the area. These improvements will
Access & Pedestrian Environment make sure the spaces are safe and accessible to o wide range of users and moke it a
more enjoyable space to spend time in.

SL.OM

Develop Ward Street to be safefor people to move around. This is necessary to coter
fortheincreasing number of pedestrion and cyclists moving olong Ward Street and
surrounding areas. Timing of the construction will be confirmed through the
investigation phase.

Ward Street - Tristram to Anglesea $4.6M

Demolition of the pools in readiness for site restoration and interpretotion. The
Ferrybank Park Enhancement - Municipal Pool conversion of the site into o parkspace will reconnect the community to the river,
Site enhance our green spoce, and provide more spacefor play and recreation within the
centrof city.

$1.4M

The Founders Theatre site is o significant public green space in the centrol city.
West Town Belt Implementation - Founders Enhoncing centrad city green spoces is key to ottrocting residents to housing in the
Theatre Site Upgrade central city. The upgrode will create o better ploce for events, community activities
and recreotion for Hamiltanians.

$4.0M

To commence in the next 10 years, Alexandra Street will be transformed to ofign with
the new design guidelines for the central city. Upgrodes will result in o street that
celebrotes ploce ond safe movement of people. Alexandra Street upgrodes wilf
improve the central city walking and cycling experience, integrating movement and
o ploce to better reflect choracter and identity. Timing of the construction will be
confirmed through the investigation phose.

Alexandra Straet Upgrade $5.1 M

Upgrode the existing Tristram/Colli T hout in alignment with
Tristram/Collingwood Intersection Upgrade development of the new ACC building to defiver a safer, more efficient transport
networkfor all users.

83.2M

Upgrading Waikato Museum so itis fit for the future; through updating the front
Museum Road Entrance Upgrade entrance with oirlock doors and upgrading the fover to better maintoin and protect
art works and taongo we need to upgrade the rood entrance.

$2.8M

The upgrades at Welington Street Beach will add to the fiveliness and ottractiveness
of the bench as well os promoting the Maaori heritage and identity. Protecting the
waoter and soif quality oko protects notive vegetation ond strengthens the natura!
environment olong the Woikato River.

River Plan - Wellington Street Beach $1.2M

$0.0M

$0.0M

$0.0M

$0.0M

$0.0M

$0.0M

$0.0M

S01M

$S0.0M

$0.0M

Project status

= Project has significant risks that are
Project is on track

being monitored and managed

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Forecast
Total Cost

851 M

$1.0M

$4.6 M

$1.4M

$4.0M

$5.1M

$32M

$2.8M

S1.2M

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

[ o [ a2 [ o [ o [ o [ o2 ] o ] a [ a1 ] az ] a: ] o]
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Investi
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Pracure
ment

Investigation Design

Procure

Investigation  Design Procurement

Construction
ment

Investigation Construction

Project has significant risks that will
require Council decision

Hamilton
City Council
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PROGRAMME UPDATE

He wai tonu ka whai ture, ka haapai hoki I te tupuranga
Ensuring the provision of essential water services that allow for future growth and compliance

The Citywide Waters programme ensures we can continue to keep up with new specifications, policy and standards implemented
by government (compliance) and makes sure our infrastructure can adapt to the pressures of growth (resilience) in our water supply,
wastewater, and stormwater. The programme has a long-term vision to deliver strategic upgrades to our city's three waters

network as well as key upgrades to our treatment plants.

The key goals for the 3 year capital programme are to:

¢ Complete the Pukete Wastewater Treatment Plant 3b and 3c upgrades and to have commenced the design of the Pukete 4
upgrade.

+ Complete the mid-section of the Western Interceptor duplication and to have commenced the design of the Upper Network
reticulation.

¢ Designate Strategic Wastewater Bulk Sterage sites and to have commenced construction of one.

* Upgrade of the Fitzroy Pump Station and to complete Snell Drive Sewer Pump station diversion.

* Waiora 2 Water Treatment Plant upgrade including the wash water upgrade complete.

* Complete the Newcastle Demand Management Zone water project.

¢ Complete the Eastern Bulkmain resilience project.

* Progress the ICMP and Erosion Control programme.

* Work with active developers to upsize infrastructure if necessary.

The key capital programme milestones for 2021/22 include:

Pukete WWTP inlet work and bioreactor retrofit design completed. @ OnTrack
Newcastle Demand Management Zone contract awarded and construction underway. @ OnTrack
Waiora 2 capacity upgrade design complete, and construction underway. @ OnTrack
Mangaonua stormwater erosion control and gully restoration works underway. @ OnTrack
Snell Drive Wastewater Pump station upgrade complete. @ OnTrack
Preferred options confirmed for Wastewater Bulk Storage sites. @ OnTrack

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

CITY WIDE WATERS
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

S50 M
$45 M
$40 M
$35 M
$30M
$25 M
$20 M
$15 M
S10M
S5 M
S0M Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

==mForecasted Budget $1.0M $2.0M $7.1M 5107 M $14.2M $17.7 M $21.2M $26.5M $31.5M $36.5M $42.5 M 546.0 M
—pctuals S10M S2.0M

3 Year Forecasted Budget

$50 M
§45 M
$40 M
§35M
$30 M
$35M
$30M
$15M
S10M

$5M

SOM ————

2001/22 2002/23 2023724
m Capex $46.0 M $452 M $41.6 M
W Revenue S22 M S1.2 M 502 M

Pukete
Wastewater
Treatment

S Hamilton
City Council
Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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Project Name Project Description

Forecast
Total Cost

Pukete 3 Wastewater
Treatment Plant Capacity
Upgrade - Bioreactor Retrofits

Mediffeation of the existing Bioreactors to promate a higher
treatment perfomance and operotional efficiency

Pukete 3 Wastewater
Treatment Plant Capacity
Upgrade - New Inlet works

A new dedicated inlet screenings facility to replace the originod inlet

$194M  S0.0M  $19.4M
works

Major copocity upgrade on the water treatment plant

Wai: 2Water Treat t Plant C it . . . o .
aiora ater Treatment Flant Lapacity including an upgroded chemical focility ond additional treatment

$396 M $12.0M $39.6M

Upgrade process to increase the overall plant capacity by 30%.
Newcastle Water Reservoir and Supply Network  installing new water pipes ond upgroding the reservoir pumy
P . pipet a8 UBGIamag (he pusnp $16.8M $1.6M $15.8M
Upgrade stotion to improve functionality, network operotions and resitience.

Part of the Ruokura Superhub development, including planting of
over 100,000 native plants and creation of DOC style aecess tracks.
Design, consenting and land access/procurement agreements are
well advanced to enable construction commencement in early
2022.

Mangaohua Stormwater Erosion Control and

4.2 M 0.4 M 4.2 M
Gully Restoration s B s

Wastewater master plans hove identified storage volumes and
conceptual locations for o number of bulk storoge focilities over the
entire city. Work is underway for the first phose of the storage
Sfocility feasibility assessment being the confirmation of location,
Sform and designation.

Wast ewater Bulk Storage SH0M S0AM S41.0M

A strotegic wastewater network capocity upgrade project to
construct one Sewer Pump Station (5P5) at the Snelt Drive reserve
and also the installation of o new Pipeline (Rising Main and Gravity
main).

Snell Diversion to Far Eastern Interceptor $5.1M  S05M  S5.1M

Project status

N B2 N . S B2 . . . N
1

2023/24

Construction

Procurement Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Project has significant risks that are
being monitored and managed

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Project has significant risks that will
require Council decision

CITY WIDE WATERS
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

MAP

To be added for December Finance Committee.

Newcastle
Water
Reservoir

Hamilton
City Council
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Ko te whakakitenga moo te whenua Peacocke - Ko te aaheinga o te hanga he waahi ataahua, he waahi toiora ki Peacocke.

The vision for the Peacocke Programme is to enable the development of an attractive and sustainable community in the

Peacocke Growth Cell.

Over the next 10 years, Peacocke is projected to deliver a third of Hamilton’s medium-term housing needs and 26% of Hamilton's

long-term housing needs. The Peacocke capital programme includes the delivery of the strategic network infrastructure,

community facilities and infrastructure, and associated ecological protection and enhancement. $290.4M of the approximately

$420M 10 year capital programme is funded through the Housing Infrastructure Fund interest-free loan, with most of the

infrastructure planned for completion by 2025.

The key goals for the 3 year capital programme are:

* Land acquisition for key wastewater and Southern Links transport projects.

* Completing Notice of Requirement and Land acquisition for the northern sports park.

¢ Implementation of key transport and wastewater for network infrastructure projects including:

* Wairere Drive Extension and the northern part of the Peacocke Road Urban Upgrade (Completion 2023)

¢ Peacocke Northern Transfer Main (Completion 2022)
¢ Peacocke Main Transfer Pump Station (Completion 2023)

¢ East-West Minor Arterial Road (Design under way - Construction 2022 - 2024)

* Peacocke Road Urban Upgrade Southern Section (Design under way - Construction 2022 - 2024)

* North-South Wastewater (Design under way - Construction 2022 - 2024)
* Approval of the Integrated Catchment Management Plan (ICMP) for Mangakootukutuku.

¢ Implementation of environmental mitigation and enhancement associated with projects.

The key capital programme milestones for 2021/22 include:

Completion of the Northern Transfer Main project.

2021/22 Milestone Performance

On Track

Commence erection of the Waikato River Bridge superstructure.

On Track

Commence construction of the Peacocke main transfer pump station.

On Track

Complete design and commence procurement for Peacocke Road, the East-West minor
arterial, and north-south strategic wastewater.

On Track

Resolve the remaining property objection and commence Land Valuation Tribunal process.

On Track

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

PEACOCKE
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

PROGRAMME UPDATE

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

$100 M
$90 M
$80 M
S70M
$60 M
S50 M
$40 M
$30 M
S20 M
$10 M
S0M
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
===Forecasted Budget $62 M $144 M $21.1M $28.0M $40.3M $46.8 M $53.3 M $59.9 M $66.4 M $72.9 M $80.4M S87.0M
Actuals $62M 3144 M
3 Year Forecasted Budget
S120M
$100 M
480 M
$60 M
$40 M
$20M
S0 M _
2022/23 2023724
m Capex i 598.4 M $67.9M
H Revenue §22.5M $34.3 M 584 M

Waikato
River

Hamilton
City Council
Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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PEACOCKE
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

MAP

Project Name Project Dascription 2022/23 2023/24

To be added for December Finance Committee.

Foracast
Total Cost

Lo [ e [ o [ o | a [ e I ol o | a [ o [ o | o]

|

Construction of a new major arterial roading connection inta
Peacocke, including o bridge across the Woikate River ond strategic
wtility connections. Budgets are HCC Peococke Programme only and
do not include third porty works fe.g. private developer agreement).

Wairere Drive Extension and Bridge over
Waikato River to Peacocke North-South Arterial
ineluding Peacocke Road Urban Upgrade (north)

Construction of approximately 7.5km of dual wostewater pressure
Wastewater Northern Transfer Main [Peacocke pipelines to connect the Peacocke Strategic Wastewater pump station
to Far Eastern Interceptor at Crosby Road) to the Far Eastern interceptor (parts at and south of river being
delivered as part of Wairere Drive Extension).

Construction of o new major wastewater transfer pump station and
Peacocke Strategic WastewaterPumpstation  associated storoge, including connections to the existing wostewater
(na) network in Fitzroy to optimise early performance ond relieve demond
on the city's western network.

§72.9M  §236M §72.9M Desigi Construction

Construction of approximately 2km of wastewater pressure pipelines
to connect future development around the planned Peacocke East-
West Arterial to the Peacocke Strategic Wastewater pump station
including two bridges across gullies.

Peacocke North/South strategic wastewater Construdion

This will upgrade the existing rurod Peacockes Rood between the
Wairere Drive Extension works and the Last West Minor Arteriol to
appropriate urban road standards to support development in east and
south Peacocke .

Peacocke Road Urban Upgrade (south) §73M  S03 M S73EM Construdion

Peacocke East/West Minor Arterial Road [Stage  This minor arterial road connection will link Peacockes Road in the

. - . 3.9 M 1.8M 42.9 M Construdi
2) eost with Choupo Rd/State Highwoy 3 (SH3) in the west. s s s onstrudion

The purchase of Jand to allow for the construction of infrastructure.

Land Acquisition Pecocke Lond

$382M $185M 382 M Procurement

The land purchase and bosic development of two sports parks in

SpeortsPark Land Acquisition Peacocke.

$387 M $8.3M  $3BTM Procurement

Peacocke
Bridge

Project status Site

. Project has significant risks that are Project has significant risks that will
Project is on track bei . ; . .
eing monitored and managed require Council decision

Hamilton
City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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ROTOKAURI-NORTHWEST
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
To ensure Hamiltonians enjoy a connected, vibrant, attractive and prosperous Rotokauri-Northwest
community 2021-22 Performance

SO M
The Rotokauri-Northwest growth cell refers to Rotokauri Stage 1, Rotokauri Stage 2 and Te Rapa North (including Te Awa Lakes).
$8 M
Rotokauri-Northwest neighbourbood will one day be home for up to 20,000 people.
S7TM
The key goals for the 3-year capital programme are: -
¢ To complete the designation and preliminary design of the the Rotokauri Transport arterial. M
¢ To complete the design of the Rotokauri Green Swale. sam
* To work with active developers to upsize infrastructure if necessary. sam
s2M
The key project milestones for 2021/22 include: S1M
2021 /22 Milestone Performance S0M Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
To have an approved business case for the transport arterials and to have lodged a =—Forecasted Budget 50.0M | 30.1M | 52.7M | $3.0M | 334 M |S3.8M | 347M 35.8M | 362M | 36.8M $7.7M | 38.0M
@ OnTrack e Actuals $00M | $0.1M

designation.

To have lodged consent for the Rotokauri Green Swale. @ OnTrack

3 Year Forecasted Budget
9 M

Waiwhakareke I
 I—

Rotokauri Road Natural Heritage 2021/22 2022/23 2023724

rade H Capex S8.0M $4.7 M $8.6 M
Upg . Park W Revenue S0.0 M $0.0M S03 M

Completion of the Te Wetini Drive extension which is developer lead. @ OnTrack

S8 M

$7M
$6 M
$5M
S4 M
53 M
2 M

1M

oM

Hamilton
City Council
Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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ROTOKAURI-NORTHWEST
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

MAP

Project Name Project Description 2021722 2022723 2023724 To be added for December Finance Committee.

Total Project

B
™
Q
%o
]
22
o O
[ )

e Te Ta Te T e T & T & llal e el
1

An aggreqated wetiand to
treat and ottenuote
stormwater from existing
and future development.

Baverstock Rd Stormwater $1.2M  S00M  S1.2M Construction

Securing consents and
Specimen Design for the
Rotokauri Greenway
Corridor

Rotokauri Swale Consent & Design $91M  SOOM  $91M Piocurement Design

Protecting lond corridors
required for future roading
development and
progressing design.

Rotokauri Roading Arterial $79M  S25M  S79M Investigation

To extend Te Wetini Drive
from Akoranga Road to the
new Rotokouri north-south
minor arterial.

Te Wetini Dr Extension $12 M S00M S12M

Procurem
1
1
1
1
]
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1

Project status

. Project has significant risks that are Project has significant risks that will
Project is on track bei . ; . -
eing monitored and managed require Council decision

Hamilton
City Council
Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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PROGRAMME UPDATE

Ko te aaheinga o te hanga he waahi ataahua, he waahi toiora ki Rototuna
Enabling the development of an attractive and sustainable community in the Rototuna growth area
Rototuna in the city's north-east is currently Hamilton’s primary residential greenfield development area. With development of the
area already well advanced and thousands of Hamiltonians calling this area home, the focus of our programme is to provide
strategic infrastructure to supportthe final stages of development and to provide and enable development of facilities to support

thriving and liveable communities.

The key goals for the 3 year capital programme are to:

s Complete the Borman/Horsham Extension and urban upgrade project.

* Complete the Rototuna Village Community facility project including provision of the supporting infrastructure.
* Purchase of an additional neighbourhood reserve.

* To work with active developers to upsize infrastructure if necessary.

The key project milestones for 2021/22 include:

2021/22 Milestone Performance

Contract is awarded for the Borman/Horsham Extension and urban upgrade project. @ OnTrack

The library building is under construction. On Track

The North City Road upgrade and the Fergy to Bourn Brook Road upgrade projectis

. On Track
under construction.

The neighbourhood reserve land acquisition is under contract.

Pragma North East Rototuna development has agreement for service provisions and

developmentis in progress.

@
®
@ OnTrack
@ OnTrack

Hare Puke

ROTOTUNA
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

$35 M
$30M
525 M
$20M
$15 M
$10M

45 M

oM
3 Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

==mForecasted Budget ($0.3)M $0.3M $34M $6.5M 596 M $12.7 M $158M $18.9M $220M $25.1M 5282 M $31.3 M
——pctuals (50.3)M 503 M

3 Year Forecasted Budget

435 M
$30M
§25M
$20M
$15M
$10M

$5M

2022/23 202324

224 M S11.2 M
H Revenue S4.1M $4.1 M $1.4M

oM

W Capex

Hamilton
City Council
Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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Project Name Project Description

Design development for the extension of this key piece of
Borman Horsham Urban Upgrade and Extension road which will include associoted urban upgrodes and a
new intersection at Horsham Downs Rood.

Development of new fibrary, community hub, play spoces,

Rototuna Village - Community Fadlities (Library) villoge square and corporks,

Transport network upgrades through the Rototuna Villoge
oreq including Turokina/Bourn Brook extensions. The
Rototuna Village Transport and Open Spaces extension of Turaking Rise is deloyed as stoff work with
Waikato Regional Council on the resource consent
opproval,

The extension of Resofution Drive {north) to connect to the
new Waikato Expresswoy. Woko Kotahi is constructing this
Resolution Drive Extension as part of the Waikoto Expressway. Woko Kotafi NZTA
continue to signal scope chonges and additional Council
contributions.

Development of Hare Puke Park and Mongaiti Pork into
Rototuna Parks and Reserves Upgrades sports poarks. Improving wolking/cycling networks,
ployground and recreational space ot Te Manatu Park.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Total Project

§23.7 M

$19.5 M

5126 M

$10.4 M

526 M

Actual Spend

50.8M

S16M

50.6 M

93 M

16 M

ROTOTUNA

Forecast
Total Cost

8237 M

$195M

$126M

$10.4 M

526 M

Project status

Project has significant risks that are
being monitored and managed

2021/22

22/23 202324

I S - S O O G
1

Procurem

Desigi
= ent

Procure

Design oo

Construction

Construction

Construction

Project has significant risks that will

require Council decision

Mangaiti
Park

MAP

To be added for December Finance Committee.

9

PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT
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RUAKURA
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

PROGRAMME UPDATE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
To ensure Hamiltonians enjoy a connected, vibrant, attractive and prosperous Ruakura community
2021-22 Performance

Ruakura will become New Zealand’s largest integrated development, which will be anchored by a 30ha inland port cperation. 550 M
Once developed, Ruakura will become home for up to 8000 Hamiltonians, and will deliver major economic, social, environmental, $45 M
and cultural benefits to the Waikato and New Zealand. Staff continue to work in partnership with Tainui Group Holdings (TGH) and $40 M
Central Government to enable the development of Ruakura and the Ruakura Superhub. 5
$30M
525 M
The key goals for the 3 year capital programme are: $20 M
* To provide strategic transport, wastewater infrastructure and water infrastructure that allows the Ruakura Superhub to $15 M
develop. $10 M
* To complete a business case and specimen design for the Ruakura Eastern Transport Corridor connecting the superhub to $5M
central and north Hamilton. S0M Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec lan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
« To work with active developers to Upsize infrastructure if necessar ——rForecasted Budget $12M $4.0M $52M $6.4M $14.5M $17.8M $21.1M $29.8 M $33.2 M $38.0 M $41.3M $44.7 M
work wi ive develop upsizei ucture i Y. — i S2M MM
3 Year Forecasted Budget
450 M
N . R $45 M
The key project milestones for 2021/22 include: o
2021/22 Milestone Performance $35 M
Completion of the Ruakura Road urban upgrade and the Ruakura Road West connection. @ OnTrack o
$25 M
Completion of strategic wastewater and water infrastructure (see City Wide Waters O On Track 30 M
n Trac
Programme). $15 M
Works underway to protect the Mangaonua stream. @ OnTrack Plom
o -
An agreement on the preferred concept for the Eastern Transport Corridor. @ OnTrack oM 2001/22 2002/23 2003124
m Capex $44.7 M 554 M S03 M
W Revenue $343 M S0.0M S00M

Ruakura Ruakura

Key Transport

Connectionsﬁ —— o sper : .‘ ;" Hamilton .
: e City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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Project Name Project Description

Project
Status
Total Project

Urbaon upgrade (taking the rood from rural to one which fits within
an urban setting) of Buakura Road fram the Wairere Drive/Ruclura
Ruakura Read Urbanisation Rood intersection and up to the Ruakura Road ond Silverdale Rood
intersection. Additionol funding secured from Crown tnfrastructure
Partners to complete project.

$12.6 M S31M

Jointly funded by HCC, TGLand PDU the construction of o new road
Ruakura Eastern Transport Corridor [Stage 1) - from Silverdale Road/Ruakura Road intersection to the Waikato S410M 880 M
Exprassway to Ruakura/Silverdale Expressway Ruakura Interchange to allow the development of the . :

Ruakuro inlond Port.

HCC contribution to new wastewater pipe to service development.
Northern section has been completed. Deferral required for
Southern Interceptor funding which will be delivered by Toinui
Group Holdings. 51.53M of savings have been realised in previous
financiol yeors.

Far Eastern Interceptor Stage 2

(delivered by TGH) $88M  S25M

Remuaining strotegic networks to service development areas -

2.0M 0.0M
plonned to be delivered by Tainui Group Holdings. s i

Ruakura Trunk Watermains

N Planning, investigation and design for the future extension of the
Ruakura Eastern Transport Corridor [Stage 2) . $3.5M  S0.0M
egstern transport corridor through the Ruokura development area.

RUAKURA

2021/22 2023/23 2023/24

Forecast
Total Cost

IR N LS . . .2 - R

1
1
|
1
1
1
1
1
|

$3.5M Investigation

SEEM Procurement Construction

$2.0M Procurement construetion

Project status

L Project has significant risks that are
Project is on track

being monitored and managed

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Project has significant risks that will
require Council decision

Key
Transport
Connections

MAP

To be added for December Finance Committee.
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RANSPORT IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

PROGRAMME UPDATE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Kia tika ano te hanga rori maa; Aahienga whakatupu, whakapai atu haumaru, me whakawhaanui atu ngaa koowhiringa waka
2021/22 Performance
Delivering a balanced transport system through; Enabling growth, improving safety, and improving transport choice

$60 M
A great transport system is vital to the success of a thriving urban city like Hamilton. This programme delivers on improving the
wellbeing of Hamiltonians though a city that's easy to live in and where our people love to be. The focus of this programme is: o
¢ Safety - Everyone experiences a safe and enjoyable journey 540 M
¢ Choice - Everyone has travel options for moving around the city
The ley goals for the 3 year capital programme are to: .
¢ Complete the Ring Road/Cobham Drive interchange. $20M
¢ Complete the Te Awa River Ride. s10M
¢ Complete the Transport Centre Rejuvenation project.
¢ Be well progressed on construction of the School Link project which is part of Eastern Pathways. M Wl [ Aug | sep | Ot | Nov | Dec | Jam | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | lun
——Forecasted Budget $1.9M $4.4M S$13.0M $16.6 M $20.3 M $24.0 M $20.0M $32.7 M $36.4 M $42.4 M $47.6 M $49.7 M
¢ Complete pre-implementation work on university link and be in a good position to request implementation funding. —Actuals S19M $4.4M
¢ Complete the business case for Biking and Micromobility and commence pre-implementation.
o Effectively deliver the low-cost low-risk works programmes to significantly improve safety of our intersections and networks

across the city and to promote public transport, walking and cycling. 560 M

* To work with active developers to upsize infrastructure if necessary. $50M

$40M
The key project milestones for 2021/22 include:

2021/22 Milestone Performance $30M

Completion of the Ring Road/Cobham drive interchange. @ OnTrack 520 M
Construction underway for Transport Centre Rejuvenation. On Track $10M
. . . . . . Som
Design complete for School Link northern section and implementation funding approved. On Track 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24
W Capex $49.7 M $34.0 M $41.8 M
W Revenue §23.8M §16.8 M §21.3 M
Improvements complete at Gordonton/Puketaha and Gordonton/Darjon intersections. On Track

. . . o . o On Track \ = =
Effective delivery of low-cost low-risk programmes in alignment with council priorities. - A
Completion of the Te Awa River Path On Track L7 H ilt
ompletion of the Te Awa River Path. o amilton
e : I City Council
Wairere - ) ¥ i YF e Te kaunihera o Kirikirirca
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RANSPORT IMPROVEMENT
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24

N N N -

Project Name Project Description

To be added for December Finance Committee.

Total Project
Forecast
Total Cost

The completion of the Hamilton section of the Te Awa River Ride from
M Stream to Hamilton Gardens. This is amber due to risk $5.8M  $24M $58M
of potential construction delays.

Te Awa Cycleway E;

Ongoing improvements to, and upgrades of, the Transport Centre will
encourage public transport use and support the transition to
Anglesea Street as o public transport priority corridor. This project
should receive a 51% Waka Kotahisubsidy.

Transport Centre Rejuvenation $8.8M S00M $88M Design P'““"':'“

nt

Safer routes will offer biking and micro-mobility as alternate modes
of transport as identified by the Biking and Micro-mobility Business
Case. Delivery programme and timing subject to further Council
decisions following Waka Kotahi not confirming funding. The
budget shown is for 2021/22 to 2023/24.

Biking & M bility Citywide Prog $13.5M $0.0M  the

Upgrade of Pembroke/Ohaupo Intersection for Public Transport
priority.

Procure

$42M  S00M  $42M Design et

Pembroke/Ohaupo Intersection Upgrade

The School link, University Link and connections to these routes. This
project offers transport choice along these busy corridors by
prioritising and creating good infrastructure for public transport,
walking/cycling and micro-mobility. Delivery programme and
timing of University Link require further Council direction following
Waka Kntohi not confirming funding for implementation.

Procure |

$346M $2.6M $346M 3 Design o

Eastern Pathways

intersection improvements at Gordonton/Puketaha. Please note the

Darjon/Gordonton intersection upgrade budget is currently included

in the Low Cost Low Risk— Road to Zero programme and this will be
combined with this project.

rocurem

$45M $0.3M  $45M o

Gordonton Road corridor [Wairere to Borman)

The final connection of the Hamilton Ring Road will see Cobham Drive

raised to allow the four-laned Wairere Drive to pass underneath it. it

will also include extensions of shared walking and biking paths. This is

a large complex contract with @ number of significant risks that need
monitoring and managing.

Wairere Drive Extension - Cambridge Road to

60.8 M $489 M $60.8M
Cobham Drive $ $ $

Wairere
Drive
Extension

Project status

Project has significant risks that are
being monitored and managed

Project has significant risks that will
require Council decision

Hamilton
City Council

Te kaunihera o Kirikiriroa
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PROGRAMME UPDATE

Ko te tiaki aa taatou hua hei tika moo toona whainga

Looking after the assets we have and making sure they are fit for purpose

The Renewals and Compliance programme for the next 3 year period has begun. Significant staff effort is being put into
organising the programme for the next three years and building on the successful delivery and processes that have
already been established. Staff in each of the subprogramme areas are confirming scopes and delivery plans for the
future renewals of the assets. Some multiyear contracts to help deliver ongoing renewal programmes are being
tendered and procurement planning is progressing. These will be presented to Council for approval over the coming

months.

There were some renewals and compliance projects that had funding carried over from last financial year. Work on

these projects is continuing and these projects will be completed over coming months.

Seddon Park
Staff Facilities

Waterworld
Diving
Platform

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

RENEWALS & COMPLIANCE
PROGRAMME CAPITAL REPORT

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Capital Expenditure Y1-Y3

$300 M

$250 M

$200M

$150 M

$100 M

$50 M

\
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Total Budget Y1-Y3

$0.6M

m 3 Waters
$27.3M
W Transport
| Facilities
m Community
m Information Services

m Venues, Tourism & Major Events

m City Growth

$8.9M

9
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Council Report

Committee: Finance Committee Date: 05 October 2021
Author: Tracey Musty Authoriser: David Bryant
Position: Financial Controller Position: General Manager People and

Organisational Performance

Report Name: Financial Performance & Strategy Report to 31 August 2021

Report Status Open

Purpose - Take

1. To inform the Finance Committee on Council’s financial performance and strategy for the two
months ended 31 August 2021.

2. To seek a recommendation from the Finance Committee that the Council approves the
significant forecast adjustments as set out in this Report and the capital movement as set out
in the Capital Portfolio Monitoring Report.

Staff Recommendation - Tuutohu-aa-kaimahi (Recommendation to the Council)
3. That the Finance Committee receives the report.
4, That the Finance Committee recommends that the Council:

a) approves the capital movement as identified in paragraph 24 of the 5 October 2021 Capital
Portfolio Monitoring Report;

b) approves the significant forecast adjustments as set out in paragraphs 44 to 47 of this
report; and

c) approves the revised Financial Strategy position for Debt to Revenue, Net Debt and
Balancing the Books as set out in paragraphs 50 to 52 of this report.

Executive Summary - Whakaraapopototanga matua

5. This report is to be read in conjunction with the 5 October 2021 Capital Portfolio Monitoring
Report.

6. The 31 August 2021 financial results show an unfavourable variance of $S0.4m against the year-
to-date (YTD) budget, and a favourable variance in the balancing the books result of $1.1m
against the YTD budget.

7. There is a positive result in fees and charges, due to increased consenting and increased H3
event activity. Unbudgeted revenue from the Department of Internal Affairs (DIA) for Water
Reform Stimulus projects are part of the favourable variance and offsets additional operating
expenditure.

8. Capital revenue is unfavourable to budget due to capital projects not progressing as fast as
anticipated in the first few months of the financial year.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN Page 41 of 176
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Expenditure is tracking favourable to YTD budget. Personnel costs have a favourable variance
to YTD budget due to vacancies. Recruitment for new positions identified in the 2021-31 Long
Term Plan are progressing.

Depreciation is unfavourable to YTD budget due to revaluation of building and transportation
assets, however this continues to be monitored.

Finance costs are favourable to YTD budget as closing debt for the 2020/21 financial year was
lower than budgeted.

Forecast changes include:
i. areduction in revenue in Planning and Development;

ii. an adjustment to income for the Zoo Waiwhakareke Entry Precinct as discussed at
previous Council meeting; and

iii. areduction in finance costs as a result of lower closing debt for the 2020/21 financial year.

Council’s treasury position is favourable, and Council remains compliant with all treasury policy
measures. Additional borrowings of $50m from the Local Government Funding Agency (LGFA)
increased total debt at 31 August 2021 (Attachment 3).

Council’s fixed rate hedging at 31 August 2021 is 48%. Council is well hedged after executing its
deferral strategy in 2020. PwC Treasury Advisors recommend that Council remains patient and
allows hedging to reduce by attrition.

Council saw a gain of $3.7m on the revaluation of swaps at 31 August 2021. This is not a cash
gain, but rather an accounting/book entry and reflects the market swap rate movement as
reflected in Attachment 3.

Forecasting changes made since the adoption of the 2021-31 Long Term Plan show an
improvement in the Financial Strategy measures:

i. debttorevenueis 191% and favourable against a budget of 193%;
ii. netdebtis $714m and favourable against a budget of $731m; and
iii. balancing the books is (52m) and favourable against a budget of ($3m).

Staff consider the matters in this report have low significance and that the recommendations
comply with Council’s legal requirements.

Discussion - Matapaki

Operating Results
The accounting and balancing the books result

18. The Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense discloses the accounting result in
accordance with accounting standards.
19. The YTD accounting and balancing the books result for the two months ended 31 August 2021
is as follows:
Surplus/(Deficit) Result YTD Actual YTD Budget YTD Variance
Accounting Surplus/(Deficit) S12.1m $12.5m (50.4m) %
Balancing the books (57.6m) (58.7m) S$1.1m

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN
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20. The annual accounting and balancing the books result has been adjusted to reflect the
forecasting adjustments as follows:

Surplus/(Deficit) Result Annual Forecast Annual Budget YTD Variance
Accounting Surplus/(Deficit) $85.1m $83.6m $1.5m
Balancing the books (S1.2m) (52.9m) $1.7m

Understanding material variances

21. The Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense is contained in Attachment 1.

22. Individual Everyday Revenue and Expense statements for each of the Council’s activities are
contained in Attachment 2.

Operating Revenue

23. Total Operating Revenue is $1.2m favourable to the YTD budget.

Operating Revenue Variances (YTD Actual to Budget)

($0.0M)

Rates

50.0M

Fees & Subsidies &
charges Grants

$0.0M
(50.00)
Interest Other
Revenus Revenue

Increase @ Decrease  Total

Total

24. Fees & Charges contributed the largest share of the favourable variance in Operating Revenue
and exceeds YTD budget by $1.2m.

4 000K

3,000

oK

Line graph ismanthly: axis values

Fees & Charges

Awpg Sep Oct MNov  Dec

sINEASIE (LA 51 Yydels seq

oK

The bar chart compares Last Year to Date Actuals (LYTD Actuals), Year to Date Actuals (YTD Actuals) and Year To Date Budgets (YTD
Budgets). These values are reflected on the vertical axis to the right-hand side. The line chart above compares This Year Actuals (TY
Actuals) and Last Year Actuals (LY Actuals) at each month. These values are reflected on the vertical axis to the left-hand side.

25. Fees & user charges provided $0.5m towards the favourable variance in Fees & Charges (above
last year actuals by $0.6m). This favourable result is due to increased event activity in Venues,
Tourism and Major Events and better than budgeted revenue from building consents.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN
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26.

27.

Operating contributions provided $0.6m towards the favourable variance in Fees & Charges.
This is due to unbudgeted funds received from the DIA and offset expenditure on the Water
Reform Stimulus projects.

Material variance explanations can be found in the activity statements (Attachment 2).

Capital Revenue

28.
29.

30.

Total Capital Revenue is $5.3m unfavourable to YTD budget.

Capital subsidies and contributions is below budget by $3.3m. Projects attracting Waka Kotahi
subsidies have progressed slower than anticipated and resulted in an unfavourable variance to
budget of $1.9m. The unfavourable variance in capital contributions of $1.3m is mainly due to
contributions towards the Ruakura Road West Realignment project not invoiced yet.

Vested assets are below YTD budget by $1.9m. The addition of vested assets increases the
operating and maintenance costs for Council, as well as depreciation. Through the 2021-31
Long-Term Plan increased funding was made available for maintenance on new vested assets
for three waters and transportation activities. The nature of vested infrastructure assets are
that they have a long useful life and generally do not require significant direct maintenance in
the first ten years of operation.

Operating Expenditure

31.

32.

33.

34,

Total Operating Expenditure is favourable to YTD budget by $0.3m. Favourable variances offset
unfavourable variances.

Operating Expenditure Variances (YTD Actual to Budget)

50.8M
. £0.2M 20.0M -
— ] (505M)  ($0.3M)
(30.5M)
(S0.1M) (50.2M)
Personnel Operating Professi.. Adminis.. Property Depreci.. Finance Total

Costs & Maint... Costs Expenses Costs & Amor.. Cosis

ncrease @ Decrease Total
Personnel Costs are favourable to YTD budget by S0.5m. This is due to delays in the
recruitment for new positions identified in the 2021-31 Long Term Plan.

Depreciation is unfavourable to YTD budget by $0.8m due to revaluations for building and
transportation, however this will continue to be monitored.

Please refer to the activity statements (Attachment 2) for material variance explanations.

Gains and Losses

35.

The YTD adjustment on non-cash revaluation of Council’s Financial borrowing instruments
resulted in a $3.7m gain. See Attachment 3 for swap interest rate movement.
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Treasury Management
36.

Council’s compliance with its treasury policy measures at 31 August 2021 is as follows:

(0]
Counterparty credit risk max $75m per bank Achieved GEJ
Liquidity ratio min 110% 126% =
0-3vyears 15% - 60% 42%
Funding maturity 3 -7 years 25% - 85% 26%
7 years + 0% - 60% 31%
Fixed rate debt maturity | All years Within annual parameters Achieved

Interest Rate Risk Management

37. The movement on interest rate swaps relates to valuations completed at a point in time. These
are based on Council’s total external debt and the difference between current market interest
rates and the fixed rates that Council has locked in. They are unrealised because on maturity of
each interest rate swap contract no interest gain or loss eventuates.

38. At 31 August 2021 Council’s fixed rate hedging is 48%. This falls within our debt interest rate
policy parameters which requires a minimum fixed rate of 40% and a maximum fixed rate of
95%.

39. Council’s gross cost of funds over a 12-month rolling average is 2.3%.

Financial Strategy

40. The impact of the favourable opening debt position on the financial strategy is outlined in
Attachment 4.

41. Any changes in significant forecasting assumptions will result in changes to the Financial
Strategy outcomes. These assumptions will be considered and, if necessary, adjusted in each
Annual Plan.

Significant Forecasting Adjustments

42. Significant forecasting adjustments since the 24 August 2021 Council meeting, outlined below,
as compared to the 2021-31 Long-Term Plan budget.

43. Numbers in brackets represent an adverse outcome.

44, Capital revenue, capital savings, re-phasing, and delay deferrals from 2021/22 to future years
as detailed in the Capital Portfolio Monitoring Report, paragraph 24.

Capital Adjustments — Financial Strategy Impact

$000 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Balancing 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
the
Books
Net Debt | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060) | (5,060)

45.  Favourable adjustments to operating revenue and expenditure as detailed in Attachment 2.

Operating Adjustments — Financial Strategy Impact
$000 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | 2030 | 2031

Balancing 1,762 | 874 800 841 868 827 755 764 794 749

the Books

Net Debt 1,762 | 2,636 | 3,436 | 4,278 |5,146 |5,972 |6,727 | 7,491 | 8,285 | 9,034
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46. Revised budget adjustments.

Revised Budget Adjustments — Financial Strategy Impact

8 w9l

$000 2022 | 2023 | 2024 | 2025 | 2026 | 2027 | 2028 | 2029 | 2030 | 2031
Balancing (647) |0 0 65 0 0 0 0 0 0
the Books
Net Debt (647) | (647) | (647) | (582) | (582) | (582) | (582) | (582) | (582) | (582)

47. The revised budget adjustments are as follows:

i. $660k was allocated to the Waikato Metro Spatial Plan Transportation budget from 3
waters in 2020/21, however only $78k was spent. It has been requested that the
remaining $582k be deferred to the 2021/22 financial year.

ii. The Waiwhakareke Predator Proof Fence - Feasibility Study has been budgeted for in
year 4 of the 2021-31 Long-Term Plan. An opportunity exists to expedite this feasibility
study to gain greater understanding of the potential future options for the development
of the park as well as sequencing and timing. This would require the net budget of $65k
to be brought forward from year 4 into the current year. (Attachment 5).

48. The impact of both of these recommended budget revisions on the financial strategy is not
significant in nature. Council will remain in a favourable debt to revenue and balancing the
books position.

Financial Strategy Graphs

49. The following graphs show the 2021-31 Long Term Plan budgets and the total of all the
significant forecast adjustments as set out in paragraph 44, 45, 46 and 47. These significant
forecast adjustments are subject to decision by the Finance Committee or Council.

Debt to Revenue

50. The Debt to Revenue graph includes all adjustments identified in this report and shows that
debt to revenue of 191% is favourable against the 2021-31 Long-Term Plan budget of 193%.

Debt to Revenue

350%

250%

150% -

100% -

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
. 2021-31 TP B Forecast = -Debt to Revenue Limit

Net Debt

51. The Net Debt graph shows a decrease in net debt against the 2021-31 Long-Term Plan. Net
debt for 2021/22 is forecast at $714m.
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Net Debt

51,200m
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Balancing the Books

52. The forecast 2021/22 balancing the books result is (52m) and is favourable against a budget of
(S3m).

Balancing the Books
$110m

NZD5SM

-510m

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
W 2021-31 LTP  m Forecast

Emerging Issues

53. The Financial Performance & Strategy Report and Capital Portfolio Monitoring Report lists
emerging issues that could impact the capital portfolio and consequently debt and the
balancing the books result across the remainder of the Long-Term Plan.

54. A separate report on the impacts of Covid-19 on the capital programme, specifically claims on
capital contracts, will be presented as this meeting (5 October 2021).

Legal and Policy Considerations - Whaiwhakaaro-aa-ture

55.  Staff confirm that matters in this report complies with Council’s legal and policy requirements.
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Wellbeing Considerations - Whaiwhakaaro-aa-oranga tonutanga

56. The purpose of Local Government changed on the 14 May 2019 to include promotion of the
social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of communities in the present and for
the future (‘the 4 wellbeings’).

57. The subject matter of this report has been evaluated in terms of the 4 wellbeings during the
process of developing this report.

58. The recommendations set out in this report are consistent with that purpose.

59. Economic wellbeing is managed through the efficient monitoring of Council’s financial results.
Diligent management of Council’s budget and regular review of forecasts is required to ensure
Council is operating effectively and policy compliance is met.

60. The environmental, social and cultural wellbeings are not directly impacted by the annual
monitoring report. However, the efficient review and management of Council’s financial
position supports the wider business in their delivery of key objectives that enhance these
wellbeings.

Risks - Tuuraru

61. There are no known risks associated with the decisions of this report.

Significance & Engagement Policy - Kaupapa here whakahira/anganui

Significance

Having considered the Significance and Engagement Policy, staff have assessed that the matters in

this report have low significance.Engagement

63. Given the low level of significance determined, the engagement level is low. No engagement is
required.

Attachments - Ngaa taapirihanga

Attachment 1 - Statement of Comprehensive Revenue and Expense - 31 August 2021

Attachment 2 - Council Activities - 31 August 2021

Attachment 3 - Treasury Position - 31 August 2021

Attachment 4 - Adjusted Debt Position 2021-31 Long-Term Plan

Attachment 5 - Waiwhakareke Predator Proof Fence Feasibility Study

Attachment 6 - Register of Significant Forecast Adjustments
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE REVENUE AND EXPENSE Attachment 1
FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000 S000 $000 S000 2000 s000 soco S000
YTD Annual % Annual Annual
Last Year ¥TD Budget . Annual .
vID YTD Actual {Approved) Variance Approved Budget Forecast Variance
Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/{Unfav)
Operating Revenue
24,446 Rates 27,498 27,536 (37) 221,714 12% 221,714
7,698 Fees & Charges 8027 6,818 1,209 40723 20% 40,058 (665)
1,597 Subsidies & Grants 1,473 1,450 23 8664  17% 8,664
88 Interest Reve nue 40 50 (10 302 13% 302
916 Other Revenue 1,771 1,749 22 14,780 12% 14,780
34,745 TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 38,809 37,603 1,206 286,134 14% 285,519 {665)
Capital Revenue
6,647 Development Contributions 5,200 5,260 (60) 31,622 16% 31,622
7,859 Capital Revenue 9,518 12,823 (3,306) 101,588 9% 101,308 (280)
6,296 Vested Assets 3,838 5,750 (1,911) 34,491 11% 34,491
20,803 TOTAL CAPITAL REVENUE 18,556 23,833 (5,277) 167,701 11% 167,421 (280)
55,548 TOTAL REVENUE 57,365 61,436 (4,071) 453,885 13% 452,940 (945)
Expenditure
14,161 Personnel Costs 15,843 16,390 548 96,908 16% 96,908
9,716 Operating & Maintenance Costs 9,365 9,480 115 68,620 14% 68,620
1,523 Professional Costs 2,347 2,161 (187) 16,510 14% 16,510
2,879 Administration Expenses 3,668 3,625 (43) 24,253 15% 24,253
1,725 Property Costs 1,691 1,936 246 11,824 14% 11,824
2,231 Finance Costs 2,271 2,764 493 16,270  14% 13,870 2,400
9,965 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense 13,417 12,592 (826) 75,534 18% 75,534
42,200 TOTAL EXPENDITURE 48,602 48,947 345 309,919 16% 307,519 2400
13,318 OPERATING SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) 8,763 12,489 (3,726) 143,966 6% 145422 1455
Gains and Losses
(1,911) Net gain/(loss) on revaluation of interest rate swaps 3,702 3,702
Gain onfair value of investment properties 756 0% 756
7 Property, plant and equipment net gain/(loss) (406) (406) (61,103) 1% (61,103)
(1,903) TOTAL GAINS AND LOSSES 3,296 3,206 (60,347)  (5%) (60,347)
11,445 TOTAL SURPLUS/{DEFICIT) 12,058 12,489 (430) 83,620 14% 85,075 1,455
Refer to Activity Statements for variances against budget.
i 21/08/20212:42 pm

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN Page 49 of 176

ltem 8

Attachment 1



T JUawWyoeny

8 w9l

BALANCING THE BOOKS RESULT
FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000

YTD
2019/20

S000 $000 S000 2000 s000
YTD Annual % Annual
Variance Approved Budget
Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent

YTD Actual TUDETCHE

(Approved)

so00

Annual
Forecast

S000
Annual
Variance
Fav/{Unfav)

11,445 surplus/{Deficit) 12,058 12,489 (a30) 83,620 14% 85,075 1455
Remove capital revenue
{6,296) Vested assets (3,838) {5,750) 1,911 (34.491)  11% (34,491)
(5,335) Part of Development and Financial contributions (3,355) (3,419) 64 (20,554)  16% {20,554)
(5,234) Capital Subsidy (excluding subsidy on transport renewals) (6,726) (8,122) 1,395 (60,479) 11% (60,199) 280
(1,042) Other Capital Contributions (1,886) (3,327) 1,441 (32,863) 6% (32,863)
Other items not considered everyday operating revenue {630) {630} (8,084) 8% (8,084)
Remove (gains)/losses
1,903 All Gains/{Losses) (3,296) (3,296) 60,347  (5%) 60,347
Remove other expenses
34 Other items not considered everyday operating expenses 70 70 0] 9,585 1% 9,585
(4,524) EVERYDAY SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) (7,603) (8,689) 1,086 (2,921) 260% (1,185) 1,735
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Attachment 2 COUNCIL
5000 5000 5000 5000 5000 s000 5000 5000
Everyday Revenue
24,446 Rates™* 27,498 27,536 (37 221,714 12% 221,714
7,698 Fees & Charges 8,027 6,818 1,209 40,723 20% 40,058 {665)
1,597 Subsidies & Grants 1,473 1,450 23 8,664 17% 8,664
88 Interest Revenue 40 50 (10 302 13% 302
916 Other Revenue 1,771 1,749 22 14,780 12% 14,780
34,745 Total Everyday Revenue 38,809 37,603 1,206 286,184 14% 285,519 (665)
Everyday Expenditure
14,161 Personnel Costs 15,843 16,390 548 96,908 16% 96,908
9,716 Operating & Maintenance Costs 9,365 9,480 115 68,620 14% 68,620
1,523 Professional Costs 2,347 2,161 (187) 16,510 14% 16,510
2,879 Administration Expenses 3,668 3,625 (43) 24,253 15% 24,253
1,725 Property Costs 1,691 1,936 246 11,824 14% 11,824
2,231 Finance Costs™* 2,271 2,764 493 16,270 14% 13,870 2,400
9,965 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 13,417 12,592 {826) 75,534 18% 75,534
1,903 Gains & Losses (3,296) 3,296 60,347 (5%) 60,347
44,103 Total Everyday Expenditure 45,307 48,947 3,641 370,266 12% 367,865 2,400
{9,358) Everyday Surplus/{Deficit)* (6,498) (11,344) 4,817 (84,081) 8% (82,346) 1,735
Capital Revenue
6,647 Development Contributions** 5,200 5,260 (B0} 31,622 16% 31,622
7,859 Capital Revenue 9,518 12,823 (3,306} 101,588 9% 101,308 (280)
6,296 Vested Assets™* 3,838 5,750 {1,911) 34,491 11% 34,491
20,303 Total Capital Revenue 18,556 23,833 {5,277) 167,701  11% 167,421 (2380)
11,445 Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 12,058 12,489 (430) 83,620 14% 85,075 1,455

Material variances as explained below:
Finance Costs**; $493k favourable.

Overall finance cost (interest expense) for Council is favourable. This is due to an improved starting position for the year as a result of lower closing
debt for the 2020/21 financial year.
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense**; (5826k) unfavourable.

The unfavourable result is due to the revaluation of building and transportation assets, which will continue to be monitored.

Vested Assets**: ($1,911k) unfavourable.

Vested assets are tracking below to budget. Forecast to meet budget at financial year end.

The comments below explain the material variance between annual approved budget and annual forecast.
Finance Costs**: $2,400k favourable.

Council's finance cost (interest expense) has been reforecast due to an improved debt starting position for the year.
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Attachment 2

DEMOCRACY

Governance and Public Affairs | Partnership with Maaori

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000
ATt ¥TD Budget YID Annual % Annual Annual Annual
TD YTD Actual {Approved] Variance Approved Budget Forecast Variance
Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/(Unfav)
Everyday Revenue
366 Rates™* 371 490 (120) 3,068 12% 3,068
5 Fees & Charges
Subsidies & Grants
Interest Revenue
Other Revenue
371 Total Everyday Revenue 371 490 (120) 3,068 12% 3,068
Everyday Expenditure
57 Personnel Costs 87 112 25 679 13% 679
3 Operating & Maintenance Costs 5 5 28 0% 28
85 Professional Costs 94 136 42 724 13% 724
310 Administration Expenses 338 283 {55) 1,709 20% 1,709
Property Costs
Finance Costs**
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense**
Gains & Losses
455 Total Everyday Expenditure 518 535 17 3,140 17% 3,140
(84) Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (147) {45) {103) {72) 206% {72)
(84) Operating Surplus/{Deficit) (147) (45) (103) {72) 206% (72)

* Everyday surp lus/(deficit) excludes overhead alocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations

% Rates Revenue, Finance Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are explained in the Councl activity statements

Material variances as explained below:

No significant variances to report.
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Attachment 2

VISITOR ATTRACTIONS

Hamilton Gardens | Waikato Museum | Hamilton Zoo

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000
ATt YTD Budget Annual % Annual
TD {Approved) Variance Approved Budget Variance
Fav/(Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/(Unfav)
Everyday Revenue
1,957 Rates™* 1,795 1,760 36 14,768 12% 14,768
603 Fees & Charges 386 4le (30) 2,627 15% 2,627
14 Subsidies & Grants ) 14 (14) 87 (0%) 87
1 Interest Revenue i] 3 13% 3
5 Qther Revenue 14 15 (1) 99 15% 99
2,580 Total Everyday Revenue 2,196 2,206 (10) 17,583 12% 17,583
Everyday Expenditure
1,372 Personnel Costs 1,29 1,381 85 8714 15% 8,714
397 Operating & Maintenance Costs 401 485 85 3,473 12% 3,473
56 Professional Costs 28 39 11 269 10% 269
&3 Administration Expenses 66 87 21 604 11% 604
84 Property Costs 81 97 17 569 14% 569
19 Finance Costs** 19 44 25 265 7% 265
274 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 425 444 20 2,664 16% 2,664
Gains & Losses
2,286 Total Everyday Expenditure 2,315 2,577 263 16,559 14% 16,559
294 Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (119) (371) 253 1,024 (12%) 1,024
Capital Revenue
Capital Revenue {1) 79 {80) 1,372 1,092 (280)
Total Capital Revenue (1) 79 {80) 1,372 0% 1,092 (280)
294 Operating Surplus/(Deficit) (119) (293) 173 2,396 (5%) 2,116 (280)

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead sllacation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciotion & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are explained in the Counci activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
No significant variances to report.

The comments below explain the material variance between annual approved budget and annual forecast.

Capital Revenue: ($280K) unfavourable.

The challenges securing funding for the Zoo Waiwhakareke Entry Precinct stage 1B has resulted in reduced external revenue expectations. The
corresponding external revenue expectation will be planned for the zoo animal enclosure in 2026/2027.
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Attachment 2

S000

Last Year
YTD

S000

VENUES, TOURISM AND MAJOR EVENTS

Claudelands | FMG Stadium Waikato | Seddon Park | i-SITE | Tourism and Events Funding

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
soe0 se00 s000 s000 S000 5000
YTD Annual % Annual Annual
Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

YTD Budget Annual

Variance Approved Budget

Fav/(Unfav) Budget Spent Forecast

(Approved)

Everyday Revenue
1,884 Rates** 2,304 2,449 {145) 19,149 12% 19,149
733 Fees & Charges 1,180 894 286 5,183 23% 5183
Subsidies & Grants
9 Interest Revenue 4 5 (1) 29 13% 29
119 QOther Revenue 125 122 3 734 17% 734
2,744 Total Everyday Revenue 3,614 3,470 143 25,095 14% 25,095
Everyday Expenditure
887 Personnel Costs 1,023 1121 97 6,747 15% 6,747
548 Operating & Maintenance Costs 775 762 {13) 5243 15% 5,243
13 Professional Costs 4 34 30 240 2% 240
387 Administration Expenses 416 480 64 1,975 21% 1,975
199 Property Costs 228 209 (20) 1287  18% 1,287
213 Finance Costs™* 215 277 62 1,663 13% 1,663
827 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 1,178 971 (208) 5,822 20% 5,822
Gains & Losses
3,074 Total Everyday Expenditure 3,840 3,854 14 22,978 17% 22,978
(330) Everyday Surplus/{Deficit)* (226) (383) 157 2,118 (11%) 2,118
Capital Revenue
Capital Revenue
Total Capital Revenue
(330) Operating Surplus/{Deficit) {226) (383) 157 2,118 (11%) 2,118

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations

** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are explained in the Council activity stotements

Material variances as explained below:
Fees & Charges: $286k favourable.

Fees & Charges are favourable due to an unbudgeted event activity in the international sport space.
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Attachment 2 ARTS AND COMMUNITY
Libraries | C ity Develop t | Arts Pr ion | Theatres
FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021
3000 3000 S000 3000 3000 3000 3000 3000
Last Year YTD Budget Annuat seAnntal Annual Anndal
udge . n
YTD YT D Actual {Approved) Variance Approved Budget Forecast Variance

Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/(Unfav)

Everyday Revenue

2,113 Rates** 1,735 1,711 24 14,332 12% 14,332
44 Fees & Charges 77 83 (7) 501 15% 501
Subsidies & Grants 20 20 2 1019% 2

Interest Revenue
QOther Revenue

2,157 Total Everyday Revenue 1,832 1,795 37 14,834 12% 14,834
Everyday Expenditure

1,054 Personnel Costs 1,091 1,017 (74) 6,136 18% 6,136

103 Operating & Maintenance Costs 88 103 14 976 9% 976

12 Professional Costs 111 113 2 198 56% 198

1,120 Administration Expenses 1,136 1,164 28 11,303 10% 11,303

51 Property Costs 42 61 20 355 12% 355

Finance Costs™* 25 24 148 0% 148

445 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 449 471 22 2,823 16% 2,823
Gains & Losses 1]

2,784 Total Everyday Expenditure 2,917 2,953 37 21,940 13% 21,940

(627) Everyday Surplus/{Deficit)* (1,085) (1,159) 74 (7,105) 15% (7,105)

Capital Revenue

Capital Revenue 44 (44) 265 0% 265
Total Capital Revenue a4 (44) 265 0% 265
(627) Operating Surplus/{Deficit) {1,085) (1,114) 30 {6,840) 16% (6,840)

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are expluined in the Council activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
No significant variances to report.

5 21/09/20212:13 pm
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Attachment 2 PARKS AND RECREATION

Community Parks | Natural Areas | Streetscapes | Sports Parks | Playgrounds | Cemeteries and Crematorium | Pools | Indoor Recreation

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000 5000 5000 S000 5000 S000 5000 5000
Last Year T Annual % Annual Annual Annual
D YT D Actual lAppr:’i?t Variance Approved Budget — Variance

Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/(Unfav)

Everyday Revenue
3,535 Rates™* 3,690 3,609 81 30,355 12% 30,355
1,552 Fees & Charges 1,152 1,153 0 7,693 15% 7,693
Subsidies & Grants 1 (1) 7 2% 7
10 Interest Revenue 5 6 (1) 34 13% 34
26 Other Revenue 46 26 20 195 23% 195
5,123 Total Everyday Revenue 4,893 4,795 98 38,284 13% 38,284
Everyday Expenditure
2,172 Personnel Costs 2,347 2,315 (32) 14,215 17% 14,215
1,532 Operating & Maintenance Costs 861 799 (62) 8,133 11% 8,133
272 Professional Costs 65 74 9 1,895 3% 1,895
180 Administration Expenses 208 200 (8) 681 31% 681
176 Property Costs 174 200 25 1,149 15% 1,149
251 Finance Costs** 253 342 90 2,054 12% 2,054
978 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 1,313 1,132 {181) 6,792 19% 6,792
31 Gains & Losses 34 {(34)
5,593 Total Everyday Expenditure 5,254 5,062 (192) 34,919 15% 34,919
(470) Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (361) (268) (94) 3,365  (11%) 3,365
Capital Revenue
295 Development Contributions** 427 125 302 821 52% 821
3 Capital Revenue 3 33 (300 198 2% 198
141 Vested Assets** 2 2
439 Total Capital Revenue 432 158 273 1,019 42% 1,019
(31) Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 71 (109) 180 4,384 2% 4,384

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations

** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are expluined in the Councit activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
No significant variances to report.

) 21/09/20212:13 pm

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN Page 56 of 176



Attachment 2

5000

YTD
2019/20

Everyday Revenue

SAFETY

Animal Education and Control | Environmental Health | Alcohol Licensing | Public Safety | Civil Defence

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

YT D Actual

¥YTD Budget

(Approved)

Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

Annual
Approved
Budget

% Annual
Budget
Spent

Annual
Forecast

Annual
Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

491 Rates** 565 651 (85) 4,680 12% 4,680
657 Fees & Charges 1,030 944 86 2,090 49% 2,090
8 Subsidies & Grants 8 9 ) 53 16% 53
Interest Revenue
12 QOther Revenue 9 5 4 31 31% 31
1,168 Total Everyday Revenue 1,613 1,609 4 6,853 24% 6,853
Everyday Expenditure
702 Personnel Costs 742 790 47 4,751 16% 4,751
67 Operating & Maintenance Costs 85 141 57 1,335 6% 1,335
6 Professional Costs 11 24 13 146 8% 146
a4 Administration Expenses 35 37 2 341 10% 341
3 Property Costs 3 4 1 26 13% 26
Finance Costs™* 2 0% 2
14 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 17 15 2) 89 19% 89
Gains & Losses
837 Tatal Everyday Expenditure 893 1,012 119 6,691 13% 6,691
331 Everyday Surplus/{Deficit)* 720 597 124 162 444% 162
Capital Revenue
Capital Revenue
Total Capital Revenue
331 Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 720 597 124 162 444% 162

* Everyday surp lus/(deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are expluined in the Councit activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
No significant variances to report.
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Attachment 2

5000

Last Year
YTD

Everyday Revenue

5000

YT D Actual

5000

¥YTD Budget

(Approved)

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT

Guid, | Building Control

City Planning | Pl

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

5000
Annual
Approved
Budget

5000

% Annual
Budget
Spent

5000

Annual
Forecast

5000
Annual
Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

742 Rates** 1,492 1,476 16 11,396 13% 11,396
1,975 Fees & Charges 2,090 1,624 465 10,410 20% 9,745 (665)
48 Subsidies & Grants
3 Interest Revenue 1 2 {) 11 13% 11
QOther Revenue
2,769 Total Everyday Revenue 3,583 3,102 481 21,817 16% 21,152 {665)
Everyday Expenditure
1,606 Personnel Costs 1,821 1,876 55 11,327 16% 11,327
95 Operating & Maintenance Costs 48 67 19 400 12% 400
468 Professional Costs 561 655 94 4,807 12% 4,807
132 Administration Expenses 187 87 {100} 1,353 14% 1,353
9 Property Costs 12 14 2 86 14% 86
80 Finance Costs™* &1 98 17 585 14% 585
1 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 1 1 5 0% 5
Gains & Losses
2,391 Total Everyday Expenditure 2,708 2,797 89 18,563 15% 18,563
378 Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* 875 305 570 3,255 27% 2,590 (665)
Capital Revenue
Capital Revenue
Total Capital Revenue
378 Operating Surplus/{Deficit) 875 305 570 3,255  27% 2,590 {665)

* Everyday surp lus/(deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are expluined in the Councit activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
Fees & Charges: 5465k favourable.

This is due to higher than budgeted levels of activity in the Building Control unit. In July 2021 there was a mix of a larger number of consents than

usual, along with some high value consents.

The comments below explain the material variance between annual approved budget and annual forecast.

Fees & Charges: 5665k unfavourable.

Correcting revenue which will not be received. Budget error in LTP. The spend associated with this has been repurposed to the Hamilton Urban

Growth Strategy review work.
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Attachment 2

WATER SUPPLY

Water Treatment | Water Storage | Water Distribution

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000
ATt YTD Budget YTD Annual % Annual Annual Annual
TD YTD Actual {Approved) Variance Approved Budget Forecast Variance
Fav/(Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/{Unfav)
Everyday Revenue
3,632 Rates™* 2,802 3,015 (212) 21,616 13% 21,616
(64) Fees & Charges 204 (27) 231 (160)  (127%) (160}
Subsidies & Grants 1 (1) 4 0% 4
29 Interest Revenue 18 10 9 60 31% 60
Other Revenue
3,597 Total Everyday Revenue 3,025 2,999 26 21,520 14% 21,520
Everyday Expenditure
483 Personnel Costs 713 308 95 4,388 16% 4,388
458 Operating & Maintenance Costs 692 689 (3) 4,502 15% 4,502
66 Professional Costs 132 167 34 1,099 12% 1,099
14 Administration Expenses 9 10 2 66 13% 66
354 Property Costs 302 347 45 2,268 13% 2,268
435 Finance Costs** 438 629 190 3,581 12% 2,581 1,000
1,207 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 1,350 1,392 42 8,349 16% 8,349
E] Gains & Losses 42 (42)
3,025 Total Everyday Expenditure 3,677 4,041 364 24,253 15% 23,253 1,000
572 Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (653) {1,043) 390 {2,733) 24% {1,733) 1,000
Capital Revenue
1,537 Development Contributions™* 1,154 852 302 5111 23% 5111
91 Capital Revenue 448 8 440 50 897% 50
163 Vested Assets** 255 298 (44) 1,790 14% 1,790
1,791 Total Capital Revenue 1,857 1,159 698 6,951 27% 6,951
2,363 Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 1,204 116 1,088 4,217 29% 5,217 1,000

* Everyday surplus/{deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations

** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are explained in the Council activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
Fees & Charges: $231k favourable.

The favourable variance is due to funds received from the Department of Internal Affairs for the Water Reform Stimulus project. This offsets
operational expenditure for approved projects and costs including professional services costs and operating & maintenance costs.

Capital Revenue: $440k favourable.

Contributions toward new connections exceed budget due to increased applications. This revenue will offset capital installation costs. Funds received
from the DIA to offset Water Reform Stimulus capital expenditure is also part of the favourable variance.
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Attachment 2 WASTEWATER

Wastewater Collection | Wastewater Treatment | Wastewater Disposal

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000
Last Y. YT Annual % Annual A I Annual
as‘;:TDe at YT D Actual Y;rA[:;:ig;t Variance Approved Budget Fo?:::s t Variance
Fav/(Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/(Unfav)
Everyday Revenue
3,768 Rates** 3,849 3,593 256 29,183 13% 29,183
1,143 Fees & Charges 630 728 (98) 6,836 9% 6,836
Subsidies & Grants 1 (1) 8 0% g
20 Interest Revenue 9 11 {2) 67 13% 67
QOther Revenue
4,931 Total Everyday Revenue 4,487 4,333 154 36,094 12% 36,094
Everyday Expenditure
905 Personnel Costs 1,088 1,369 282 7,752 14% 7,752
1,242 Operating & Maintenance Costs 1,416 1,323 {93) 7,621 19% 7,621
94 Professional Costs 246 177 {69) 1,055 23% 1,055
29 Administration Expenses 23 24 1 197 12% 197
309 Property Costs 336 371 35 2,389 14% 2,389
490 Finance Costs™* 494 688 194 3,917 13% 2,517 1,400
1,311 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 2,109 2,153 44 12,917 16% 12,917
Gains & Losses 333 (333)
4,379 Total Everyday Expenditure 6,045 6,106 61 35,848 17% 34,448 1,400
552 Everyday Surplus/{Deficit)* (1,557) (1,772) 215 246 (633%) 1,646 1,400
Capital Revenue
2,188 Development Contributions** 1,803 1,521 282 9,123 20% 9,123
232 Capital Revenue 266 136 131 813 33% 813
205 Vested Assets™* 455 552 (97) 3,312 14% 3,312
2,625 Total Capital Revenue 2,524 2,209 315 13,249  19% 13,249
3,177 Operating Surplus/{Deficit) 967 436 531 13,495 7% 14,895 1,400

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead allacation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciotion & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are explained in the Counci octivity statements

Material variances as explained below:

Personnel Costs: $282k favourable.

The favourable variance is mainly due to short term staff vacancies.

Gains & Losses: ($333k) unfavourable.

Unfavourable variance is due to the disposal of varicus assets including a wastewater pipe in Temple View.

Capital Revenue: $131k favourable.

Contributions toward new connections exceed budget due to increased applications. This revenue will offset capital installation costs. Funds received
from the DIA to offset Water Reform Stimulus capital expenditure is also part of the favourable variance.

i0 21/09/20212:13 pm
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Attachment 2

STORMWATER

Stormwater Network

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000
ATt YTD Budget YTD Annual % Annual Annual Annual
TD YTD Actual {Approved) Variance Approved Budget Forecast Variance
Fav/(Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/{Unfav)
Everyday Revenue
836 Rates™* 2,247 2,222 26 17,722 13% 17,722
19 Fees & Charges 251 43 208 258 97% 258
Subsidies & Grants 1 (1) 4 0% 4
5 Interest Revenue 2 3 (1) 18 13% 18
Other Revenue
860 Total Everyday Revenue 2,501 2,268 232 18,003 14% 18,003
Everyday Expenditure
301 Personnel Costs 471 405 (B5) 2,215 21% 2,215
124 Operating & Maintenance Costs 124 33 (91) 390 32% 390
21 Professional Costs 181 94 (88) 583 31% 583
3 Administration Expenses 5 3 1 40 13% 40
28 Property Costs 29 47 18 466 6% 466
134 Finance Costs** 135 198 63 1,129 12% 1,129
1,350 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 1,785 1,641 {145} 9,842 18% 9,842
Gains & Losses
1,964 Total Everyday Expenditure 2,731 2,424 (307) 14,665 19% 14,665
(1,103) Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (230) {155) (74) 3,339 (7%) 3,339
Capital Revenue
667 Development Contributions™* 268 822 {553) 4,929 5% 4,929
91 Capital Revenue 277 338 (61) 2,025 14% 2,025
{105) Vested Assets™* 353 800 (447) 4,800 7% 4,800
653 Total Capital Revenue 898 1,959 (1,061) 11,754 8% 11,754
(450) Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 668 1,804 (1,136) 15,093 4% 15,093

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations

** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are expluined in the Councit activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
Fees & Charges: 5208k favourable.

The favourable variance is due to funds received from the Department of Internal Affairs for the Water Reform Stimulus project. This offsets

operational expenditure for approved projects and costs including professional services costs and operating & maintenance costs.

i7
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Attachment 2 TRANSPORT

Transport Network | Transport Centre | Parking Management

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000
YT Annual % Annual Annual
Last Year YTD Budget Annual -
YTD {Approved) Variance Approved Budget Forecast Variance
Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/{Unfav)
Everyday Revenue
4,307 Rates™* 5,710 5,607 103 47,166 12% 47,166
818 Fees & Charges 821 775 46 4,179 20% 4,179
1,390 Subsidies & Grants 1,29 1,262 34 7,858 16% 7,858
23 Interest Revenue 10 13 (3) 78 13% 78
303 Other Revenue 487 516 (29) 2,929 17% 2,929
6,842 Total Everyday Revenue 8,325 8,173 151 62,210 13% 62,210
Everyday Expenditure
742 Personnel Costs 1,141 1,218 77 6,361 18% 6,361
2,889 Operating & Maintenance Costs 2,418 2,391 (27) 19,423 12% 19,423
70 Professional Costs 503 214 (289) 1,809 28% 1,809
218 Administration Expenses 310 211 {99) 724 43% 724
394 Property Costs 366 437 71 2,327 16% 2,327
567 Finance Costs™* 572 499 (73) 2,844 20% 2,844
2,715 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 3,638 3,426 (212) 20,550 18% 20,550
Gains & Losses 61,103 0% 61,103
7,594 Total Everyday Expenditure 8,948 8,395 {553) 115,142 8% 115,142
(752) Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (623) (222) (402) (52,931) 1% (52,931)
Capital Revenue
1,960 Development Contributions** 1,548 1,940 (392) 11,638 13% 11,638
7,442 Capital Revenue 8,524 12,186 (3,662) 96,865 9% 96,865
5,893 Vested Assets™* 2,774 4,099 (1,325) 24,589 11% 24,589
15,295 Total Capital Revenue 12,846 18,225 (5,379) 133,092 10% 133,092
14,543 Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 12,223 18,004 (5,781) 80,161  15% 80,161

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead allocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are expluined in the Council activity statements

Material variances as explained below:

Professional Costs: ($289k) unfavourable.

The unfavourable result is due to works progressing on the Waikato Metro Spatial plan. This budget was available in the previous financial year and
is now requested to be included in this financial year. (See Financial Strategy section)

Capital Revenue: {53,662k} unfavourable.

Revenue from subsidies are tracking below budget as we have been waiting on confirmation for capital programme funding from Waka Kotahi NZ
Transport Agency.
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Attachment 2

5000

Last Year
YTD

Everyday Revenue

5000

5000

YTD Budget

(Approved)

Refuse Coll

RUBBISH AND RECYCLING

| Waste Minimi

| Landfill Site Management

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5600

Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

5000
Annual
Approved
Budget

5000
% Annual
Budget
Spent

5000

Variance
Fav/(Unfav)

874 Rates™* 1,016 1,004 12 8,581 12% 8,581
(21) Fees & Charges {11) {13) 2 (71) 16% (71)
136 Subsidies & Grants 148 161 (12) 642 23% 642
Interest Revenue i] 1 13% 1
30 Qther Revenue 72 74 (2) 444 16% 444
1,018 Total Everyday Revenue 1,225 1,226 (1) 9,597 13% 9,597
Everyday Expenditure
262 Personnel Costs 172 149 23) 918 19% 918
1,252 Operating & Maintenance Costs 1,041 1,301 261 7,811 13% 7,811
103 Professional Costs 5 4 (1) 351 1% 391
2 Administration Expenses 1 2 1 {1,100) (0%) {1,100}
8 Property Costs 4 13 9 72 6% 72
11 Finance Costs** 11 14 3 216 5% 216
95 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 81 93 12 560 15% 560
Gains & Losses
1,729 Total Everyday Expenditure 1,314 1,576 262 8,867 15% 8,867
(711) Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (89) (350) 261 731 (12%) 731
Capital Revenue
Capital Revenue
Total Capital Revenue
(711) Operating Surplus/{Deficit) (89) (350) 261 731 (12%) 731

* Everyday surplus/(deficit) excludes overhead sllacation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finonce Costs, Depreciotion & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are explained in the Counci activity statements

Material variances as explained below:
Operating & Maintenance Costs: $261k favourable.

The favourable result is due to kerbside refuse tonnage being lower than anticipated and lower bin maintenance costs.

i3
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Attachment 2

5000

Last Year
YTD

Everyday Revenue

Annual % Annual

YTD Budget

Variance Approved Budget
Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent

YTD Actual
(Approved)

OVERHEADS

CE's Office | Corporate | Strategy and Communications | Strategic Property

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

Annual
Forecast

Annual
Variance
Fav/{Unfav)

(58) Rates™* (79) (50) (29) (302) 26% (302)
232 Fees & Charges 218 196 21 1,178 18% 1,178
Subsidies & Grants
Interest Revenue
422 Other Revenue 388 360 28 2,160 18% 2,160
596 Total Everyday Revenue 526 506 20 3,036 17% 3,036
Everyday Expenditure
3,618 Personnel Costs 3,852 3,829 (23) 22,704 17% 22,704
1,006 Operating & Maintenance Costs 1,417 1,497 &0 9,977 14% 9,977
257 Professional Costs 407 447 40 3,394 12% 3,394
381 Administration Expenses 929 1,020 g1 7,051 13% 7,051
111 Property Costs 113 135 22 829 14% 829
5 Finance Costs** (4) 34 39 207 (2%) 207
748 Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** 1,071 958 {113) 5,746 19% 5,746
(47) Gains & Losses {756) 0% {756)
6,079 Total Everyday Expenditure 7,785 7,921 136 49,151 16% 49,151
(5,483) Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* (7,259) (7,415) 156 (46,115) 16% (46,115)
(5,483) Operating Surplus/{Deficit) (7,259) (7,415) 156 {46,115) 16% (46,115)

¥ Everyday surplus/{deficit) excludes overhead sllacation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finance Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets varianees are explained in the Councif activity statements

Material variances as explained below:

No significant variances to report.
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Attachment 2 GENERAL

FOR THE MONTH ENDED 31 AUGUST 2021

5000
YTD Annual % Annual Annual
Last Year YTD Budget Varl A d Budget Annual Varl
YTD {Approved) ariance pprove udge P ariance
Fav/{Unfav) Budget Spent Fav/(Unfav)
Everyday Revenue
Rates™*
Fees & Charges
Subsidies & Grants
{12) Interest Revenue (11) (11)
Other Revenue 630 630 {) 8,188 8% 8,188
(12) Total Everyday Revenue 619 630 (11) 8,188 8% 8,188
Everyday Expenditure
Personnel Costs {
Operating & Maintenance Costs {115) {115) (691) 0% (691)
Professional Costs (17} (17} (100) 0% (100)
Administration Expenses {115) {115) {(691) 0% {(691)
Property Costs
26 Finance Costs** 59 (84) (143) (341)  (17%) (341)
Depreciation & Amortisation Expense** {104 {104) {(625) 0% {(625)
1,911 Gains & Losses (3,702) 3,702
1,936 Total Everyday Expenditure (3,643) {436) 3,208 (2,448) 149% (2,448)
(1,948) Everyday Surplus/(Deficit)* 4,262 1,066 3,197 10,636 40% 10,636
(1,948) Operating Surplus/(Deficit) 4,262 1,066 3,197 10,636  40% 10,636

* Everyday surp lus/(deficit) excludes overhead alocation. Refer to Overheads activity statement for overhead results and variance explanations
** Rates Revenue, Finance Costs, Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses, Development Contribution and Vested Assets variances are explained in the Council activity statements

Material variances as explained below:

Gains & Losses: 53,702k favourable.

Movement in market interest rates have resulted in a gain in the fair value of interest rate swaps.

Note: negative budgets

The negative budgets are due to CE savings target which is set to the whole organisation. This nets out across the Council.
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TREASURY REPORT

Year to date 31 August 2021

Investment and Cash Position

Treasury cash investments consist of:

Attachment 3

Actual Budget Variance
Cash Investments $S000 $000 $S000

Aug-21 Jun-22 Fav/ (Unfav)
Cash on call 40,700 not apportioned not apportioned
Term deposit 55,000 not apportioned not apportioned
Closing bank balances 166 not apportioned not apportioned
LGFA borrower notes 9,380 not apportioned not apportioned
Total cash investments 105,246 61,526 43,720

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

The Council's investments are managed on a regular basis, with sufficient minimum immediate cash
reserves maintained. To best manage funding gaps, Council's financial investment maturities are
matched with Council's forecast cash flow requirements.

Borrowing Position
Council borrowings is the external portion of debt held with the Local Government Funding Agency
(LGFA), banks, Ministry of Business, Innovation and Employment and finance lease liabilities.

Gross Borrowings - YTD versus Budget 2021/22

$000
580,652
0 100,000 200,000 300,000 400,000 500,000 600,000 700,000 800,000 900,000

Actual Gross Borrowings m Planned Gross Borrowings

Borrowing debt has increased at 31 August 2021. A borrowing of $50m from the Local Government
Funding Agency was made on 16 August 2021. Council's funding and liquidity risk is assessed by
PwC Treasury Advisors prior to all borrowing activity.

The LGFA remains Council's most favoured and
low cost source of funding. \

LGFA borrowings

m Bank borrowings
HIF loan
Commercial paper
Bonds

m Finance leases

91%
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Interest Rates

Council manages interest rate risk to reduce uncertainty relating to interest rate fluctuations through
fixing of interest costs. The exposure to interest rate risk is managed and mitigated through the risk

control limits as set out in the Investment and Liability Management Policy.
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There is an inverse relationship between Council's swap liability and the market swap interest rate.

Swap Liability and Interest Rate

HCC Swap Liability

:-,/’\r :-v'\« Ay
0

i

g N
SRR

ﬂ:\'
&

A

SH

7 Year Market Swap Rate

2.00%
1.80%
1.60%
1.40%
1.20%
1.00%
0.80%
0.60%
0.40%
0.20%
0.00%

As the market swap interest rate increases Council's swap liability decreases and a gain is then

recognised on the interest rate swap. Conversely, a decrease in the market swap interest rate results

in an increase in Council’s swap liability and a loss is then recognised on the interest rate swap.

The effect of the change in the 7 year market swap rate on the monthly movement of Council's swap

liability is indicated below:

M 7 Year Market Swap Movement in Swaps
onth - $000
Fav/ (Unfav)

Aug-20 0.39% (432)
Sep-20 0.26% (1,152)
Oct-20 0.27% 204
Nov-20 0.66% 6,968
Dec-20 0.74% 1,378
Jan-21 0.81% 4,069
Feb-21 1.59% 12,251
Mar-21 1.50% (948)
Apr-21 1.41% (1,948)
May-21 1.68% 4,032
Jun-21 1.62% (327)
Jul-21 1.63% 595
Aug-21 1.78% 3,107
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Attachment4

Adjustment to the 2021/22 opening position

Through the 2020/21 Annual Plan, a net debt of $631m was forecast. This was used as the baseline
for the debt calculation for year 1 of the 2021-31 Long-Term Plan. Assumptions were then applied to
this baseline, and included capital deferrals, the deferral of the Waikato Theatre Grant and an
assumption of lower borrowings. Overall, these assumptions lowered the expected net debt for
2020/21. The actual net debt for 2020/21 tracked slightly lower than the assumptions had allowed
for. This was as a result of:

1. Revenue tracked favourably to budget. Both Capital Revenue and Fees & Charges exceeded
budget, as outlined in the 30 June 2021 Annual Monitoring Report.

2. Acapital deferral assumption of $65m was made for the 2020/21 Annual Plan year and was
lower than expected at $51.5m at 20 June 2021.

Debt to Revenue:

Net debt is an average of 5% lower across the 10 years. This is especially felt in 2026 where the debt
to revenue ratio was close to the limit, at 276%. While it does provide more breathing room it is
prudent to consider the impact of future significant forecast adjustments, as captured in the
Financial Performance & Strategy Report.

Debt to Revenue

350%

250%

150% -

100%

50% -

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
mm2021-31 LTP mm Forecast - -Debt to Revenue Limit
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Net Debt:

Net Debt

$1,200m

$1,000m

$800m

$600m

$400m

$200m

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

W 2021-31 LTP

2026 2027 2028

 Forecast

2029 2030 2031

Balancing the Books:

Balancing the books remains unchanged. The impact of lower finance costs as a result of lower debt
has been captured as part of the significant forecast adjustments in the Financial Performance &
Strategy Report.

Balancing the Books
$110m

NZDSM

-$10m

2021 2024 2025

M 2021-31 LTP

2028 2029 2030 2031

m Forecast
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Attachment 5

Waiwhakareke Predator Proof Fence - Feasibility Study - Revised Budget

The vision for Waiwhakareke is “Te Kahu Ao Tuuroa o Rangitara - To create a world-class ecological
island in an urban environment”. Waiwhakareke was established in 2004 and opened to the public
in 2019 with the long-term aim of reconstructing the natural forest, wetland and lake ecosystems
present in pre-European times. It is anticipated that the 65.5ha park will serve as a focus for
Hamilton’s wider biodiversity restoration, including lakes and lakeshores, the Waikato River, its
banks and unique gullies, and other parks with current or potential natural values (estimated to be
750 hectares).

Waiwhakareke Predator Proof Fence was submitted as project for consideration as part of the 2021-
31 Long-Term Plan but did not make the list of approved LTP-funded capital projects. At that time, it
was envisioned that along with revegetation, a predator proof fence should enable the development
of a translocation programme with the Hamilton Zoo, reintroducing fauna into this unique predator
proof sanctuary. A predator free sanctuary would allow species to flourish in an urban environment
and spill over to the other parts of the city, providing residents and visitors with enhanced recreation
and tourism opportunities.

The 2021-31 LTP, did however include funding of $130k for a feasibility investigation and was
included in Year 4, subject to 50% external funding being secured.

An opportunity exists to expedite this feasibility study to gain greater understanding of the

potential future options for the development of the park as well as sequencing and

timing. Completing the study now would enable this information to be considered through the
22/23 Annual Plan and upcoming asset management planning processes. In order to complete the
work now, the reallocation of operational funding for this feasibility of $130k forward from year 4 to
the current financial year is required. External funding options have been explored, it been
determined there are no suitable options available for funding that align with the proposed project
timeline. Staff have confirmed that an offset or the external funding component of $65k can be
found within current parks operational budgets.

Council has been approached by a major media outlet which has expressed interest in partnering
with Council in the predator proof fence project by helping fund raising for the construction of the
fence should this be the future course of action.

The recommendation aligns with several of Council’s existing Plans, policies and strategies, including:

e Waikwhakareke Natural Heritage Park Reserve Management Plan- the Reserve Management
Plan was approved by Council in 2011, and sets out short, medium and long term projects to
develop Waiwhakareke NHP. Predator Proof fencing is identified as one of the long term
outcomes in the Plan.

e Zoo Master Plan - A key driver of the Zoo Master plan is to leverage off the close proximity
to Waiwhakareke NHP to improve and promote local conservation. The predator proof fence
has been highlighted as a long term way to enable breeding programmes of native fauna to
thrive.

e Nature in the City Strategy- predator Proof fencing will contribute towards the vision,
purpose and outcomes of the strategy through an increased investment in nature. Fencing is

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Page 70 of 176



particularly well linked to Outcome Area 1: We invest in the continued growth of nature in
Kirikiriroa/Hamilton.

If the recommendation is not approved, the feasibility study will be undertaken in Year 4 of the Long
Term Plan, as originally signalled.
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Register of Significant Forecast Changes

$000's

88=Balancing the booksimpact
ND = Net Debt impact
Nurbers in brackets have an adverse impact.

Date Change 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031
Capital Deferrals BB - - - - - - - - - -

ND (5,080 (5,000) 15,060) (5,060) (5060 (5,080 15,080) 15,060) 15,060) 15,060)

[ Operational Adjustments BB 1,762 ) 800 841 863 227 75 764 734 743

ND 1,762 2636 3436 4278 5146 5972 6,727 7491 325 9034

Revised Bucget Adjustments ) 1647 - - 3 - - o o o o

ND 1647) (647) (547) 1582) (582 Is82) (s82) (582 (582) (582)

Total Cumulative Impact on Balancing the Books 1,115 874 800 906 868 827 755 764 794 749
Total Impact on Net Debt {3,944) 3.070) 12,270) {1,364)  [496) 331 1,086 1,850 2,643 3,392
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Council Report

Committee: Finance Committee Date: 05 October 2021

Author: Candice Swanepoel Authoriser: David Bryant

Position: Business Performance Position: General Manager People and
Accountant Organisational Performance

Report Name: New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency - Annual Report 30 June

2021
Report Status Open
Purpose - Take
1. To inform the Finance Committee on the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency

(LGFA) Annual Report 30 June 2021 and letter to shareholders.

Staff Recommendation - Tuutohu-aa-kaimahi
2. That the Finance Committee:
a) receives the report; and

b) notes the achievements highlighted in the cover letter to shareholders Attachment 1 of
the staff report.

Executive Summary - Whakaraapopototanga matua

3. The LGFA governance structure is comprised of the New Zealand Government (20%) and thirty
Councils (80%), the LGFA Shareholders Council and the LGFA Board of Directors.

4, As a condition of Hamilton City Council’s shareholding, we are required to receive relevant
reporting.
5. The LGFA has an estimated market share of 79% of total council borrowing for the rolling

twelve-month period to 30 June 2021. This is slightly lower than the previous year at 86%,
however it remains high on a historical basis.

6. The Hamilton City Council remains compliant with all LGFA Financial Covenants.

7. The Annual Report 30 June 2021 reflects a Net Operating Surplus of $12M, which is a 13%
increase over the previous year’s result. This exceeded the Statement of Intent (SOI) forecast.

8. The financial strength of the LGFA was affirmed by credit rating agency S&P Global Ratings,
who upgraded the LGFA domestic credit rating to AAA (the highest possible rating). The LGFA’s
foreign currency rating is AA+.

9. The LGFA’s Annual Report 30 June 2021 has been audited by KPMG, as appointed by the
Auditor-General.
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10. The audit was completed on 30 August 2021 and KPMG expressed an unqualified audit
opinion.

11. Staff consider the matters in this report have a low level of significance and that the
recommendations comply with Council’s legal requirements.

Background - Koorero whaimaarama

12. The LGFA was established in December 2011 to provide long-dated borrowing, certainty of
access to markets and to reduce the borrowing costs for the local government sector.

13. Total membership is now 72 out of the 78 councils in New Zealand due to the addition of
Napier City, Central Otago, Kawerau, South Waikato and Waitaki District Councils over the past
year.

14. Under section 8 of the LGFA’s Statement of Intent (SOI), the Board aims to ensure that
Shareholders are informed of all major developments affecting LGFA’s state of affairs, while at
the same time recognising both LGFA’s obligations under NZX Listing Rules and that
commercial sensitivity may preclude certain information from being made public.

Legal and Policy Considerations - Whaiwhakaaro-aa-ture

15.  Staff confirm that matters and recommendations within this report comply with Council’s legal
and policy requirements.
Wellbeing Considerations - Whaiwhakaaro-aa-oranga tonutanga

16. The purpose of Local Government changed on the 14 May 2019 to include promotion of the
social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of communities in the present and for
the future (‘the 4 wellbeings’).

17. The subject matter of this report has been evaluated in terms of the 4 wellbeings during the
process of developing this report as outlined below.

18. The recommendations set out in this report are consistent with that purpose.

Risks - Tuuraru

19. There are no known risks associated with this matter.

Significance & Engagement Policy - Kaupapa here whakahira/anganui

Significance

20. Having considered the Significance and Engagement Policy, staff have assessed that the
matters in this report have a low level of significance.

Engagement

21. Community views and preferences are already known to the Council through the 2018-28 10-
Year Plan and the 2020/21 Annual Plan.

22. Given the low level of significance determined, the engagement level is low, and no further
engagement is required.

Attachments - Ngaa taapirihanga
Attachment 1 - Cover Letter to Shareholders

Attachment 2 - Annual Report 30 June 2021
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LGFA {

New Zealand Local
Government Funding Agency

Te PUtea KOwanatanga a-rohe

30 August 2021

Dear Shareholder
LGFA 2021 Annual Report

| have attached our Annual Report for the 12-month period to 30 June 2021 as required under
section 8 of our Statement of Intent (SOI). We are pleased to highlight another strong year for LGFA
that included several achievements.

1. We have made longer dated borrowing options available to an increased number of
council borrowers
By 30 June 2021, LGFA had loans outstanding of $12.10 billion. This is an increase over the
past year of $1.20 billion and we added five new council members to bring the number of
member councils to seventy-two. Councils and CCOs can now borrow for terms out to
sixteen years (2037). For the 12-month period to 30 June 2021, LGFA provided 79% of the
sector horrowing and we are appreciative of the support from our borrowing councils.

2. S&P Global Ratings upgraded our credit ratings following an upgrade to the Sovereign
credit rating
Our domestic credit rating was upgraded to the highest possible rating of AAA by S&P Global
Ratings while our foreign currency rating was also upgraded by one notch to AA+.

3. New products and increasing focus on sustainability
LGFA launched standby facilities for councils as a new product during the year and by 30 June
2021 we had $522 million of facilities in place with seven councils. CCO lending is now in
place with our first CCO loan transacted after balance date. A substantial amount of work
was undertaken on sustainability, and we have received ZeroCarbon certification from Toitd
Envirocare. We are in the process of forming a sustainability committee and launching
sustainable loans as a new product for councils in the coming year.

4, A strong financial position has ensured a dividend payment of 3.512% for shareholders
The financial strength of LGFA has been enhanced with a record Net Operating Profit of
$12.0 million for the 2020/21 year and Shareholder Equity of $94.7 million as at 30 June
2021. The value of our total assets is $14.485 billion. A $856,500 dividend has been declared
by the LGFA Board for the year ended 30 June 2021 and we will be sending out the dividend
notice to you shortly. The dividend rate is $0.03426 per paid up share and will be paid to you
on Friday 3 September.

New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited
Auckland Level 5, Walker Wayland Centre, 53 Fort Street
Wellington Level 8, City Chambers, 142 Featherston Street

PO Box 5704, Lambton Quay, Wellington 6145 | Phone +64 4 974 6530
Igfa.co.nz
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A copy of the Annual Report is attached and is also available on our website www.lgfa.co.nz. If you
would like a hard copy version, please contact jane.phelan@lgfa.co.nz.

We intend holding our Annual General Meeting (AGM) on Tuesday 23 November 2021 in Wellington
and will send out a Notice of AGM by Thursday 30 September 2021.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any comments or questions.

Kind regards

ML T=AL

Mark Butcher
Chief Executive

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN
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Message from the Chair
and Chief Executive

Forthe yearended 30 June 2021

2020-21was a year of achievements with record profitability, record lending and issuance volumes, o
credit rating upgrade to ‘AAA’ and CarbonZero certification. We welcomed new members and launched
new products while successfully navigating the financing challenges arising from COVID-19.

On behalf of the directors and management of
LGFA, we are pleased to record another period of
strong financial and non-financial performance
to 30 June 2021 and to highlight the following
developments over the past year.

Strong Financial and Operational
Performance

LGFA total interest income for the financial year

of $377.2 million was a 19% increase over the 2019-

20 financial year result of $370.2 million while net
operating profit of $12.0 million for the financial year
Was a 13.0% incredase over the 2019-20 financial year
result of $10.6 million.

Both net interest income and operating profit

were at record levels and exceeded the Statement
of Intent (SOI) forecasts due to the larger than
expected growth in council loans and the liquid
asset portfolio (LAP). Higher interest rates increased
income on the LAP and the introduction of standby
facilities as a new product for councils generated
additional revenue.

04 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Message from the Chair and Chief Executive
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Expenses have been managed under the SOI
budget over the financial year, primarily due to
reduced utilisation of the NZDM standby facility and
fewer Approved Issuer Levy (AlL) payments due to
lower offshore investor holdings relative to forecast
were positive. These savings were offset by higher
legal and NZX costs associated with increases in
both council lending and LGFA bond issuance.

Credit rating upgraded to AAA

Ahighlight over the past yearwas S&P Global
Ratings upgrading our long-term credit ratings to
‘AAA (local currency) and ‘AA¥ (foreign currency) on
22 February 2021. This followed the upgrading of the
New Zealand Government long term local currency
credit rating to ‘AAA’, Fitch Ratings have maintained
our local currency credit rating at ‘AA+ and our
foreign currency credit rating at ‘AA’ with a positive
outlook. Importantly, both rating agencies have
LGFA at the same credit rating as the New Zealand
Government.
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Borrowing activity

LGFA issued a record $3.27 billion of bonds over the
financial year and bonds on issue now total $13.68
billion (including $1 billion of treasury stock) across
ten maturities from 2022 to 2037. The amount issued
during the year was significantly more than the
average historical issuance amount of $1.6 billion
per financial year. The average term of our bond
issuance during the year at 8.7 years was also
longer than the prior year.

LGFA is the largest issuer of New Zealand dollar
securities afterthe New Zealand Government and
our bonds are amongst the largest and most liquid
New Zealand dollar debt instruments available for
investors. It is pleasing to note increased activity in
the secondary market in our bonds.

The performance of LGFA bonds overthe past year
was positive with LGFA bond spreads to NZGB little
changed across the yield curve except fora 15
basis points (bps) tightening in the 2033 maturity.
LGFA bond spreads to swap did however tighten,
reflecting the underlying positive credit market
sentiment with spreads narrowing between 19 bps
(2022 maturity) to 39 bps (2033 maturity). Qutright
yields rose between 30 bps (2022 maturity) and 67
bps (2027 maturity) over the year.

Lending to the sector

LGFA was established in December 2011 to provide
long-dated borrowing, certainty of access to
markets and to reduce the borrowing costs

for the local government sector. The original 31
shareholders including the Crown, remain as
shareholders. Over the past year, we added five
new members with Napier City, Central Otago,
Kawerau, South Waikato and Waitaki District
Councils joining. Total membership is now 72 out of
the 78 councils in New Zealand.

Long-dated lending to councils over the 2020-

21 year was a record $2.86 billion as councils
refinanced their May 2021 loans and increased their
borrowing to finance infrastructure projects. Qur
estimated market share of total council borrowing
of 79% was slightly lower than the previous year but
remained high on an historical basis. The average
tenor of long-dated borrowing by councils of 6.9
years over the 12-month period was significantly
longer than the prior year's 5.4 years.

Short-dated lending for terms less than 12 months
continues to be supported by councils and as at 30
June 2021, LGFA had $287 million of short-term loans
outstanding to 25 councils.

Congratulations Western Bay of Plenty District Council — winner of the coveted LGFA Supreme Award,
2021 LGFA Taituard Local Government Excellence Awards

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

LCFA ChairCra rg tdt'; With Miriam Taris, Chie

Executive at Western Bay of Plenty District Council

and Gary Allis, Deputy Chief Executive.
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The impact from COVID-19 and Three
Waters Reform Programme on the
sector and LGFA

The local government sector has faced a year of
change and uncertainty having to deal with several
climate related events, COVID-19 and two Central
Government led initiatives relating to the Three
Waters Reform Programme and Future for Local
Government Review.

The sector has displayed great resilience to the
impact from COVID-19. Most councils did not
experience d significant reduction in revenue which
meant their operational performance was not
impacted as much as initially feared. Additional
support forthe local authority sector has been
signalled by the Government through the $761
million first tranche of the water reform funding
and the $2.6 billion package for ‘shovel-ready’
infrastructure projects. This enabled councils to
plan for an increase in their capital expenditure
programmes which in turn acted to boost economic
activity within their local economies.

While LGFA has experienced a large increase

in borrowing demand from councils over the

past year, the debt capital markets have been
favourable for borrowers. The lowering of the
Official Cash Rate (OCR) by the Reserve Bank of
New Zealand (RBNZ) to 0.25% incentivised investors
to seek higheryielding fixed income investments
such as LGFA bonds. The RBNZ also adopted several
quantitative easing tools to provide additional
monetary policy stimulus to the economy such as
the inclusion of LGFA Bonds inte the Large Scale
Asset Programme (LSAP). This assisted LGFAn
issuing a larger amount of bonds with a longer
duration than normal.

LGFA is assisting on an as required basis, both
Central Government and our council members

as they work through the Three Waters Reform
Programme. The Government’s proposed Three
Water Reform Programme will be the largest
change to the local authority sectorin 30 years. The
Government have proposed that local authorities
will be assisted through the transition process and
that a support package will be provided to councils
to ensure that no council will be left financially
worse off following the transfer of their water
assets.

LGFA is also assisting the local government sector-
led initiative in developing a Ratepayer Financing
Scheme that may provide some financial relief to
ratepayers.

06 LGFAAnNual Report 2021 Message from the Chair and Chief Executive
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New products and initiatives

We continue to look to innovate with our products
for councils. During the year we launched standby
facility agreements for councils and by 30 June 2021
we have $515 million of agreements in place with
seven councils. This has in part led to anincrease in
the size of the LAP by $568 million over the past year
to a record $1.82 billion as we support our written
standbys with liquid assets.

We sought approval from shareholders to lend to
council-controlled organisations (CCOs) last year
and this has been more complex than expected
due to the unique and more complex nature of
CCOs compared to councils. However, we have
made good progress and are confident that we will
undertake our first loan to a CCO early in the new
financial year.

Increasing focus on sustainability

Sustainability plays an important part within the
local government sector and at LGFA.

Last year's annual report was our first report
prepared to meet the requirements of the Global
Reporting Initiative (GRI) Standards (core option)
and we have carried this over into this annual
report.

We have over the past year continued to increase
our focus on sustainability with the appointment of
a Head of Sustainability to the LGFA management
team. This key position will assist the development
of our sustainable lending programme for

councils in the coming year and introduce several
other sustainability initiatives across the wider
organisation.

We are also delighted to have received CarbonZero
certification from Toitu Envirocare during the year
and as an organisation we dare committed to
reducing our carbon emissions.

Acknowledgments

LGFA’s work cannot be implemented without the
support of our staff, fellow directors, Shareholders
Council, New Zealand Debt Management (NZDM)
and Central Government and it's agencies, all of
whose efforts should be acknowledged. We believe
our future remains positive and look forward to
working with all stakeholders in the year ahead.

bt : )
et . )
T M~ = —
Craig Stobo Marl Butcher
Chair Chief Executive
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LGFA staffgfrom left: Nick Howell,
Koshick Ranchhed, Andrew Michl, Jane Phelan,

Sumitha Kaluarachi, Ariadne Clarke, Mark Butcher,
Neil Bain. Absent: Maya Ranzinger

LGFA Board of Directors, from left:
Mike Timmer, Linda Robertson, Craig Stobo,
Philip Cory-Wright, John Avery, Anthony Quirk
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Performance highlights

Bonds issued over the
financial year

$3,270

million

Net operating profit

S12.0

million

- 13.0%

Increase over 2019-20 yedr
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Lending to councils
over the financial year

$2,858

million

Total interest income

$377.2

million

7 1.9%

Increase over 2019-20 yeadr
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Total assets at 30 June 2021 Liquidity ot 30 June 2021
S.I ll. ll. 8 5 $392 million
J Cash
million
$14,485
13074  Million $768 million

million Marketable securities
$10,382
million _—
sa49 58,835 $655 million
million ~_Million Deposits

$1,000 million
Treasury stock for repurchase

$500 million
Government committed
2017 2018 2019 2020 200 liquidity facility
Shareholderfunds :  Fully paid Retained
at 30 June 202 : shares ; earnings
S94.7 | $25.0 @ $697
: million : million

million

Shareholder equity

$94.7
million

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 e e

Borrower notes

$224

million

$83.6

$74.2 millien
million

$64.3
million

§539
million

Borrower notes are
subordinated debt
instruments which LGFA may
convert into redeemable
shares under prescribed
circumstances.

Performance highlights LGFA Annual Report 2021 09

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN Page 85 of 176

ltem 9

Attachment 2



Z Juawyoeny

6 W3l

Performance
against objectives

The statement of service performance details LGFA’s performance against the objectives and targets set
out in the LGFA Statement of Intent 2020-21 (SOI)

2020-21 performance objectives

The SOI sets out two primary performance objectives and seven additional objectives for the year ended 30
June 2021,

Primo ry Objectives LGFA will ensure its aosset book remains ot a
high standard by ensuring it understonds each

Participating Borrower's financial position, as well
as general issues confronting the Local Government
sector. Amongst other things, LGFA will:

LGFA will optimise the debt funding terms and
conditions for Participoting Borrowers. Among

other things, this includes: . . )
+ Proactively monitor and review each

Participating Borrower's financial position,
including its financial headroom under LGFA
policies;

» Providing interest cost savings relative to
alternative sources of financing;

» Offering flexible short and long-term lending
products that meet Participating Borrowers'

. . + Analyse finances at the Council group level
borrowing requirements;

o ) ) where appropriate and report to shareholders;
- Delivering operational best practice and

efficiency for its lending services;

+ Ensuring certainty of access to debt markets,
subject always to operating in accordance
with sound business proctice.

- Endeavourto visit each Participating Borrower
annually, including meeting with elected
officials as required, or if requested; and

» Toke o prooctive role to enhance the
financial strength and depth of the local
government debt market and work with key
central government and local government
stakeholders on sector and individual council
issues.

10 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Performance against objectives
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Additional objectives

LGFA has the following seven measurable

and achievable additional objectives which

complement the primary objective. Performance

against these objectives is reported annually.

LGFA will:

»  Mauointain LGFA’'s credit rating equal to the New
Zealand Government sovereign roting where
both entities are roted by the same Rating
Agency.

» Provide at least 85% of aggregate long-term
debt funding to the Local Government sector.

» Achieve the financial forecasts for net interest
income and operating expenses, including
provision for a shareholder dividend payment
in accordance with approved dividend policy.

+  Meet orexceed the Performance Targets.

+  Comply with the Hedlth and Safety at Work Act
2015,

+ Comply with the Shareholder Foundation
Polices and the Board-approved Treasury
Policy at all times.

+ Assist the local government sector with their
COVID-19 response.

Performance against primary objectives

This section sets out LGFA's performance for the
year ended 30 June 2021 against the two primary
objectives set out in the 2020-21 SOI.

LGFA will optimise the debt funding terms and
conditions for Participating Borrowers. Among
other things, this includes:

Providing interest cost savings relative to
afternative sources of financing;

LGFA continues to borrow at very competitive

spreads compared to the AAA rated Supranational,

Sovereign and Agency (SSA) issuers (who borrow in
the New Zealand debt capital markets), the domestic
banks and our closest peer issuer Kainga Ora.

LGFA lending bose margin was 20 bps for all
borrowing terms for the 2020-21year, which covers
our operating costs and also provides for capital

to grow in line with increases in our bolance sheet.

There is an additional credit margin added to the
base margin depending upon whether a council
has a credit rating or is 0 guarantor or non-
guarantor of LGFA.

The following chart shows a comparison of LGFA
borrowing spreads to swap compared with bank,
Kaingo Ora and SSA issuers in the New Zealand
domestic market.

Bank, $SA, Kainga Ora and LGFA NZD Curves - Spread to Swap (bps)
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Offering flexible short and long-term lending
products that meet Participating Borrowers’
borrowing requirements;

Both short and long-term borrowing have been

well supported by member councils:

+  As ot 30 June 2021 there were $287 million of
short-term loans outstanding to 25 councils,
with loan terms ranging between one month
and 12 months.

+ Overthe year ended 30 June 2021, 57 councils
borrowed $2,858 million in 421 new long-term
loans, ocross 62 maturity dates ranging
between 2021 and 2037

In July 2020, LGFA issued a new April 2037 bond
providing councils with the opportunity to extend
theirlong-term borrowing. The weighted average
borrowing term by councils over the year ended
30 June 2021 {excluding short-dated borrowing)
Was 69 years.

In December 2020, LGFA launched Standby Facility
Agreements as d new product that will help
reduce overall financing costs for councils. As

at 30 June 2021, seven councils had entered into

standby agreements with LGFA totalling $515 million.

Delivering operational best practice and
efficiency for its lending services;

Over the 12 months, LGFA operations successfully
settled, without error, 1,407 new trades and 11,368
cash flows in excess of $24 billion.

In the latest stakeholder survey result in August
2020, respondents recorded g 94% satisfaction
result to the question "How satisfied are you with
the LGFA settlement process?”

Ensuring certainty of access to debt markets,
subject always to operating in accordance with
sound business practice.

For LGFAto provide certainty of access to
markets for our council borrowers we need to
have a vibrant primary and secondary market

in LGFA bonds. The primary market is the new
issuance market and we measure strength with
participation by investors at our tenders through
bid-coverage ratios and successful issuance
yield ranges. The secondary market is the trading
of LGFA bonds following issuance and a healthy
market implies high turnover.

Over the twelve months, LGFA issued a record
83,270 million in bonds, through nine tenders and
two syndications. There were twelve bill tenders
over the year, with $610 million of bills on issue

at 30 June 2021, LGFA uses proceeds from LGFA
bills and LGFA bond issuances to fund lending
to councils and invests the balance in our liquid
asset portfolio.

12 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Performance against objectives
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LGFA maintains an Australian Medium-Term Notes
Programme which, to date, has not been used but
which provides LGFA with additional flexibility if
there is a market disrupting event in the future.

LGFA will ensure its asset book remains at a

high standard by ensuring it understands each
Participating Borrower’s financial position, as well as
general issues confronting the Local Government
sector. Amongst other things, LGFA will:

Proactively monitor and review each Participating
Borrower’s financial position, including its
financial headroom under LGFA policies;

LGFA reviews all councils’ financial stotements
on an onnual basis ond the ogendas and
management reports on an ongoing basis for all
councils on the LGFA borrower watch-list.

Participating Borrowers are required to complete
annual compliance certificates by the end of
November each year. We have received compliance
certificates from all Participating Borrowers and all
remained compliant as at 30 June 2020.

Analyse finances at the Council group level where
appropriate and report to shareholders;

No council has yet to request to LGFA that they be
measured on o group basis.

Endeavour to visit each Participating Borrower
annually, including meeting with elected officials
as required, or if requested; and

Following the lifting of COVID-19 travel restrictions,
LGFA commenced council visits in the later months
of 2020. Notwithstanding the later start to visits, LGFA
met with all council members over the 12 months.

Take a proactive role to enhance the financial
strength and depth of the local government debt
market and work with key centrail government
and local government stakeholders on sector and
individual council issues.

Over the year, LGFA management met with
representatives from Reserve Bank of New
Zealand, Department of Internal Affairs, Office of
the Auditor General, Taituard, the New Zealand
Debt Management section of the Treasury
{(NZDM) and members of the Three Waters Reform
Group. We held investor conference calls for
investors and banks relating to bond issuance
and provided updates on the impact on the
local government sector from COVID-19 and the
proposed water industry reforms.

LGFA continue to assist the sectorand the
advisers in finding ways for LGFA to play a
supporting role in providing solutions to off
balance sheet financing for councils and are
currently providing technical input into the
Cameron Partners proposed Ratepayer Financing
Scheme.
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Additional objectives

LGFA has the following seven measurable

and achievable additional objectives which
complement the primary objective. Performance
against these objectives is reported annually.
LGFA will:

Maintain LGFA’s credit rating equal to the New
Zealand Government sovereign rating where both
entities are rated by the same Rating Agency.

LGFA has an annual review process for our
credit ratings from S&P Global Ratings and Fitch
Ratings and meets with both agencies at least
annually. Formal review meetings were last held
in November 2020 with S&P Global Rotings and in
October 2020 with Fitch.

> S&P Global Ratings. On 22 February 2021, S&P
Global Ratings raised their long-term ratings
on LGFA to ‘AA+ foreign-currency and ‘AAA
local-currency and affirmed the short-term
ratings at ‘A-1+. Both ratings are on stable
outlook and the same as the New Zealand
Government.

+ Fitch Ratings (Fitch). On 4 November 2020,
Fitch reoffirmed our long-term local currency
credit rating as ‘AA+' and classified LGFA as a
government related entity (GRE) under its GRE
rating criteria. Fitch equalises our ratings with
those of the New Zealand Government. Our
foreign currency credit rating of ‘AA' remains
on positive outlook.

Provide at least 85% of aggregate long-term debt
funding to the Local Government sector.

LGFA's estimated market share of 79% for the rolling
twelve-month period to 30 June 2021 and our market
share is strong compared to our global peers.

Over the 12 months, five new councils became
members of LGFA, lifting total participating
members to 72. Napier Gity Council, South
Woaikato, Waitaki and Central Otogo District
Councils joined as guarantors and Kawerau
District Council joined as a non-guarantor.

Achieve the financial forecasts for net interest
income and operating expenses, including
provision for a sharehoider dividend payment in
accordance with approved dividend policy.

Net interest income (NI} for the year was $19.537
million, which was $0.708 million over budget, while
expenses of $7714 million were $0.255 million below
budget. Net operating profit of $12.007 million was
$1.146 million above budget.

Included in the NIl is the unredlised mark-to-
market movement in fixed rate swaps that are

not designated effective for hedge accounting

14 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Performance against objectives
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purposes. These swaps reduce exposure to fixed
rate loans made outside of the normal tender
process and to reduce mismatches between
borrowing and on-lending terms in cur balance
sheet. Over the year, there was an unrealised gain
on these swaps of $112 million.

Operating expenses for the year were $7.714 million

which is $0.255 million below budget.

+ Issuance and on-lending costs at $2.621 million
were $0.090 million below budget. Higher
issuance and lending volumes than forecast
resulted in higher costs for NZX, legal and
registry, offset by lower costs for the NZDM
facility fee.

+ Other operating costs at $4.038 million were
$0.013 million below budget. Lower travel /
accommodation and information technology
costs were key drivers for the overall positive
variance, offset by higher legal costs than
forecast and personnel costs, primarily due
the recruitment of new positions which were
not included in budget.

+  Approved Issuer Levy (AIL) payments of §1.055
million were $0.152 million below budget. We
pay AlL on behalf of offshore investors at the
time of semi-annual coupon paymentand
offshore investor holdings are just below our
S0l forecasts.

Comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act
2015,

LGFA has o Health and Safety Stoff Committee
and reporting on health and safety issues are
made to the LGFA board on a regular basis by the
Risk and Compliance Manager. There were no
heaolth and safety incidents during the year.

Comply with the Shareholder Foundation Polices
and the Board-approved Treasury Policy at all
times.

There were no compliance breaches during

the year.

Assist the local government sector with their
COVID-19 response.

On 30 June 2020, in response to COVID-19,
shareholders approved o change to LGFA's
Foundation Policy covenants to provide shortterm
relief to councils from any temporary reduction

in revenue and to allow councils to coinvest
alongside central Government in infrastructure
projects. For the financial year ending 30 June
2021, the net debt/total revenue covenant for
borrowers with an external credit rating of ot least
‘A+' has been increased from 250% to 300%.
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In addition to this direct response: .

» LGFA continues to provide input into the
Raotepayer Financing Scheme project that, if
successful, could offer temporary financial
relief to ratepayers via rates postponement.

» The new Standby Facility Agreement product
will provide greater certainty of access to
emergency funding for councils at o lower cost
than going to the traditional bank provider.

Performance Targets

Performance measure

LGFA has extended the longest doted
borrowing maturity for councils from 2033 to
2037 to enable councils to be better match
assets with liabilities and to benefit from
record lows in interest rates and borrowings
spreads.

Result for the 12 month Outcome
period to 30 June 2021

LGFA net interest income for the period to June 2021 $19.537 million
will be greater than $18.8 million

Annual issuance and operating expenses (excluding AlL) $6.65% million
will be less than $6.8 million

Total nominal lending (short and long term) to $12.039 billion

participating councils to be at least $9.79 billion

Conduct an annual survey of councils and achieve 85%

August 2020 survey outcome

satisfaction score as to the value added by LGFA to of 98.8%
council borrowing activities

Meet all lending requests from PLAs 100%
Achieve 85% market share of all council borrowing 79%

in New Zealand

Review each PLA financial position, its headroom under
LGFA policies and drrange to meet each PLA dt least
annually

All councils visited

No breaches of Treasury Policy, any regulotory or
legislative requirements including H&S

No breaches

Successfully refinance existing loans to councils 100%
and LGFA bond maturities as they falldue
Maintain a credit rating equal to the New Zealand AAHAAA

Government rating where both entities are rated by the
same credit rating entity

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN
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About us

Establishment

The New Zealand Local Government Funding
Agency Ltd (LGFA) specialises in financing the New
Zealand local government sector, the primary
purpose being to provide more efficient financing
costs and diversified financing sources for New
Zealand local authorities. LGFA was established to
raise debt on behalf of local authorities on terms
that are more favourable to them than if they raised
the debt directly.

Ownership

45

million ordinary

Sl

shares onissue

20 million of which
remdain.uncalled

16 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Member councils
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Incorporated on 1 December 2011
under the Companies Act 1993

Enabled by Local Government
Borrowing Act 201

Council-controlled organisation
under the Local Government Act 2002

20%

New Zealand
Government

80%

30 Councils

shareholders

Share ownership is restricted
to New Zealand Government
or councils.
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Governance overview

/New Zealand

Government

20%

shareholding

Shareholders’
Council
Page 53

LGFA Board

Page 46

Bonds listed
on NZX Debt
Market

30 Councils : 31Shareholders \
o . New Zealand Government
/ : shareholding will reduce to 111%
o . if a future call is made on the

) . uncalled capital of the 30 council
shareholding ’ shareholders.

v

The LGFA Shareholders’ Council comprises five
to ten appointees from the Council Shareholders
and the New Zealand Government. The role of the
Shareholders’ Council is to:

Review and report performance of LGFA and the Board;
Recommend to Shareholders as to the appointment, removal,
replacement and remuneration of directors;

Recommend to Shareholders as to any changes to policies,

or the Statement of Intent (SOI), requiring their approval;

Update Shareholders on LGFA matters and to coordinate
Shareholders on governance decisions.

The LGFA Board is respensible for the strategic
direction and control of LGFA's activities.

The Board guides and meniters the business
and affairs of LGFA, in accordance with the:

= Local Government Act 2002;

= Local Government Borrowing Act 2011;

= Companies Act 1993;
= LGFA’s Constitution;
= LGFA Shareholder Agreement;

» LGFA Annual Statement of Intent.

o & 608 0
The Board comprises five independent w w w www
directors and one non-independent director.

Issue of securities to the public : Supervised by
under the Financial Markets : independent

Conduct Act and regulated by : trustee
Financial Markets Authority :

Member councils LGFA Annual Report 2021 17
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Guarantee structure

All shareholder councils
dare guarantors as well
as councils with total
borrowings over $20
million.

LGFA's securities
obligations are
guaranteed by
council guarantors.

A council’s obligations
under the guarantee

S&P Global Ratings

Domestic Currency

AAA

Stable outlook

Foreign Currency AA+

Qﬂ ble outlook /

Credit rating at 30 June 2021

Fitch Ratings

Domestic Currency

AA+

Stable outlook

Foreign Currency AA

is secured against
rates revenue

Our brand

The 2021 LGFA Annual Report, our milestone 10th
annual report since incorporation in 2011, celebrates
10 years of operations and outlines our forward
commitment to providing councils with sustainable
lending opportunities, having established ourselves
as New Zealand’s largest financier of council
infrastructure. So, as we enter our second decade
of operations, LGFA has updated our brand to
reflect this commitment.

The fern leaf

The fern leaf, an iconic symbol for New Zealand,
has been integral to the LGFA logo since we
incorporated in 2011

Amongst other things, the fern leaf symbolises New
Zealand’s clean green image as recognised globally
and, by such, retaining the fern leaf in our logo not
only links to our company’s history, but reinforces
our strategic commitment to offer future sustainable
borrowing and investment opportunities.

LGFA

The infrastructure cog

LGFA is New Zealand’s major financier for local
government investment in infrastructure renewal.

The symbol of a cog is widely used to represent
infrastructure and incorporating this into our logo
reflects the significant role LGFA plays in financing
New Zealand’s infrastructure.

Sustainable borrowing for
infrastructure development

Our new logo brings together the fern and cog,
symbolising LGFA's commitment to financing
sustainable infrastructure development and
for providing investors access to sustainable
investment.

LGFAY

NEW ZEALAND LOCAL

LGFA

New Zealand Local

New Zealand
Local Government Funding Agency

18 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Member councils

GOVERNMENT FUNDING AGENCY
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Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Government Funding Agency
Te POtea Kawanatanga a-rohe

Positive outlook /
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We are customer focused

QOur customers are our council
borrowers, investors, and all
other organisations that we
deal with. We listen to them

2R

9 -
and act in their best interests —_ —_
to deliver results that make a - ~

Ourvalues positive difference NN

/ We strive for excellence

We strive to excel by
delivering financial products
and services that are

highly valued at least cost
while seeking continuous
improvement in everything

we do. /

Our purpose

Benefiting local
communities through
delivering efficient
financing for local
government.

~ Q\

We are innovative

We act with integrity

We dre honest, transparent
and are committed to doing
what is best for our customers
and our company

To meet our ever-changing
customer requirements, we

We provide leadership will encourage innovation

ltem 9
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We are here forour
stakeholders in being
strategically minded,

and provide a diverse range
of financial products and
services.

providing resilience and

executing our strategy. We

embrace a high-performance

culture and can be relied
upon to deliver results.

Member councils LGFA Annual Report 2021 19
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our hlstory Commenced
beond issuance
Incorporated February 2012 April 2015 and December
December 201 2017 bonds issued

.
.

KangaNews NZ
Domestic Issuer of
the Year — 2012

April 2020
and April 2027

INFINZ award
for Best Bond
issue of 2012
Inaugural LGFA March 2019 bond
Borrowers Forum issued
B Inaugural dividend May 2021
" of $15m declared and April 2023
y bonds issued

Transitioned front/ New Treasury Refinanced April 2015
middle/back office Management System bond ($240m} and
from NZDMO implemented council loans

Bespoke
lending
introduced

bonds issued

.

.
.
:
:

R LCFA Bonds Commenced

. listed on NZX short-term lending
. November 2015 Commenced LGFA to councils
y Bill issuance

...............................

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Transiticned to
Financial Markets

Conduct Act
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Recorad 3.27 billien Toitd ZereCarbon
bonds issued certification
May 2031 bond inyear -
issued ($650m} — TOITU
_J....“..“..1 In...“...ﬂ";).”.”..
. - ( LG
l. W50 Ve ed-1
M Reserve Bank adds
. Introduced LGFA bonds to its Large
. Council standby AAA credit rating April 2037 bond Scale Asset Purchase
+. Tfacilities achieved issued ($500m) programme. April 2020

.".“'“""“1kﬁk1k"’“"“'“."'”"" SETTERETY

KangaNews NZ. Refinanced April 2020 J
NZ Domestic Bond bond (3980m) and April 2026 bond s
Deal of the Year council loans issued (81.0b) . .

M Refinanced March
@ 2019 bond (31.240b) and

. council loans April 2024 bond First bond not matched to
.. issued via inaugural a New Zealand Government
.. syndication ($1.0b} bond maturity
‘. June

April 2022 *.
bond issued .

Bond lending Refinanced December 2017 .
facility established April 2033 bond ($1.015b) bond and .
Octeber 2016 bond issued council loans .

.
.

TRC Riparian established planting -
e Ta] Trevor Hurley’s farm Ceo-

~ Taranaki Regional Council i

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN Page 97 of 176
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LGFA bonds on issue

LGFA NZX-listed bonds on issue {NZS million, foce value)
As 30 June 2021 : NZ$13,680 miillion
Includes NZS1,000 million treosury stock (refer note 16, page 73)

$1,760
$1,705 ’

§1,586

Maturity Apr2022 Apr2023 Apr2024 Apr2025 Apr2026 Apr2027 Apr2029 May 2031 Apr2033 Apr2037
Coupecn 275% 5.50% 2.25% 275% 1.50% 4.50% 1.50% 2.25% 3.50% 2.00%
NZX Code LGFC90 LGFOSC LGFI0OC  LGFO70  LGFI20  LGFO60 LGFNO LGF140 LGFOBO  LGFI13C

In addition to the retail bonds listed on the NZX, LGFA have $130 million of wholesale floating rate notes on
issue.

22 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Bonds on issue
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How we issue bonds

LGFA typically issues a new bond maturity via an initial syndication and then through ongoing regular
scheduled tenders.

» Preferred bond tender sizes are between +  Targetissuance of NZ$1 billion plus per series
NZ5150 million to NZ$200 million with at least over time with a soft cap of $175 billion per
three maturities offered at each tender. series to support market liguidity.

+ LGFA bonds match NZ Government Bonds + Allbonds have been issued in New Zealand
where possible for maturity and coupon. dollar (NZD) to date, but have capability to

+  Approved Issuer Levy is paid on behalf of issue non-NZD bonds if required,
offshore holders. + AllLGFA retail bonds are listed on the NZX.

$13,680

Ourissuance history (nzs milion, foce value)

$1,660
. Bond issuance by year (including treasury stock])

. Bond maturities $9,335

— Total foce value of retail bonds on issue $8,119
including $1,000m of treasury stock

- refer note 16, poge 73 $6,840

$3,695

$2.475 $3,305 $3.470
L)

S1,635
s1,220 W500 g1a65 U0 g1a79

Issued
Matured
-51,015 -$980
-$1,240 -$1,450

Financial year 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Average tender size 209 182 153 188 141 143 137 188 182 191
(NZ$ million)
Average issuance term 53 6.6 70 79 81 83 &1 6.6 69 87
(years}

New bond maturities LGFA is New Zealand’s largest...

issued in the yearto

June 2021 domestic issuer of NZD : issuer of debt

May 2031+ May 2037 domestic bonds (excluding : listed onthe

2.25% o 2.00% New Zealand Government) °  NZDX

Bonds on issue LGFA Annual Report 2021 23
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2020-21 issuQance by maturity (NZ$ million, face value)
LGFA bond issuance by bond maturity over the 12-month period to 30 June 2021

Tenders Apr22 Apr23 Apr24 Apr25 Apr26 Apr27 Apr29 May3l Apr33 Apr37 Total

8 Jul 20 50 - 50 - 50 - 50 - - - 200
9 Sep 20 - - 50 - - 50 50 - 50 - 200
7 Oct 20 - 50 - - 50 - 50 - 50 - 200
12 Nov 20 - - - 60 - 50 60 - - 40 210
16 Dec 20 - 60 - - 50 - 50 - - 30 190
3Feb 21 - - 60 - - 60 40 - - 40 200
10 Mar 21 - - 40 - 50 - 60 - - 50 200
15 Apr 21 - - 40 - 40 - 40 - - 40 160
9Jun 21 - - 40 - - - 80 - 40 - 160
2020/21 tender 50 1no 280 60 240 160 480 - 140 200 1,720
issuance

2020/21 4,00 - - - - - - 650 - 500 1,550
synhdication

Total 2020/21 450 10 280 60 240 160 480 650 140 700 3,270
issuance

Prior issuance 1,155 1,550 1,248 1,409 1,000 1,326 692 - 1,030 - 9,410
Total bonds i 1605 1,660 1528 1469 1,240 1,486 1172 650 1170 700 | 12,680
excluding |

Treasury Stock i

Treasury stock 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,000
Total bonds on 1705 1,760 1628 1,569 1340 1,586 1272 750 1270 800 | 13,680
issue

2020-21 issuQance by month (Nzs million, foce value)

$900

2020-21
issuance

$3,270

million

Treasury
stock issued

$200

million

$200 $200 S200 S200 S200 S200

$160 $160

Jul20 Aug 2l Sep20 Oct20 Nov20 Dec20 Feb21 Mar2l Apr21 May2l Jun2

Tender Synd Tender Tender Tender Tender Tender Tender Tender Synd Tender

Tender 1.5x n/a 3.3x 3.0x 2.5% 2.2 2.2x 2.0x 29x n/a 34X
coverage ratio

Weighted 0.82% 118% 1.41% 104%  1.04%  103%  106% 113% 117% LA%  1LA3%
average vield

24 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Bonds on issue
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LGFA bond margins (asis points)

LGFA bond margins against swap and New Zealand Government Bonds (NZGB)

ltem 9

Margin to swap Apr22 Apr23 Apr24 Apr25 Apr2é Apr27 Apr29 May3l Apr33 Apr37

30 June 2020 18 25 32 40 45 48 57 nfa 69 n/a
30 June 2021 0 ) 2 7 13 15 25 33 39 51
Annual change (18) (26) (30) (33) (32) (32) (32) n/a (30) n/a

Margin to NZGB Apr22 Apr23 Apr24 Apr25 Apr26 Apr27 Apr29 May3l Apr33 Apr37

30Jdune 2020 13 8 22 31 34 36 44 nfa 58 n/a
30 June 2021 G 22 26 31 36 40 43 44y 43 44y
Annual change (4) 4 4 0 2 4 m n/a (15) n/a

LGFA bond margins to swap over NZGB over the 36 months

(Q\
to 30 June 2021 (basis points) —
c
80 GE)
=
&
60 :
40
20
0
o o g z o 7 o] z [ [ o] z c
s 8 & ¢ s s & & s $§ & § 5
& = = 3 3 3 3 8 » ) P ) N
—— Margin to swap e Margin to NZGB

Average of all LGFA bonds outstanding: Secondary market levels as at end of each month taken from end
of month closing rate sheets published by NZ banks.

Bonds on issue LGFA Annual Report 2021 25
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Secondary market credit spread to swap for LGFA
and bank bonds (basis points)

Secondary market credit spread for LGFA against New Zealand bank bonds over the 36 months
to 30 June 2021,

100
100
80
60
40
200 T e T e
g,
//JJHHHlllHlllll.‘.‘m
0
[ W ] =z [ %) v} z [ %) o z [
5 3 8 o 5 3 3 5 5 3 2 g S
® & z 3 3 s 3 N 3 B N N S
—— LGFA2023 === ANZ2020 - ASB 2021 <o BNZ 2023

Top 10 issuers of NZD bonds on issue nzp sbillion as at 30 June 2021

LGFA (AAA) 13,680

World Bank (AAA)

Asian Development Bank (AAA)
Westpac Bonk Group (AA-)
Housing New Zealand Limited (AAA)
Bank of New Zealand/NAB (AA-)
ASB Bank/CBA Group (AA-)
International Finance Corp (AAA)
Kommunaolbanken (AAA)

Auckland Council (AA)

LGFA estimation based on aggregation of Bloomberg data

26 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Bonds on issue
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LGFA bond holders by country
of residence as at 31 March 2021
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LGFA bond holders by investor
group as at 30 June 2021
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Member councils

LGFA operates with the primary
objective of optimising the
debt funding terms and
conditions for its member
councils.

Among other things this includes:
Providing savings in annual interest costs

Offering short and long-term borrowings with
flexible lending terms

Enhancing the certainty of debt markets

Being the funder of choice for New Zealand
local government.

As at 30 June 2021

50

member councils
are shareholders

/2

28 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Member councils
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member councils
were eligble to
borrow from LGFA

To become a member council of LGFA, a council
is required to ccmplete o formal applicaticn.
Following an application for membership, LGFA
management completes a review cf the council’s
financial position and its ability to comply with
LGFA's financial covenants, which is considered
by the LGFA Board who approve all council
memberships. All member councils are required
o complete o compliance certificate each year
which certifies that the council has complied
with LGFA's financial covenants. In addition, LGFA
monitor all member councils” annual reperts,
annual plans and long term plans on an ongoing
basis to ensure that the financial forecasts are
consistent with the LGFA financial covenants.

65

member councils
were guarantors
of LGFA
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Total member council borrowings at 30 June 2021
{NZ5 million}

Number of
councils

Member type

Amount % of total o
borrowed borrowings 7 9 /o

LGFA's estimated
Non guarantors 6 53 0.4% market share
of local

Guarantors

Total

government
debt
Amount % of total
borrowed borrowings
Auckland Council 3,304 27 4% Loans to
Christchurch City Council 1566 16.3% AUCho_nd
Council are .
Wellingten City Council 793 6.6% limited to a
Tauranga City Council 517 4.3% maximum of

Hamilton City Council 481 4.0% ! O/
Greater Wellington Regional Council 451 37% o

Kapiti Coast District Council 230 19% \ of total loans
Rotorua District Council 228 15%

Hastings District Council 205 17%
Hutt City Council 201 1.7%
Other councils 3,691 30.6%

12,067 100%

Over the 12 months to 30 June 2021

57 $2,858 241 69

member . million total . individual . average
councils - borrowed . termloans . borrowing
years

AL 30 June 2027

$ 2 8 7 2 5 Member councils are
: . required to comply with

LGFA financial covenants

SUYIGWNN JHL

million of short . membercouncils _
term loans : with outstanding at all times ;
loans s e sy sy 7

Member councils LGFA Annual Report 2021 29
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LGFA member councils
by year of joining

20M-2012 (18)
[ 20122013 ()
[ 2013201 (3)
[ 2012015 (3)
B 2015-20 (5)

B 2016-2017 (3)
B 2017-2018(3)
[l 2018-2019 (®)
Il 2019-2020 (3)
B 2020-2021(5)

-
712

New Zealand’s
78 councils

are approved
borrowers as at
\30 June 2021

/

30 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Member councils

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

New member councils

LGFA welcomes the following five councils who joined
as eligible borrowers in the year ended 30 June 2021

i Waitaki 7o
[ Waitaki "~

Sra T G

GENTRAL
HARTEAC T ©OWeEE

South
‘Walikato ﬁ
S

Council

DETRICT COUNCE, e Kimsmbars 5 i
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Member councils by year of joining

North Island South Island
201112 Auckland Council Shareholder 2011-12  Christchurch City Council  Shareholder
2011-12  Bay of Plenty Regicnal Shareholder 2011-12  Selwyn District Council Sharehclder
Council 2011-12  Tasman District Council Shareholder
201112 Greater Wellington Shareholder 2012-13 | Ashburton District Council  Borrower and Guarantor
Regional Council —
- - - 2012-13  Grey District Council Borrower
2011-12  Hamilton City CGouncil Shareholder —
- —— - 2012-13  Marlborough District Sharehelder
2011-12  Hastings District Council Sharreholder Council
201-12  Masterton District Council Shareholder 2012-13 | Nelson City Council Borrower and Guarantor
20112 gi\'/j:c\{mouth District Shareholder 2012-13 | Queenstown Lakes District Borrower and Guarantor
— Council
20112 g;c:;)(:‘ongo District Shareholder 2012-13  Timaru District Council Borrower and Guarantor
2011-12  Scuth Taranaki District Shareholder AN \gmmq:(or\r\ District Shareholder
Council ounci —
20112 Toupo District Councll shareholder 2013-14 Hurunuw. Dls.tnct Council Borrower and Guarantor
20112 Touranga Gity Gouncll Shareholder 2015-16 | Buller District Council Borrower
2011-12  waipa District Council Shareholder AN ggzgecr”bury Regional Borrower and Guarantor
201112 Wellington C\t)f/ C‘OUHCH S:ore:o:ger 2015-16 | Gore District Gouncil Borrower
HOMHE \Nfest.em Boyof Plenty Shareholder Westland District Council  Borrower
District Council —— -
2011-12  Whangarei District Council Shareholder Glutha District Gouncil Borrower
2012-13 | Far North District Gouncil  Borrower and Guarcintor \nvercmrg\l\ C:\ty‘CouncM : Borrower and Guarantor
2012-13 | Gisborne District Council  Shareholder Mackenzie D'Sm_m Gouncil Borrower
2012-13 | Houraki District Council Shareholder \gsj’gg?qﬂ Regional Borrower
2012-13 | Horowhenua District Shareholder - — -
Gouncil Kaikoura District Council Borrower
201218 | Hutt Gity Council Shareholder giaggi\‘ Otago District Borrewer and Guarantor
2012-13  Kapiti Coast District Shareholder
P Waitaki District Council Borrower and Guarantor
Council
2012-13  Manawatu District Council Shareholder
2012-13 = Matamata-Piako District Borrower and Guaranter
Gouncil
2012-13  Palmerston North City Shareholder
Council
2012-13 | Rotorua District Council Borrower and Guarantor
2012-13  Tharmes-Coromandel Sharsholder
District Council
2012-13  Waikato District Council Borrower and Guaranter
2012-13  Whakatane District Council Shareholder
2012-13  Whanganui District Council Shareholder
2018-14 | Horizons District Council Borrower and Guaranter
2013-14  Upper Hutt City Council Borrower and Guarantor
2014-15  Opotiki District Council Borrower
2014-15  Porirua City Council Borrower and Guarantor
2014-15 | Tararua District Council Borrower e
2015-16 | Kaipara District Council Borrower and Guarantor LT ‘.
2015-16  Scuth Wairarapa District Borrower and Guarantor "

Council

Central Howkes Bay District

Gouncil

Borrower

Northland Regional Council

Borrower

Waitome District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

Rangitikei District Council

Borrower

Stratford District Council

Borrower

Hawkes Bay Regional
Council

Borrower and Guarantor

Ruapehu District Council

Borrower and Guarantor

Waikato Regional Council

Borrower and Guaranter

wairea District Council

Borrower

Taranaki Regional Council

Borrower and Guaranter

Garterton District Council

Borrower

Kowerau District Council

Borrower

Napier City Council

Borrower and Guaranter

South Waikoto District
Council

Borrower and Guarantor

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

86%

loans to councils with

AA-

external rating or better

LGFA assign internal credit
ratings for all councils,
including all councils without

external credit ratings.

Member councils LGFA Annual Report 2021
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Nominal loans to councils outstanding zs million)

15,000

$12,067

12,000
$10,869

3,000

$6,451

Number 18 39 43 45 50 53 55 &4 67 67
of councils
M Loans Junl12  Juni13  Junl4  Junls  Junlé  Junl1?7  Juni18 Junl1s  Jun20 Jun?2l

outstanding

Councils’ bOﬂ'OWing (NZ$ million) financial year

4,000

3,000

2,000

S480

1,000 SL13

2012 2013 204 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

B Long term, from LGFA ] From other sources

32 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Member councils
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unveiled by Auckland Transport in March 2021.
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Sustainability at LGFA

LGFA was established with the primary objective of optimising the debt funding terms and conditions for
our member councils. To achieve this objective, it is important that we conduct our affairs in accordance
with sound business practice, while having regard to the interests of the community and by exhibiting a
sense of social and environmental responsibility, as well as being a good employer.

The Global Reporting Initiative (GRI) sustainability
reporting standards are the most widely adopted
global standards for sustainability reporting and
this year's annual report has been prepared to
meet the requirements of the Global Reporting
Initiative (GRI) Stondards (core option).

LGFA's materiality sustainability topics remain
unchanged from 2020. These materiality topics
were determined with the assistance of Proxima,
an independent sustainability consultancy,

who worked with staff and directors in 2019 to
undertake an analysis of moterial sustainability
issues relevant to our business and key
stakeholders. Material topics are those issues that
reflect our significant economic, environmental,
and social impacts or that substantively
influence the assessments and decisions of our
stakeholders.

LGFA’'s ten material topics are grouped under three overarching principles.

Culture, ethics and governance  Cost effective funding

Transparency and disclosure

Carbon footprint

Environmental and social
impact of lending

Collaboration and local
engagement

Health & safety and wellbeing

Diversity and inclusion

Capability and development

Best practice finance

principles

34 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Sustainability at LGFA
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LGFA’s materiality matrix

LGFA's materiality matrix depicts the outcome of our materiality analysis and is prioritised by stakeholder
importance and the estimated impact on our business or on society. The prioritisation of these material
topics will assist us to review our management approach and assess where we can improve over time.,

Our approach and performonce on eoch material topic can be found in this Annual Report and are
referenced in the GRI Index on poge 88.
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LGFA’s material topics

Cost effective funding

= Delivery of lower cost funding

= Access to longer term funding

= Ongoing contribution to NZ Capital Markets
= NZXlisting

LGFA was established with the primary purpose
of providing more efficient funding costs and
diversified funding sources for New Zealand local
authorities; o core objective being to raise debt
on behalf of local authorities on terms that are
more favourable to them than if they raised the
debtdirectly.

LGFA reports on its cost of borrowing relative to
other issuers on a quarterly basis to shareholders
and in its annual and half year reports. LGFA
surveys member councils on its performance
annually in relation to business delivery and
satisfaction with pricing. A key indicator of
satisfaction with service and pricing to councils is
LGFA's estimated overall market share for council
lending which was estimated to be 79% for the
rolling twelve-month period to June 2021,

Culture, ethics and governance

High ethical standards required and codified
through:

= NZX Corporate Governance Code

= Code of Ethics

= Code of Conduct

= Board Charter

= Audit and Risk Committee Charter

The LGFA Board is committed to ensuring that the
conduct of both directors and staff at all times
meets the high standards required to reflect the
company's values and to protect its reputation.
The required standards are defined in LGFA's
Code of Ethics and is reflected throughout the
following key governance documents: The LGFA
Constitution; Shareholders’ Agreement; Board
Charter; Audit and Risk Committee Charter;
Internal Audit Charter; and the Diversity Policy.

The LGFA Board is committed to ensuring LGFA
demonstrates ongoing commitment to strong

and sound corporate governance. The Corporate
Governance section in this report provides detailed
information on LGFA's governance structure and
principles, including setting out LGFA’'s compliance
with the eight core principles underpinning the NZX
Corporate Governance Gode.

36 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Sustainability at LGFA
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Transparency and disclosure

Transparency and disclosure are essential
for shareholder, rating agencies and investor
confidence and codified through:

= Shareholders’ agreement

= NZXlisting rules

= Financial accounting standards

» Regulatory compliance

Transparency in how we operate is core to
achieving our shareholders’ objectives as well
as for our wider stakeholders including investors,
banks and other financial intermediaries and
the credit rating agencies. As such, transparency
in how we operate is reflected in operating
requirements outlined in our foundation
documents, including the LGFA Constitution,
Shareholders’ Agreement and Board Charter,

as well as Gompany policies on Continuous
Disclosure, Financial Products Trading, and
Protected Disclosures and Whistle Blowing.

LGFA demonstrates transparency through its
annual Statement of Intent (SOI) and quarterly
reporting to shareholders on its performance
against the objectives set outin the SOl In
addition to financial performance, our annual
report details LGFA's non-financial performance
against the principles outlined in NZX Corporate
Governance Code, as well as complionce in
meeting the requirements of the Global Reporting
Initiotives (core standards).

Environmental and social impact of lending

Development of green, social and sustainable

financing option for councils

= Lower cost financing promotes greater
ability for councils to fund green/social/
sustainable impact projects

LGFA recognises and supports the shift to an
economy that supports sustainable, social,
environmental and economic wellbeing and is
actively progressing facilities to provide member
councils with green, social and sustainability
financing for projects that promote environmental
and social wellbeing in New Zealond, as well

as progress the United Nations Sustainable
Development Goals.

The Green, Social and Sustainability lending
section in this report provides more information
on LGFA's sustainable lending developments.
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Health & safety and wellbeing

= Compliance with Health and Safety at Work
Act 2015

= Health and safety committee and regular
reporting to Board

»  Flexible workplace

LGFA is committed to providing a safe and healthy
working environment for all employees and a
flexible workplace environment that promotes
increasing employee engagement, productivity
and enhancing recruitment and retention.

LGFA has established a Health and Sofety
Committee which regularly meets to review
LGFA health and safety issues and reports to
each Board meeting. LGFA maintains policies on
health and safety, flexible working, diversity and
employment which encapsulate the company’s
commitment to health, safety and wellbeing.

LGFA provides staff with access to professional
support for general counselling services, individual
case management and on-going monitoring of an
employee’s progress to ensure the assistance and
treatment in meeting their needs

Collaboration and local engagement

= Industry sponsor - Konganews and
Taituard

= Infrastructure funding development ligison
with Crown and industry

» Regularengogement with council
employees and elected officials

A core objective for LGFA is for the company to
take a proactive role in enhancing the financial
strength and depth of local government debt
market by working with key central government
and local government stokeholders on sector and
individual council issues.

Contributing to capital markets development

to enhance local government sectordebtis o
key role for LGFA and we regularly meet with key
industry stakeholders, including the Reserve
Bank of New Zealand, Department of Internal
Affairs, Office of the Auditor General, Taituargd,
Infrastructure New Zealand and New Zealand
Green Investment Finance. The importance of
capital investment in infrostructure has been

a focus over the past year, with LGFA actively
engaging with councils, central Governmentand
investors in relation to the work being progressed
on the three waters reform project.

This yedar, LGFA were proud 1o be principal sponsor
forthe 2021 Taituard LGFA Local Government
Excellence Awards.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Financial markets best practice and influence

= Knowledge sharing
= Auditand risk independence
= Best practice risk management framework
= Credit metrics
= External rating / lower margin borrowing
» Operational excellence
= Product and process improvement
» CCO lending
» Bills
» Flexible maturities
« Standby facilities

Delivering operational best practice and
efficiency across our issuance programme and
lending services is o key objective for LGFA.

Over recent years, LGFA has invested significant
resource in ongoing development of our risk
management fromework to reflect financial
markets best proctice, the objective being to
ensure that our risks are managed effectively and
comply with LGFA's governance and legislative
requirements. Managing treasury risks is a critical
component of LGFA's market operations and this
yearwe engoged external consultants to assist

in providing an independent assessment of our
treasury risk manogement policies. The ‘Managing
risk’ section of this report provides more
information on our risk monagement processes.

Over the course of the reporting year, LGFA
operations staff processed over 18,000
transactions with total gross cash flows in excess
of $24 billion without error. Where possible, LGFA
employ straight-through processing to minimise
operational risk across our treasury operdtions.
Improving our information technology control
environment to mitigate emerging risks from
cyber threats was another key focus over the post
year, with independent consultants assisting us
with external penetration testing and advice on
enhancing our cyber control environment

Diversity and inclusion

+ Diversity policy and reporting
+ Equal opportunity
»  Mdori language plan

Diversity ot LGFA involves recognising ond valuing
the contribution that people can make because
of their skills, experience, background and
differing perspectives. LGFA values all employees
by encouraging participation and providing
opportunities for its people to succeed.

Sustainability at LGFA LGFA Annucal Report 2021 37
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These diversity objectives are formalised in the
LGFA Diversity Policy. Eoch year, manogement
complete a diversity review which is reported
through to the Board and, when undertaking
recruitment, selection panels for interview are
split by gender. The Corporate Governance
section of this provides more information on
diversity, including reporting diversity across stoff
and directors.

Capability and development

+ Regular attendance for staff and directors
at industry training and conference events

LGFA actively encourages professional
development for directors and staff. LGFA
provides funding for opportunities for professional
development and membership of professional
bodies and directors and staff are regular
attendees at industry conferences.

Carbon footprint

» Toitd Carbonzero certification achieved in
2021.

» Increased use of meetings by video reduce
need for physical travel

+ Paperless office - use electronic where
possible for transaction recording/record
keeping.

+ Physical offices — minimal impact given
small size

This year, LGFA directors have committed to
reducing our carbon emissions over time. Our first
target is cutting per employee emissions by 30%
by 2030, compared with a 2018/19 base year.

To further our commitment to sustainability,

LGFA have created a new position, Head of
Sustainability. A key component of this new
position is to promote carbon reduction
awareness across all staff, including internal
discussions across the organisation on LGFA's
annual carbon reduction targets. LGFA has made
progress with moving to o paperless environment,
achieving a 60% reduction in paper use in the
three yedrs to June 2021,

Paper use

We have achieved a

6 O% Reduction

over the three years to June 2021

38 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Sustainability at LGFA
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Toitd Carbonzero Certification

TOITU

I5D 14064-1
ORGANISATION

Toit0 Envirocare offer carbon
manogement and carbon
neutral certifications for
organisations, including tools
to measure, reduce and offset
greenhouse gas emissions.
Toitd certifications meet and
exceed the requirements of
18O standards and ensure consistent and
comprehensive reporting, benchmarking and
management under international best proctice.
Toitd carbonzero certification is accredited by the
Joint Accreditation System of Australic and New
Zealand (JAS-ANZ).

We are very pleased to report that LGFA has
achieved Toitd carbonzero certification. The
Toitd certification recognises the processes LGFA
has put in place to measure our greenhouse

gas (GHG) emissions, as well as management
plans to reduce our company’'s emissions. Where
LGFA are unable to eliminate emissions, these
are offset through the purchase of high-impoct
carbon credits from a Gold Standard-certified
international project.

Kauri 2000

In 2021, LGFA donated $3,000 to
Kauri 2000 to support their efforts
in regenerating native trees in the
Coromandel region.

Kauri 2000 was established in 1999 mnl
as a project to celebrate the start of 2 O OO
the new millennium by planting 2000

kauri on the Coromandel Peninsula. To date the
Trust has planted over 50,000 trees and continues
to plant kauri throughout the Coromandel.
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An Archimedes screw pump, installed in the Lower
Waikato catchment. The first of its kind in NZ and
allows for safe passage of native fish and eels
through our floed infrastructure.

Waikate Regional Council
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Green, social and
sustainability lending

A commitment to assist councils finance projects that promote environmental and social wellbeing in

New Zealand.

LGFA recognises the risks inherent in climaote
change for councils and supports New Zealand's
shift to a low-carbon economy.

As o council-controlled organisation under the
Local Government Act 2002, LGFA is required

to demonstrate social and environmental
responsibility. Through its lending to its councils,
LGFA acknowledges the importance of providing
green, social or sustainability finance to its
councils by financing projects that promote
environmental and social wellbeing in New
Zealand and progress the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (UN SDGs) and
which fund eligible ‘green’ and/or ‘social projects
under the principals, guidelines and standards
noted below.

In our 2020 Annual Report, LGFA outlined that

the development of its green, social and
sustainability (GSS) lending programme to councils
was underway. We are currently finalising the
processes councils will follow in order to apply for
Green, Social and Sustainable Loans (GSS Loans)
from LGFA. We anticipate that LGFA will launch

its GSS lending programme in the 2021/22 year
following consultations with councils.

40 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Green, social and sustainability lending
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LGFA is also progressing work on the Sustainability
Bond Fraomework (Framework) under which LGFA
intends to issue and manage sustainable debt
products. The Framework, built in compliance with
market guidelines, adopts the following four key
pillars:

+ Use of Proceeds;

» Process for Project Evaluation and Selection;

»  Monogement of Proceeds; and

= Tronsparency ond Reporting.

LGFAwill not initially look to issue GSS bonds from
the Framework, preferring to build o portfolio

of GSS loans to councils, then retrospectively
consider issuing bonds under a GSS bannerinto
the debt copital markets.
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The Sustainable Development Goals

The United Nations’ Sustainable Development
Goals (SDG), which were adopted in 2015 by 193
countries including New Zealand, comprise 17
goals and 169 targets.

As part of ourcommitment to sustainability, LGFA
will look to finance or refinance, indirectly via
councils, projects and assets that deliver positive
environmental and social outcomes and align with,
and contribute towards meeting, the UN SDGs.

LGFA intends to offer GSS Loans across ten
green project categories and six social project

LGFA GSS Loan Categories

Green Project Categories

{addressing environmental challenges)

The International Capital Markets Association
(ICMA) June 2021 Green Bond Principles explicitly
recognised several broad categories of
eligibility for Green Projects, which contribute

to environmental objectives such as: climate
change mitigation, climate change adaptation,
natural resource conservation, biodiversity
conservation, and pollution prevention and
control.

The chart on the following page, while indicative,
captures the most commonly used types of green
projects supported, or expected to be supported
by the Green Bond market. Green Projects include
assets, investments and other related and
supporting expenditures such as research and
development thot may relate to more than one
category and/or environmental objective. Three
environmental objectives (pollution prevention
and control, biodiversity conservation and
climate change adaptation) also serve as project
categories in the list. As such, they refer to the
projects that are more specifically designed to
meet these environmental objectives.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

categories based on the International Capital
Markets Association (ICMA) Green Bond

Principles (GBP), Social Bond Principles (SBP)

ond Sustainability Bond Guidelines (SBG) as

well as other evolving international principles,
taxonomies, standards and market practice.
ICMA has mapped its GBP and SBP to the UN SDGs
to provide a broad frame of reference by which
parties can evaluate the financing objectives of a
green bond or social bond against the UN SDGs.

Social Project Categories
(addressing social issues for target populations)

The ICMA June 2021 Social Bond Principles
explicitly recognise several brood cotegories
of eligibility for Social Projects. Social Projects
directly aim to address or mitigate a specific
social issue and/or seek to achieve positive
social outcomes especially but not exclusively
for o target population(s). A social issue
threatens, hinders, or domaoges the well-being
of society or a specific target population. For
the avoidance of doubt, it is acknowledged
that the definition of target population can vary
depending on local contexts and that, in some
cases, such target population(s) may also be
served by addressing the general public.

Likewise, the chart outlines the list of social project
categories and, while also indicative, captures the
most commonly used types of projects supported,
or expected to be supported, by the Social Bond
market. Social Projects include assets, investment
and other related and supporting expenditures,
such as research and development that may
relote to more than one category.

For each project cotegory in the chart, the
associoted UN SDGs are labelled.

Green, social and sustainability lending LEFA Annual Report 2021
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Green Project Categories Social Project Categories
and Mapping to UN SDGs and Mapping to UN SDGs
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Corporate governance

NZX Corporate Governance Best
Practice Code

The LGFA Board is committed to ensuring LGFA
demonstrates ongoing commitment to strong and
sound corporate governance.

LGFA is a listed issuer on the NZX Debt Market
and this section sets out LGFA's complionce with
the eight core principles underpinning the NZX
Corporote Governance Best Practice Code 2020.

LGFA considers that its governance practices have not materially differed from the NZX Code for the year
ended 30 June 2021. Areas where LGFA has implemented alternative measures to the Code are as follows:

An issuer should establish a nomination committee
to recommend director appointments to the board.

LGFA's process for director appointments to the
board is governed by its Constitution, the process
forwhich is outlined on page 48

An issuer should have a remuneration committee
which operates under a written charter.

Director remuneration is determined by an
Ordinary Resolution of shareholders and executive
remuneration is determined by the board, the
process for which is outlined on page 51

The following governance documents referred to in this section are availoble on the LGFA website:

lgfa.co.nz/about-lgfa/governance:

» LGFA Constitution

+ Shareholders Agreement

+ Code of Ethics

+ Board Charter

+ Audit and Risk Committee Charter

44 | GFA Annual Report 2021 Corporate governance
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» Internaol Audit Charter
+ Diversity Policy
+ Remuneration Policy

+ LGFA Foundation Polices
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Principle 1

Code of ethical
behaviour

Code of Ethics

LGFA has adopted a formal Code of Ethics,
incorporating its Conflicts of Interest and Code
of Conduct policies, which sets out the standards
and values thot directors and employees are
expected to follow.

Impartiality and transparency in governance
and administration are essential to maintgining
the integrity of LGFA. Accordingly, the Conflicts
of Interest Policy provides guidonce to directors
and employees in relation to actual and potential
conflicts of interest, including specific guidance
on managing potential conflicts that may arise
for non-independent directors. Directors and
employeces are expected to avoid all actions,
relationships and other circumstances that
may impoct on their ability to exercise their
professional duties.

The Code of Conduct Policy requires employees
and directors to maintain high standards of
integrity ond conduct by clearly setting out

Principle 2
Board

composition and
performance

LGFA Board Charter

The LGFA Board Charter sets out the roles and
responsibilities of the LGFA Board. The Charter
states that role of the Board is to ensure that LGFA
achieves its goals. Having regard to its role, the
Board will direct, and supervise the management
of the business and affairs of LGFA, including:
+ ensuring that LGFA's goals are clearly
estoblished, and thaot strategies are in place
for achieving them;

» establishing policies for strengthening LGFA’'s
performance;

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Directors should set high standards of ethical
behaviour, model this behaviour and hold
management accountable for these standards
being followed throughout the organisation

stondards for expected behaviour. In addition, the
policy sets out LGFA's commitment to employees
to act in a fair and reasonable manner, while
providing o fair and sofe working environment.

Protected Disclosures and Whistle
Blowing

The LGFA Protected Disclosures and Whistle
Blowing Policy outlines procedure, support and
protection to persons who disclose information
which they reasonably believe to be about serious
wrong-doing in or by LGFA.

Financial Products Trading Policy

The LGFA Financial Products Trading Policy, which
applies to directors, employees and contractors,
details the policy and rules for dealing in listed
debt securities issued by LGFA and any other LGFA
quoted financial products.

To ensure an effective Board, there should be
a balance of independence, skills, knowledge,
experience and perspectives.

» ensuring strategies are in place for meeting
expectations set out in the current Statement
of Intent and monitoring performance against
those expectations, in particular LGFA's primary
objective of optimising the debt funding
terms and conditions for participating local
authorities;

+ monitoring the performance of management;

+ appointing the CEQ, setting the terms of
the CEO's employment contract and, where
necessary, terminating the CEO’'s employment;

Corporate governance LGFA Annual Report 2021 45
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- deciding on whatever steps are necessary to
protect LGFA's financial position and the ability
to meet its debts and other obligations when
they fall due, and ensuring that such steps are
taken;

+ ensuring that LGFA's financial statements are
true and fair and otherwise conform with law;

+ ensuring that LGFA adheres to high standards
of ethics and corporate behaviour; and

+ ensuring thot LGFA has appropriate risk
monagement/regulatory compliance policies
in place. In the normal course of events,
day-to-day management of LGFA will be in
the hands of management. The Board will
satisfy itself thot LGFA is achieving its goals,
and engaging and communicating with
Shareholders Council, and

» engoging and communicating with
shareholders.

Board composition

The LGFA Board comprises five independent
directors and one non-independent director. An
independent director is a director who, within five
years prior to appointment, was not an employee
of any shareholder, employee of a council-
controlled organisation owned by a shareholder,
or a councillor of any local authority which is a
shareholder.

46 |GFA Annual Report 2021 Corporate governance
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The directors of LGFA
as at 30 June 2021

Craig Stobo
Independent Chair

BA (Hons) Economics First Class, Otage; CFiInstD
Associate Member CFA Society New Zedland

Craoig has worked os o diplomat, economist,
investment banker and Chief Executive Officer

of BT Funds Management (NZ) Limited. He

has completed the Advanced Management
Progromme ot Wharton Business School in
Philadelphia, authored reports to the New Zealand
Government on the Toxation of Investment
Income (which led to the PIE regime), and the
creation of New Zealand as a funds domicile. He
currently chairs the listed companies Precinct
Properties New Zealand Limited and AIG Insurance
(NZ Board). He has directorship and private

equity interests in financial services and other
businesses.

John Avery
Independent Director

LLB, C.FInst.D

John was Managing Partner, then Chairman

of Hesketh Henry. He was o director of The
Warehouse Group Limited, several start-up
businesses, a number of CCOs, an industry
cooperative ITM', Regional Facilities Auckland
Limited and Spider Tracks Limited. He is currently
a Trustee of the Royal New Zealand Ballet.
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Philip Cory-Wright
Independent Director

LLB (Hons), BCA Business Management,
INFINZ (Cert), C.FInst.D

Philip is a solicitor of the High Court of New
Zedalond and Victoria. He has worked as a
corporate finance adviser in New Zealand to the
corporate sector on debt and equity matters for
more than 30 years, He is currently a director of
Powerco, Matariki Forests, South Port New Zealand
and Papa Rererangi | Puketapu (New Plymouth
Airport). Philip is also o strategic adviser to clients
in the energy and infrastructure sectors. He was
a member of the Local Government Infrastructure
Expert Advisory Group tasked with advising the
Minister of Local Government on improvements in
local government infrastructure efficiency.

Linda Robertson
Independent Director

B.Com, Dip Banking, INFINZ (Distinguished Fellow),
C.FlInst.D, GAICD

Linda is professional company director with over
20 years governance experience, combined with
30 years senior financial management experience
having worked in both the banking and energy
sectors in New Zealand.

Linda holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree and
a Diploma in Banking. Linda is a Certified Treasury
Professional, a Distinguished Fellow of the Institute
of Finance Professionals New Zealand (INFINZ),

a Groduate Member of the Australian Institute

of Company Directors, a Certified Fellow of the
Institute of Directors in New Zealand and o Fellow
of Governance NZ.

Linda is currently chair of Crown Irrigation
Investments, Central Lakes Trust and Central Otago
District Council's Audit and Risk Committee. She

is a director of Kiwi Wealth, Dunedin City Holdings
and Alpine Energy. Linda is also a member of the
Capital Markets Advisory Committee and the Risk
and Audit Committee of The Treasury.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Mike Timmer
Non-Independent Director

CA, BBS, BAgrSoi, INFINZ (Cert), M.Inst.D

Non-Independent Director
CA, BBS, BAgrSci, INFINZ (Cert), M.Inst.D

Mike has worked for Citibank in its financial
market section and held accountancy and
treasury roles in the health sector and at 30 June
2021was Treasurer at the Greater Wellington
Regional Council. He is an independent member
Whanganui District Council Audit and Risk
Committee and past Deputy Chair of the LGFA
Shareholders Council.

Anthony Quirk
Independent Director

BCA Hons (First Class), INFINZ (Fellow), M.Inst.D

Anthony is an experienced financial services
sector professional with over thirty years executive
experience in the sector. He has o varied portfolio
of governance interests with an emphasis on
areas that improve or contribute to communities.
He is a Fellow of the Institute of Finance
Professionals New Zealand {INFINZ) and is o former
Chairman of that organisation. He was previously
Chair of the Asset Management Advisory Board

of the New Zealand Exchange, Deputy Chair and
Board member of the New Zealand Society of
Investment Analysts and a previous member of
the Financial Reporting Standards Board of the
New Zealand Society of Accountants.

Corporate governance LGFA Annual Report 2021 47

Page 123 of 176

ltem 9

Attachment 2



Z Juawyoeny

6 wWal

Director
Craig Stobo (Chair)

Director

AlG Insurance NZ Limited

Appello Services Limited

Precinct Properties New Zealand Limited

Director/$hareholder

Biomarine Group Limited

Elevation Capital Management Limited
Legend Terrace Limited

Saturn Portfolio Monogement Limited
SouthWest Trustees Limited

Managing Director/Shareholder
Stobo Group Limited

John Avery
Trustee

Royal New Zealand Ballet

Philip Cory-Wright

Director

Matariki Forest Group Limited

Papa Rererangii Puketapu (New Plymouth Airport)
(Chair)

Powerco Limited

South Port New Zealand Limited

Anthony Quirk

Non-Executive Director/Shareholder
Milford Asset Management Limited (and
associated subsidiaries)

Chair

Humanitix, New Zealand

Milford Foundation

Linda Robertson

Chair

Central Lakes Trust and associoted subsidiary
Central Otago District Council, Audit & Risk
Committee

Crown Irrigation Investments Limited

Director

Alpine Energy Limited

Central Lakes Direct Limited

Dunedin City Holdings Limited

Dunedin City Treasury Limited

Dunedin Railways Limited

Dunedin Stadium Property Limited

Member

Office of the Auditor-General and Audit New
Zealand, Audit and Risk Committee

The Treasury, Capital Markets Advisory Committee
The Treasury, Risk and Audit Committee

Mike Timmer
Member

Whanganui District Council Risk & Audit
Committee

Staff

Mark Butcher

Chair

New Plymouth PIF Guardians Limited
Waikato-Tainui Group Investment Committee
Member

Guardians of New Zegland Superannuation,
Nominating Committee

Neil Bain

Chair
Central Hawkes Bay District Council, Audit & Risk
Committee

Directors did not hold any interests in debt securities (including listed bonds) in the company as at

30 June 2021,

Nomination of Directors

Director nominations can only be made by a
shareholder by written notice to LGFA and the
Shareholders’ Council, with not more than three
months, nor less than two months before a
meeting of shareholders. All valid nominations are
required to be sent by LGFA to all persons entitled
to attend the meeting.
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Retirement and re-election of Directors

Directors are appointed to the Board by an
Ordinary Resolution of shareholders. At each
Annual General Meeting, two directors must retire,
but can offer themselves for re-election. The
directors who retire each year are one each of the
independent and non-independent, who have
been longest in office since their last appointment
or, if there are more than one of equal term, those
determined by lot, unless the Board resolves
otherwise.

Page 124 of 176



Director tenure and meetings of the Board

Director Date commenced Board meetings Audit and Risk
in office held/attended Committee held/
attended
Craig Stobo (Chair) 1December 2011 77 N/A
John Avery 1December 201 77 N/A
Philip Cory-Wright 1December 2011 717 414
Anthony Quirk 21 November 2017 77 L4
Linda Robertson 24 November 2015 77 4f4
Mike Timmer 24 November 2015 717 414

Board performance review

The Board has an annual formal self-assessment
to assess director, board and committee
performance. In addition, Board performance is
reviewed by external consultants on a periodic
basis.

Director and staff capability

LGFA is committed to ongoing education and
regularly invites directors and staff to attend
relevant industry conferences and training events,
as well as organising for industry experts to attend
and present to directors at Board meetings.

Diversity

LGFA is committed to promoting o culture thot
supports both workploce diversity and inclusion
within the organisation.

LGFA has formally adopted a Diversity Policy which
applies to both LGFA employees aond directors.
Diversity and inclusiveness at LGFA involves
recognising the value of individual differences
and managing them in the workplace. Diversity in
this context covers gender, oge, ethnicity, cultural
background, sexual orientation, religious belief,
disability, education and family responsibilities.
Appointments to the LGFA Board are made in
accordance with LGFA's Constitution and the
Shareholders Agreement.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Gender diversity of directors

it

it

Gender diversity of employees

pratiftin peet

Indemnities and insurance

Under LGFA's constitution, LGFA indemnifies
directors for potential liabilities and costs they
may incur for acts of omission in their capacity

as directors. LGFA has arranged directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance covering directors

and management acting on behalf of the
company. Cover is for damages, judgements,
fines, penalties, legal costs awarded and defence
costs arising from wrongful acts committed while
acting for LGFA. The types of acts that are not
covered are dishonest, fraudulent, malicious acts,
or omissions, wilful breach of statute or regulation,
or duty to LGFA, improper use of information to the
detriment of LGFA, or breach of professional duty.
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Principle 3

Board
committees

Audit and Risk Committee

The LGFA Audit and Risk Committee is a committee
of the Board.

The Audit and Risk Committee is governed by its
own Charter which states that the purpose of
the Committee is to provide advice, assurance
and cbservations to the Board relating to the
effectiveness and adequacy of internal control
and risk monogement systems, processes aond
activities across LGFA. The Committee ossists the
Board to fulfil its duties by considering, reviewing
and monitoring:

= Risk monagement framework and processes;
= Internal control environmentond mechanisms;

= Operations and effectiveness of the internal
avdit function;

= Preparation and audit of financial statements;

= Integrity of performance information, including
financial reporting;

Principle 4

Reporting
and disclosure

The Board is committed to ensuring the highest
standards are maintained in financial reporting
and disclosure of all relevant information.

The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility to
provide assurance to the Board that due process
has been followed in the preparation and audit of
the financial stotements and to ensure there are
appropriate processes and dctivities to ensure
complionce with relevant regulatory and stotutory
reguirements.

LGFA has adopted o formal Continuous Disclosure
Policy, the requirements of which ensure that LGFA
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The Board should use committees where this
will enhance its effectiveness in key areas,
while still retaining board responsibility.

= Governance framework and process;
Policies, processes and activities to ensure
compliance with legislation, policies and
procedures; and

+  Statutory/regulatory disclosure and reporting
and performance against Statement of Intent
targets.

Audit and Risk Committee members are
appointed by the Board. Membership comprises
at least three directors, the majority of whom
must be independent. The members of the Audit
and Risk Committee as at the date of this Annual
Report are:

Linda Robertson (Chair)
= Philip Cory-Wright
= Anthony Quirk

»  Mike Timmer

The Board should demand integrity in
financial and non-financial reporting, and
in the timeliness and balance of corporate
disclosures.

meets the continuous disclosure requirements of
the NZX Listing Rules including the disclosure for
material environmental, social and governance
(ESG) factors.

The GRI sustainability reporting standards are
the most widely adopted global standards
for sustainability reporting and this year's
annual report has been prepared to meet the
requirements of the Global Reporting Initiative
(GRI) Stondards (core option).

Page 126 of 176



Principle 5

Remuneration

The remuneration of the Board reflects LGFA's size
and complexity and the responsibilities, skills,
performance and experience of the directors. A
specialist independent adviser is used periodically
to ensure the remuneration is appropriate.

Board remuneration is determined by an Ordinary
Resolution of shareholders. The current board
remuneration was approved by shareholder
resolution ot the Annual General Meeting on 21
November 2019.

Director annual fee breakdown

Position. Fees per annum 2021 2020
Board Chair $102,000  $102,000
Audit and Risk $63,000 $63,000
Committee Chair

Director / ARC Member $59,000 $59,000
Director $57,000 $57.000

Director 2021

Craig Stobo $102,000
John Avery $57,000
Philip Cory-Wright $59,000
Anthony Quirk $59,000
Linda Robertson $63,000
Mike Timmer $59,000
Total 399,000

The remuneration of the CEO is determined by

the Board and is reviewed annually taking into
consideration the scope and complexity of the
position with reference to the remuneration

of CEOs of similar organisations. A specialist
independent adviser is used periodically to ensure
the remuneration is appropricte.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

The remuneration of directors and executives
shovuld be transparent, fair and reasonable.

The CEO remuneration package comprises a fixed
cash component of §556,200 per annum as at 30
June 2021($530,000, 2020) and an at-risk short-
term incentive of the fixed cash component. The
short-term incentive payment is made annually
at the Board's discretion subject to the CEO and
LGFA meeting o range of specific performance
objectives for the respective financial year.

Chief Executive remuneration

Per annum 2021 2020
Salary §556,200  $530,000
Taxable benefits - -
Subtotal §556,200  $530,000
Pay for Performance STI $83,430 $79,500
Kiwisaver Employer $25.400 $24,000
Contribution

Total remuneration $665,030  $609,500

Staff remuneration

Total remuneration 2021

$150,000 1o §159,999 1

$190,000 to $199999 1

$210,000 to $219,999 1

$320,000 to §329999 1

$330,000 to $339.999 1

$660,000 to $66999% 1

Total staff receiving 6
$100,000 or more
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Principle 6

Directors should have a sound understanding of
the material risks faced by the issuer and how to

Risk manage them. The Board should regularly verify that

management

LGFA continually reviews its core business risks.
This review process includes the identification
and assessment of core business risks which are
ranked using predetermined criteria for both the
likelihood and potential impact of each risk. LGFA
maintains o company-wide risk register which
records all identified risks, potential impacts and
the controls and mitigation strategies used to
manage the risks.

The Audit and Risk Committee ossists the Board by
considering, reviewing and monitoring LGFA’s risk
management framework and processes, and the
internal control environment and mechanisms.

A detailed description of LGFA's risk management
processes, including managing treasury
exposures, is detailed in the Managing Risk
section of this report.

Internal audit

LGFA has an internal audit function to provide
assurance that its risk management, governance
and internal controls are operating effectively.

Principle 7

Auditors

External audit

The external audit of LGFA is conducted in
accordance with Section 14 of the Public Audit Act
2001, including the appointment of the external
auditors of LGFA by the Auditor-General.

The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility
for all processes relating to the audit of financial

52 [GFA Annual Report 2021 Corporate govermnance
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the issuer has appropriate processes that identify
and manage potential and material risks.

The Audit and Risk Committee has responsibility for
oversight of the internal audit function, including:

= Reviewing the Internal Audit Charter,
the operations of the internal audit and
organisational structure of the internal audit
function;

Approving the annual audit plan;

+ Reviewing the effectiveness of the internal
audit function; and

Meeting separately with the internal auditor
to discuss any matters thot the Audit and Risk
Committee or Internal Audit considers should
be discussed privately.

Health and safety

LGFA is committed to a safe and healthy work
environment and has adopted a Health and
Safety Policy that clearly sets out the duty of
directors and staff under the Health and Safety ot
Work Act 2015. A staff health and safety committee
has been established with responsibility to
continuously review health and sofety issues and
ongoing complionce with the Act, with reporting
to the Board on health and safety issues ateach
Board meeting.

The Board should ensure the quality and
independence of the external audit process.

stotements, including the setting of audit fees and
ensuring the independence and objectivity of the
auditors.

The external audit of LGFA is conducted in
accordance with a formal external audit plan
which is reviewed and approved by the Audit and
Risk Committee on an annual basis. The external
auditor attends LGFA's Annual General Meeting.
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Principle 8
Shareholder

The Board should respect the rights of
shareholders and foster constructive
relationships with shareholders that

rights and

relations

LGFA has 31 shareholders, comprising the New
Zealand Government {20%) and the following 30
councils:

Auckland Council

Bay of Plenty Regional Council
Christchurch City Council

Gisborne District Council

Greater Wellington Regional Council
Hamilton City Council

Hastings District Council

Hauraki District Council
Horowhenua District Council

Hutt City Council

Kapiti Coast District Council
Manawatu District Council
Marlborough District Council
Masterton District Council

New Plymouth District Council
Otorohaonga District Council
Palmerston North City Council
Selwyn District Council

South Taranaki District Council
Tasman District Council

Taupo District Council

Tauranga City Council
Thames-Coromandel District Council
Waimakariri District Council

Waipa District Council

Wellington City Council

Western Bay of Plenty District Council
Whakotane District Council
Whanganui District Council

Whangarei District Council.

Foundation documents

The LGFA Constitution and the Shareholders
Agreement are foundation documents.

The Constitution defines the rights and the
exercise of powers of shareholders, the acquisition
and redemption of company shares, proceedings

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

encourage them to engage with the issuer.

of shareholder meetings, voting at meetings and
the right to demand polls, shareholder proposals
and review of management.

The Shareholders Agreement is an agreement
between LGFA and its shareholders which

clearly defines LGFA's business, its objectives,
the role of the Board, the establishment of the
Shareholders Council and the approval rights of
the shareholders.

LGFA Shareholders Council

The LGFA Shareholders Council comprises five to
ten appointees from the Council Shareholders
and the New Zealand Government. The role of the
Shareholders Council comprises the following:

= Review and report performance of LGFA and
the Board;

= Recommendations to shareholders as to the
appointment, removal, replocement and
remuneration of directors;

- Recommendations to shareholders as to any
changes to policies, or the Statement of Intent
(SOI), requiring their approval;

= Updoate shareholders on LGFA matters and
to coordinate shareholders on governance
decisions.

Members of the Shareholders Council as at 30
June 2021

= Alan Adcock, Whangarei District Council, Chair
= John Bishop, Auckland Council, Deputy Chair

= Mohan de Mel, Tauranga City Council

= David Bryant, Haomilton City Council

= Kumaren Perumal, Western Bay of Plenty
District Council

= Debbie Hylond, Bay of Plenty Regional Council
= Martin Read, Wellington City Council

= Mike Drummond, Tasman District Council

= Miles McConway, Christchurch City Council

= Richard Hardie/Oliver Martin, New Zealand
Government
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Managing risk

An effective risk management framework is a
critical component of LGFA's business structure for
managing the company’s exposure to business
and treasury risks arising from its business
operations of raising and on-lending funds to
local councils.

The objective of LGFA’s risk management
function is to ensure that effective controls

and frameworks are implemented to manage
risks effectively and in complionce with LGFA's
governance and legislative requirements. The

risk management function ensures that LGFA can
achieve its objectives, as set out in the Statement
of Intent, within the risk appetite of the company's
shareholders and Board.

The objective of LGFA’s risk management
framework is to ensure that the organisation
operates within shareholder and Board-approved
risk limits. LGFA's approach to risk management is
based on the following core elements:

= The LGFA Board oversees the risk appetite
of the organisation and ensures that it
is consistent with the constitution and
shareholders agreement.

= Therisk appetite is reflected in policies

approved by the Board and Audit and Risk
Committee.
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- LGFA monogement implements policies and
controls to ensure that all relevant risks are
identified, monitored, measured and managed
effectively.

« The Internal Audit (IA) and risk and compliance
function provide assurance to both the Board
and the Audit and Risk Committee on the
performance of internal controls and risk
management systems.

LGFA adopts the three lines of defence model to
ensure that essential risk management functions
adopt a systematic approach that reflects
industry best proctice:

+ The first line of defence establishes risk
ownership within the company and is
represented by its operational risk and control
processes. LGFA managers are responsible
for identifying controls, maintaining effective
controls and mitigating risks.

+  The second line of defence ensures that the
operational risk and control processes are
actively and appropriately monaged by
processes such as the regular review of risk
reports and complionce monitoring against
the risk management framework.

+ The third line of defence is the independent
assurance provided by both the internal and
external audit functions which review and
highlight control weaknesses and inefficiencies
10 managementand the Board.
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LGFA risk register

The LGFA risk register is a key component of the
company's risk monagement framework.

The key objective of the LGFA risk register is to
ensure that the company assesses the inherent
risks faced by the business on an ongoing basis.

The risk register

+ Identifies the inherent risks that LGFA is exposed
to when conducting its core business activities;

= Assesses the likelihood and potential impact of
the inherent risks on the business;

»  Describes the internal control fromework and
management processes for managing and
mitigating the identified inherent risks;

* Provides commentary on internal audit
coverage of the identified inherent risks; and

» Provides an overall inherent and residual risk
assessment ond compares these to approved
risk appetite settings.

The risk register is reviewed monthly by
management and at each meeting of the Audit
and Risk Committee.

Treasury risk management

LGFA funds itself through domestic and
international wholesale and retail debt capital
markets, with the funds raised on-lent to member
councils. LGFA octivities are governed by the
Local Government Borrowing Act 201, the Local
Government Act 2002, and the Companies Act
1993. In addition, the company is required to
comply with Foundation Policies outlined in the
Shareholders Agreement. Any change to the
Foundation Policies require shareholders consent.

LGFA's risk management uses an approved risk
identification and assessment framework to
actively monitor and manage all treasury and
financial risks by applying best practice risk
management principles, processes and proctices.

LGFA has treasury exposures arising from its
normal business activities that principally relate to
the raising and on-lending of funds. LGFA manages
tredasury exposures under a Board-approved
Treasury Policy, the objectives for which are to:

+ Effectively manage treasury risks, within approved
compliance limits, to protect LGFA's capital
position and Net Interest Margin over time.

* Fund member councils in the most cost-
effective manner and in accordance with LGFA's
operating principles, values and objectives.

» Protect LGFA's assets and prevent
unauthorised transactions.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

= Promote professional expertise of financial
and management control to all external
parties.

- Minimise operational risk by maintaining
adequate internal controls, systems and
staffing competencies.

= Provide timely reporting to the Board with
meaningful and accurate reporting of interest
rate exposures, liquidity, asset and liability
maturity, funding, counterparty credit,
performance and policy compliance.

Specific treasury exposures relate to liquidity,
interest rate/market risk, foreign exchange,
counterparty credit, operational and lending risks.

j Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the potential
inability to meet financial :
obligations when they become
due, under normal or abnormal/
stressed operating conditions.

+

Liquidity risk is monaged using a forecast
cashflow approach measured over 30-day, 90-day
and one-year periods. LGFA is required to maintain
sufficient liquidity (comprising a government
standby facility, and holdings of cash and liquid
investments) to support 12 months operating and
funding commitments.

Interest rate risk

/ market risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that
financial assets may re-price/ :
mature at a different time and/
or by a different amount than
financial liabilities.

Interest rate / market risk is managed using Value
at Risk (VaR) and Partial Differential Hedge (PDH)
limits to mitigate the potential change in value of
the balance sheet due to changes in interest rates.

= Value at Risk calculates the potential amount
a portfolio could be expected to lose, 5% of the
time, over a given time period. It is calculated
using historical changes in underlying risk
variables and applying those changes to the
current portfolio.
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VoR is measured over a daily time horizon with o
95% confidence interval. A daily $5% VaR exposure
of 81 million means that there is a 5% chance that
the portfolio could potentially lose more than $1
million over the next business day.

= Partial Differential Hedge measures the
sensitivity of a portfolio to o one basis point
change in underlying interest rates. For
example, o PDH of NZD$100,000 meaons that the
portfolio value will increase by NZDS100,000 for
o one basis point fall in interest rates.

In addition, LGFA also undertakes scenario

analysis to model the potential effect of changing

market environments on the balonce sheet.

Counterparty

creditrisk

Counterparty credit risk is the
risk of financial loss arising from
a counterparty defaulting on

an investment, security and/or
financial instrument where LGFA
is a holder or party.

Counterparty credit risk is managed through
counterparty limits for investments. These limits are
determined as a function of the term of investment,
liquidity and credit quality of the counterparty

(as measured by a recognised credit rating).
Counterparty risk on derivative contracts is
mitigoted by transacting oll derivative trades
through the Treasury (New Zealand Debt
Management) as the counterparty.

Investment is restricted to approved financial
instruments listed in the Treasury Policy.

Foreign

currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk
of an adverse change in the fair
value of a financial instrument
due to a change in foreign
exchange rates.

Exposure to foreign currency risk could exist if
LGFA accesses foreign capital markets for funding
purposes. To date, all funding has been sourced
through the New Zealond domestic currency.

56 LGFAAnnual Report 2021 Managing risk
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Foreign exchange risk would be manoged through
a requirement to fully hedge back to floating rate
New Zealand dollar the full amount and term of all
foreign currency funding and cash flows.

j Operational risk e

Operational risk, with respect to
treasury management, is the risk
of financial and/or reputation
loss arising from human error,
fraud, negligent behaviour,
system failures and inadequate
procedures and controls.

Operational risk is managed using internal controls
and procedures across operational functions.
Segregation of duties between staff members

who have the authority to enter transactions

with external counterparties and the staff who
control, check and confirm such transactions

is a cornerstone internal control principle.

Financial instruments are not entered into if
the systems, operations and internal controls
do not satisfactorily support the measurement,
management and reporting of the risks
associated with the instrument.

Lending risk

Lending risk is the risk of
financial loss that could
occur from lending funds to
councils or council-controlled
organisations.

LGFA provides debt funding to New Zealond local
government councils and council-controlled
organisations, subject to board approval.

The LGFA Board have ultimate discretion on
approving member councils or Council controlled
organisations which LGFA can then lend to.

All member councils and council controlled
organisations that borrow from LGFA:

- Provide debenture security in relation to their
borrowing from LGFA and related obligations,
and (if relevant), equity commitment liabilities
to LGFA and (if relevant) guarantee liobilities
1o O security trustee approved for LGFA's
creditors.
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Where LGFA is the only lender to o council- = Borrowers with a long-term credit rating of
controlled organisation, o general security ‘A’ equivalent or higher can have bespoke
arrangement (GSA) might be used in ploce of a financial covenants that exceed the
debenture security. foundation policy covenants only with

the approval of an Ordinary Resolution of
shareholders.

= Are required to become o party to o deed of
gudrantee and an equity commitment deed
if the principal amount of their borrowings is = Any Board or Ordinary Resolution approval
at any time equal to, or greater than, NZD 20 of bespoke financial covenants will only be
million. provided after a robust credit onalysis and any
opproval must also include bespoke reporting
and monitoring arrongements.

+ Issue securities (bonds/floating rate notes/
commercial paper) to LGFA (ie. not enter into
facility arrangements). = Non-compliance with the financial covenants

will either preclude a member council from

borrowing from the LGFA or, in the case of
existing council borrowers’, triggeran event

of review. An event of default will occur when

(among other things) a council fails to meet an

interest or principal payment (subject to grace

periods). An event of default will enable the

LGFA to accelerate a council's repayment of

loans.

= Comply with their own internal borrowing
policies.
+ Comply with the financial covenants outlined
in the table below, provided that:
= Unrated borrowers or borrowers with
a long-term credit rating lower than ‘A’
equivalent can have bespoke financial
covenants that exceed the:
= Lending policy covenants outlined in the
following table only with the approval
of the Board;
= Foundation policy covenants outlined
in the following table only with the
approval of an Ordinary Resolution of
shareholders.

= Financial covenants are measured on a parent
council only basis, not consolidated group,
unless requested by o parent council and
approved by the LGFA Board.

Lending policy covenants Foundation policy covenants

Rated councils

Financial covenant

Unrated councils

Net debt/ total revenue <175% <280%

Net interest / total revenue <20% <20%

Net interest/ annual rates income <25% <30%

Liquidity >110% >N0%

On 30 June 2020, o Special General Meeting of = Netinterestis defined as the amount equal to

Shareholders approved o change to the Net Debt/ all interest and financing costs less interest
Total Revenue covenant contained within the income for the relevant period.

Foundation Policy Covenants. For the financial - Annual rates income is defined as the
yearending June 2020 a covenant limit of 250%
applied. This increases to 300% for the June 2021
and June 2022 years and then reduces by 5% for
each of the subsequent years until 280% applies
from the June 2026 year.

amount equal to the total revenue from

any funding mechanism authorised by the
Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 together
with any revenue received from other local
governments for services provided and for

ltem 9
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= Netdebtis defined os total consolidoted debt

less liquid financial assets and investments.

Total revenue is defined as cash earnings from
rates, government grants and subsidies, user
charges, interest, dividends, financial and
other revenue and excludes non-government
capital contributions, eg. developer
contributions and vested assets.
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which the other local governments rate.
Liquidity is defined as external debt
plus committed loan facilities plus liquid
investments divided by external debt.
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Statement of comprehensive income

Forthe year ended ended 30 June 2021in $000s

Note 2021 2020
Interest income 377222 370,220
Interest expense 357,685 351941
Net interest income 4 19,537 18,279
Other operating income 5 184 -
Total operating income 19,721 18,279
Operating expenses 6 774 7.657
Net operating profit 12,007 10,623
Total comprehensive income 12,007 10,623
Statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 30 June 2021in $000s
Note Share Retained Total equity
capital earnings
Equity as at 30 June 2019 25,000 4949 74,149
Net operating profit 10,623 10,623
Total comprehensive income for the year 10,623 10,623
Dividend paid on 6 September 2019 {(1155) (1155)
Equity as at 30 June 2020 25,000 58,616 83,616
Net operating profit 12,007 12,007
Total comprehensive income for the year 12,007 12,007
Dividend paid on 4 September 2020 (879) 879)
Equity as at 30 June 2021 28 25,000 69,744 Q4,744

These statements are to be read in conjunction with the notes to the financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited authorised these
statements for issue on 30 August 2021.

_,..—'—""'_7-
.,--"""'_’
Cg,m-wém
e G
Craig Stobo, Director Linda Robertson, Director
Board Chair Chair, Audit and Risk Committee

Financial Statements LGFA Annual Report 2021 59

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN Page 135 of 176

ltem 9

Attachment 2



Z Juawyoeny

6 wWal

Statement of financial position

As ot 30 June 2021 in $000s

Note 2021 2020
Assets
Financial assets
Receivables n 43,587 -
Cash and bank balances 391,835 165,826
Marketable securities 768,453 589,124
Deposits 654961 499824
Derivatives in gain 10 559,635 1,018,775
Loans 12 12,065,668 10,899,756
Non-financial assets
Prepayments 683 642
Other assets 13 345 99
Total assets 14,485,167 13,174,365
Equity
Share capital 27 25,000 25,000
Retained earnings 69,744 58,616
Total equity 94,744 83,616
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions 4 402300 705
Bills 15 609,624 647,021
Bond repurchases 16 10,220 202 755
Derivatives in loss 10 187,098 19.075
Bonds 17 13,217,759 12,038,468
Borrower notes 8 224281 182,272
Non-financial liabilities
Other liabilities 1] 539 453
Total liabilities 14,390,422 13,090,748
Total equity and liabilities 14,485,167 13,174,365
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Statement of cash flows

Forthe year ended 30 June 2021in $000s

Note 2021 2020
Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Cash applied to loans 12 (1127.002) (1,556,431)
Interest paid on bonds issued (437257) (381,666)
Interest paid on bills issued (2,00) (6,609)
Interest paid on borrower notes (3918} (745)
Interest paid on bond repurchases (674) (333)
Interest received from loans 153,340 223829
Interest received from cash & cash equivalents 909 372
Interest received from marketable securities 12,059 6,729
Interest received from deposits 6,555 5713
Net interest on derivatives 288,127 171,367
Cash proceeds from provision of standby facilities 184
Payments to suppliers and employees (7,470) (7,452)
Net cash flow from operating activities 31 (1,17,249) {1,545,287)
Cashflow from Investing Activities
Purchase of marketable securities (194.125) (335,676)
Purchase of deposits (155,612) (362,980)
Net Cashflow from Investing Activities (349,737) (698,656)
Cashflow from Financing Activities
Cash proceeds from bonds issued 17 1951673 2146925
Cash proceeds from bills issued (37,397) 143,773
Cash proceeds from bond repurchases (134,838) 177,874
Cash proceeds from borrower notes 42760 (24,068)
Dividends paid (878) (1,155)
Cash applied to derivatives (128,326) (89782)
Net Cashflow from Financing Activities 1,692,994 2,353,570
Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash 226,009 109,627
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Bank overdraft at beginning of year 165,826 56,198
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Bank overdraft at end of year 391,835 165,826
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Notes to the financial
statements

1. Reporting entity

The New Zealond Local Government Funding
Agency Limited (LGFA) is o company registered
under the Companies Act 1993 and is subject to the
requirements of the Local Government Act 2002,

LGFA is a council-controlled organisation as
defined under section 6 of the Local Government
Act2002. LGFA s a limited liability company
incorporated and domiciled in New Zealand.

The primary objective of LGFA is to optimise
the debt funding terms and conditions for
participating borrowers.

The registered address of LGFA is Level 8, City
Chambers, 142 Featherston Street, Wellington
Central, Wellington 6011,

The financial statements are as ot and for the
year ended 30 June 2021

These financial stotements were authorised for
issue by the Directors on 30 August 2021.

2. Statement of compliance

LGFA is an FMC reporting entity under the
Financial Markets Conduct Act 2013 (FMCA).
These financial stotements have been prepared
in accordance with that Act and the Financial
Reporting Act 2013. LGFA's bonds are quoted on
the NZX Debt Market.

LGFA is a profit orientated entity as defined under
the New Zealand Equivalents to International
Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS).

The financial statements have been prepared

in accordance with New Zealand Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP) and
they comply with NZ IFRS and other applicable
Financial Reporting Standard, as appropriate for
Tier 1 for-profit entities. The financial statements
also comply with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).

3. Basis of preparation

Medsurement base

The financial statements have been prepared on
a historical cost basis modified by the revaluation
of certain assets and liabilities.

The financial statements are prepared on an
accrual basis.

62 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Financial Statements
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Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in New
Zealand dollars rounded to the nearest thousand,
unless separately identified. The functional
currency of LGFA is New Zealand dollars.

Foreign currency conversions

Transactions denominated in foreign currency
are transloted into New Zealand dollars using
exchange rates applied on the trode date of the
tronsaction.

Changes in accounting policies

LGFA does not consider any standards or
interpretations on issue but not yet effective
to have a significant impact on its financial
statements.

Financial instruments

Financial aossets

Financial assets, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially at fair value plus tronsaction
costs and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand;
cash in transit and bank accounts ond deposits
with an original maturity of no more than three
months.

Purchases and sales of all financial assets are
accounted for at trode date.

At each balance date, an expected credit loss
assessment is performed for all financial assets
and is calculated as either:

» Credit losses that may arise from default events
that are possible within the next 12 months,
where no significant increase in credit risk has
arisen since acquisition of the asset, or

= Credit losses that may arise from default events
that are possible over the expected life of the
financial asset, where a significant increase in
credit risk has arisen since acquisition of the
asset.

Impairment losses on financial assets will
ordinarily be recognised on initial recognition as
a 12-month expected loss allowance and move
to a lifetime expected loss allowance if there

is a significant deterioration in credit risk since
acquisition.

Financial liabilities

Financial liobilities, other than derivatives, are
recognised initially at fair value less transaction
costs and subsequently measured ot amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.
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Derivatives

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
both initially and subsequently at fair value.
They are reported as either assets or liabilities
depending on whether the derivative is in o net
gain or netloss position respectively.

Fair value hedge

Where a derivative qualifies as a hedge of the
exposure to changes in fair value of an asset or
liability (fair value hedge) any gain or loss on the
derivative is recognised in profit and loss together
with any changes in the fair value of the hedged
asset or ligbility.

The carrying amount of the hedged item is
adjusted by the fair value gain or loss on the
hedged item in respect of the risk being hedged.
Effective parts of the hedge are recognised in the
same area of profit and loss as the hedged item.

Other assets

Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are
initially recorded at cost.

Depreciation is charged on a straight-line basis at
rates calculated to allocate the cost or valuation
of an item of property, plant and equipment, less
any estimated residual value, over its remaining
useful life.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise software and project
costs incurred for the implementation of the
treasury management system. Capitalised
computer software costs are omortised on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful

life of the software (three to seven years). Costs
associated with maintaining computer software
are recognised as expenses.

Other liabilities

Employee entitliements

Employee entitlements to salaries and wages,
annual leave and other similar benefits are
recognised in the profit and loss when they
accrue to employees.

Revenue

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective
interest rote method.

The effective interest rate exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial osset to that asset’s
net carrying amount. The method applies this rate

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

to the principal outstonding to determine interest
income each period.

Expenses

Expenses are recognised in the period to which
they relate.

Interest expense

Interest expense is accrued using the effective
interest rote method.

The effective interest rate exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability to that
liability’s net carrying amount. The method
applies this rate to the principal outstonding to
determine interest expense each period.

Income tax

LGFA is exempt from income tax under Section 14
of the Local Government Borrowing Act 2011.

Goods and services tax

All items in the financial statements are presented
exclusive of goods and service tax (GST),

except for receivables and payables, which are
presented on a GST-inclusive baosis. Where GST is
not recoverable as input tax, then it is recognised
as part of the related asset or expense.

The net amount of GST recoverable from,

or payable to, the IRD is included as part of
receivables or payables in the statement of
financial position.

The net GST paid to, or received from the

IRD, including the GST relating to investing
and financing activities, is clossified as a net
operating cash flow in the statement of cash
flows.

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed
exclusive of GST.

Segment reporting

LGFA operates in one segment being funding of
participating borrowers in New Zealond.

Judgements and estimations

The preparation of these financial statements
requires judgements, estimaotes and assumptions
that offect the application of policies and
reported amounts. For example, the fair value

of financial instruments depends critically on
judgements regarding future cash flows, including
inflation assumptions and the risk-free discount
rate.

The estimates and associated assumptions

are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable
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under the circumstances. Actual results may
differ from these estimates and these estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on

an ongoing basis. Where these judgements
significantly affect the amounts recognised in the
financial statements they are described in the
following notes.

The financial statements as at 30 June 2021
include estimates and judgements of the
potential impact of COVID-19 and the Three

Revenue and expenditure

4. Net interest income

Waters Reform Programme on LGFA's financial
position and performance. Whilst there has
been no material impact on the estimates

and judgements at the date these financial
statements are authorised, it is noted that there
is significant uncertainty with regards to the
medium and long-term effects of COVID-19, as
well as the outcome of Three Waters Reform
Programme on the local government sector.

For the year ended ended 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Interest income
Cash and cash equivalents 922 394
Marketable securities 4,181 4 462
Deposits 6,080 6,341
Derivatives 212,759 152,621
Loans 153,280 206,402
Fair value hedge ineffectiveness - =
Total interest income 377,222 370,220
Interest expense
Bills 2,100 6,632
Bond repurchase transactions 398 5%0
Lease liability 13 22
Bonds 353,005 341,783
Borrower notes 268 2914
Total interest expense 357,685 351,941
Net interest income 19,537 18,279

5. Other operating income

As at 30 June 2021, LGFA haod committed to provide credit standby focilities totalling $515 million to

selected councils. As at balance date, there were no drawdowns outstanding under the facilities.

For the year ended 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Standby facilities fee income 184 =
Total other operating income 184 -

&4 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Financial Statements
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6. Operating expenses

For the year ended 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Issuance and oh-lending expenses
Approved issuer levy ' 1,055 1,396
Rating agency fees 633 609
NZDM focility fee 567 650
Legal fees - issuance 477 499
NZX 637 559
Trustee fees 100 100
Regulatory, registry, other fees 207 157

3,676 3,971

Other operating expenses
Information technology 725 689
Consultants 152 127
Directors fees 399 399
Insurance 85 78
Legal fees 185 139
Other expenses 355 354
Auditors’ remuneration

Statutory audit 108 103

Advisory services - -
Personnel 2,030 1,798

5,038 3,685

Total operating expenses 7,714 7,656

1. The amount of Approved Issuer Levy is a function of the number of the offshore holders of certain LGFA

bond maturities.

Financial instruments

7. Financial instruments accounting
policy

Financial instruments are recognised in the

statement of financial position at amortised cost.

Fairvalues of financial instruments not recognised
in the statement of financial position at fair value
are determined for note disclosure as follows:

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Cash and bank, trade and other receivables,
trode and other payables

The carrying value of cash and bank, trade and
otherreceivables, trade and other poyables
approximate their fair value as they are short-
term instruments.
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Marketable securities and bonds

The fairvalue of bonds and marketable securities
are determined using the quoted price for the
instrument.

Deposits

The fair value for deposits is determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis. The interest rates
used to discount the estimated cash flows are
based on current market interest rates.

Loans

The fair value of loans is determined using a
discounted cash flow analysis. The interest rates
used to discount the estimated cash flows are
based on LGFA bond yields at the reporting dote
plus an appropriate credit spread to reflect the
counterparty’s credit risk.

As at 30 June 2021 in $000s

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Financial assets

Leases

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using LGFA's incremental borrowing
rate, with the corresponding right-of-use asset
recognised as an egqual amount.

Borrower notes

The fair value of borrower notes is determined
using a discounted cash flow analysis. The
interest rates used to discount the estimated
cash flows are based on LGFA bond yields at the
reporting date.

Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities
The following table shows the fair value of
financial assets and financial liabilities, together
with the carrying amounts shown in the statement
of financial position.
Financial Financial Fair value
assets at assets
amortised measured at
cost fair value in
accordance
with NZ IFRS 9

Cash and bank balances - 391,835 - 391,835
Trade and other receivables - 43,587 - 43587
Marketable securities - 768,453 - 771789
Deposits - 654961 - 655,891
Derivatives - - 559,635 559,635
Loans - 12,065,668 - 12,427,742
- 13,924,504 559,635 14,856,478

Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions 40,900 - - 40900
Bills 609,624 - - 609,632
Bond repurchases 10,220 - - 10,220
Derivatives - - 187,098 187,098
Bonds 13,217,759 - - 13,469,218
Borrower notes 224281 - - 227,336
14,202,785 - 187,098 14,644,404
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As at 30 June 2020 in $000s

Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost

Financial assets

Financial Financial Fair value
assets at assets
amortised measured at
cost fairvalue in
accordance

with NZ IFRS 9

Cash and bank balances - 165,826 - 165,826
Trade and other receivables = = = =
Marketable securities - 589,124 - 591,617
Deposits - 499 824 - 501,625
Derivatives = = 1,018,775 1,018,775
Loans to local government - 10,899,756 - 12713617
= 12,154,529 1,018,775 14,991,758

Financial liabilities
Payables and provisions 705 = = 705
Bills 647,021 o = 647,235
Bond repurchases 202,755 o = 202,879
Derivatives - - 15,075 19,075
Bonds 12,038,468 o = 12,196,826
Borrower notes 182,272 = = 186,725
13,071,221 = 19,075 13,253,445

8. Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are the only
instruments recognised in the statement of
financial position at fair value.

Derivative financial instruments are valued under
level 2 of the following hierarchy.

Llevel 1 - Quoted market prices: Fair value based
on quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets orliabilities.

Level 2 - Valuation techniques using observable
market inputs: Fair value based on a valuation
technigue using other thon quoted prices
included within Level 1that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or
indirectly (derived from prices).

Level 3 - Valuation techniques using significant
non-observable market inputs: Fair value based
on a valuation technique using inputs for the
asset or liability that are not bosed on observable
market dota (unobservable inputs).

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

The fair value of derivative financial instruments
is determined using o discounted caosh flow
analysis. Interest rates represent the most
significant assumption used in valuing derivative
financial instruments. The interest rotes used to
discount estimated cash flows are based on the
New Zealand dollar swap curves dt the reporting
date.
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9. Hedge accounting

LGFA is exposed to interest rate risk from fixed rate borrowing and variable rate lending to councils. LGFA
uses interest rate swaps to manage this interest rate risk. For hedge accounting purposes, LGFA has
designated these swaps in fair value relationships to its fixed rate borrowings, loans and marketable
securities.

The following table shows the gain or loss on the hedging instrument and the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk for fair value hedge relationships.

As at 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Gain/{loss) Gain/(loss)

Hedging instruments - interest rote swaps (680,122) 319,032
Hedged items attributable to the hedged risk 680,122 (319,032)

Ineffectiveness recognised in profit or loss from fair value hedges - o

The gains or losses on the hedging instrument (interest rate swaps) and the hedged item {(bonds, loans
or marketable securities) are mapped to the same fair value account. For this reason, the statement of
comprehensive income will only report any ineffectiveness arising from the fair value hedge.

10. Offsetting

NZ |AS 32: Financial Instruments Presentation allows financial assets and liabilities to be offset only when
there is a current legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and there is an intention either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

LGFA does not offset any amounts.

The following table shows the amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement that are not offset in the statement of financial position.

As at 30 June 2021in $000s Derivative Derivative
assets liabilities
Gross amounts 559,635 187,098

Amounts offset - -

Carrying amounts 559,635 187,098

Amounts that don't qualify for offsetting - -

Financial ossets & liobilities (187,098) (187,098)
Collateral - -
Net amocunt 372,536 -

68 LGFA Annual Report 2021 Financial Statements

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Page 144 of 176



As at 30 June 2020 in $000s Derivative Derivative

assets liabilities

Gross amounts 1,018,775 19075

Amounts offset - -

Carrying amounts 1018775 19,075

Amounts that don't qualify for offsetting - -

Financiol assets & liabilities (13,075) (19,075)
Collateral = =
Net amount 999,700 -

11. Receivables

As at 30 June In $000s 2021 2020
Unsettled bond repurchases 42,578 -
Unsettled borrower notes 1,000 =
Trade debtors 9 =
Total receivables 43,587 -
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12 Leans
As at 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Short-term Short-term
loans loans

Ashburton District Council 10,01 60,723 10,001 32,279
Auckland Council - 3303915 - 2,766,155
Bay of Plenty Regional Council 25,428 155995 - 192,077
Buller District Council - 20,005 - 20,005
Canterbury Regional Council 4003 59133 6,002 48129
Central Howkes Bay District Council - 20,107 - 20107
Christchurch City Council 14,533 1951017 25,094 1904,271
Clutha District Council 2004 16,042 2,003 7030
Far North District Council - 51,702 10,001 46,686
Gisborne District Council - 68,774 - 58,754
Gore District Council 6,01 26,563 6,004 16,538
Greater Wellington Regional Council - 450945 - 425,877
Grey District Council 3995 21642 3967 15,196
Hamilton City Council - 481019 - 481,064
Hastings District Council - 205,357 - 150,335
Hauraki District Council - 44101 - 44102
Hawkes Bay Regional Council - 18,868 - 2507
Horizons Regional Council 1,991 37194 6987 37199
Horowhenua District Council 16,000 9278 16,003 90,618
Hurunui District Council 8,002 30,062 8,005 30,065
Hutt City Council - 201225 - 216,523
Invercargill City Council - 68,666 25,013 65165
Kaikoura District Council - 5,014 4,007 3,008
Kaipara District Council - 4#4 088 - 44,089
Kapiti Coast District Council - 230,366 - 210,353
Manaowatu District Council 1,522 72,681 1,519 65,669
Marlborough District Council 30,226 73136 27224 73,157
Masterton District Council - 48,609 - 51,215
Matamata-Piako District Council - 26,567 - 26,561
Nelson City Council - 90,146 - 75,18
New Plymouth District Council - 169399 - 139,939
Northlaond Regional Council - 14147 - 9729
Opotiki District Council - 8,600 - 8,620
Otorohanga District Council - - - 3,035
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12 Loans (cont)

As at 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Short-term Short-term
loans loans

Palmerston North City Council - 152,314 - 137267
Porirua City Council - 141,794 = 131,787
Queenstown Lakes District Council 25,030 130,333 20,027 95,525
Rangitikei District Council - 3,020 = 3,020
Rotorua District Council 12,823 215,034 22,855 195,105
Ruapehu District Council 8,005 21,474 8,005 17,061
Selwyn District Council - 60,129 = 35,092
South Taranaki District Council - 95,210 - 101,232
South Waikato District Council 8987 15,030 = =
South Wairarapa District Council - 24,520 - 22,018
Stratford District Council - 2227 - 15,571
Taranaki Regional Council 4999 - 3992 -
Tararua District Council - 44100 2,006 33,080
Tasman District Council 27,037 152,035 31143 177039
Taupo District Council - 125,177 = Nns77
Tauranga City Council - 516,688 - 526768
Thames-Coromandel District Council - 61,145 - 61,147
Timaru District Council 22529 n7181 22,577 67,203
Upper Hutt City Council - 65153 2893 4608
Waikaoto District Council - 80,189 - 95,222
Waikato Regional Council - 32,082 - 32,085
Waimakariri District Council - 170,506 - 160,550
Waipa District Council 8,000 30,123 13,503 40,053
Wairoa District Council - 8,041 - 9045
Waitaki District Council 2,498 12,523 - -
Waitomo District Council 4,003 30,045 7022 30,044
Wellington City Council - 792,505 - 635,684
West Coast Regional Council 2,001 6,610 2,001 6,610
Western Bay Of Plenty District Council - 70,154 - 90,212
Westland District Council - 21,858 - 19,652
Whakatane District Council - 77,203 = 67,178
Whanganui District Council 7,507 9L 289 7,510 94290
Whangarei District Council 993 162,296 992 142,301
Fair value hedge adjustment - (1,091} = =

287,140 1,778,528 315,456 10,584,299
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13. Other assets

As at 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Intangible assets' 154 306
Right-of-use lease asset 190 13
Total other assets 345 419

1. Intongible assets comprise acquired and internally developed software costs incurred on the
implementation of LGFA's treasury management system.

14 Payables and provisions

As at 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Unsettled loans 40,000 =
Trade creditors 658 561
Credit provision 193 132
Other provisions 49 13
Total payables and provisions 40,900 705
15. Bills

As at 30 June 2021 in $000’s Face value Unamortised Accrued Total

premium interest

7 July 2021 20,000 m - 19999
15 July 2021 110,000 (13) - 109,987
5 August 2021 25,000 8) - 24992
11 August 2021 80,000 (29) - 7997
10 September 2021 75,000 (46) - 74954
17 September 2021 150,000 (95) - 143305
6 October 2021 20,000 (20) - 19,280
14 October 2021 55,000 (57) - S4943
10 November 2021 50,000 (73) - 49927
8 December 2021 25,000 (34) - 24966

610,000 (376) - 609,624
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As at 30 June 2020 in $000’s Facevalue Unamortised Accrued Total
premium interest

8 July 2020 110,000 (21 - 109979
17 July 2020 58,500 (31 o 58,469
22 July 2020 12,000 ©)] o 1891
6 August 2020 225,000 (102 - 224,898
12 August 2020 75,000 79 o 74921
9 September 2020 50,000 (59) = 49341
7 October 2020 17,000 (36) o 16564
11 November 2020 50,000 (63) o 49937
9 December 2020 25,000 (37) = 24963
15 December 2020 25,000 (43) - 24957
647,500 (479) = 647,021

16. Treasury stock and bond repurchases

Periodically, LGFA subscribes for LGFA bonds os part of its tender process and holds these bonds as
treasury stock. LGFA bonds held by LGFA as treasury stock are derecognised at the time of issue and

no liability is recognised in the statement of financial position. As at 30 June 2021, $1,000 million of LFGA
bonds had been subscribed as treasury stock.

LGFA makes these treasury stock bonds available to banks authorised as its tender counterparties to
borrow under short-term repurchase transactions. The objective of the bond lending facility is to assist
with improving secondary market liquidity in LGFA bonds. Bonds lent to counterparties are disclosed as a
separate stock lending liability on the face of the statement of financial position.

As At 30 June 2021, bond repurchase transactions comprised:

As at 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
15 May 2021 - 25570
14 April 2022 - 25,196
15 April 2023 32,887 27,670
15 April 2024 - 25,139
15 April 2025 - 22135
15 April 2026 - -
15 April 2027 - 31,145
20 April 2029 33,810 22,899
14 April 2033 38957 22,600
15 April 2037 4,566 o

110,220 202,755
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17. Bonds

Bonds on issue do notinclude $1,000 million face value of issued LGFA bonds subscribed by LGFA and held
as treasury stock. Refer Note 16: Treasury stock and bond repurchase transactions.

As at 30 June 2021 Face Value Unamortised Accrued Fair value

in $000’s premium interest hedge
adjustment

Fixed interest bonds

14 April 2022 1,605,000 15,527 9,406
15 April 2023 1,660,000 46,296 19,208
15 April 2024 1,528,000 17466 7233
15 April 2025 1,469,000 (20190) 8,499
15 April 2026 1,240,000 69M 3913
15 April 2027 1,486,000 82,140 14,068
20 April 2029 1,172,000 (10512) 3458
15 May 2031 650,000 (£966) 1,868
14 April 2033 1,170,000 3787 8727
15 April 2037 700,000 (8,443) 2945
Total fixed interest 12,680,000 162,045 79,326 166,138 13,087,509

Fleating rate notes

14 October 2022 130,000 (33) 283 - 130,250

Total 12,810,000 162,012 79,610 166,138 13,217,759

As at 30 June 2020 Face Value  Unamortised Accrued Fair value

in $000’s premium interest hedge
adjustment

Fixed interest bonds

15 May 2021 1,450,000 19,259 nm
14 April 2022 1,155,000 16,630 6,769
15 April 2023 1,550,000 55,449 17935
15 April 2024 1,248,000 6,717 5908
15 April 2025 1,409,000 (31,014) 8,152
15 April 2026 1,000,000 763 3,156
15 April 2027 1,326,000 56,918 12,554
20 April 2029 692,000 (14,904) 2,042
14 April 2033 1,030,000 8,706 7,683
Total fixed interest 10,860,000 18,524 75,309 854,268 11,908,100

Floating rate notes

14 October 2022 130,000 (58) 426 = 130,368

Total 10,990,000 118,465 75,735 854,268 12,038,468
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18. Borrower notes

Borrower notes are subordinated debt instruments which are required to be held by each local authority
that borrows from LGFA in an amount equal to a fixed percentage of the aggregate borrowings by that
local authority. The fixed percentage is 2.5% for loans issued from 1July 2020. Prior to this daote, the fixed
percentage was 1.6%.

LGFA may convert borrower notes into redeemable shares if it has made calls for all unpaid capital to be
paid in full and the LGFA Board determines it is still at risk of imminent default.

19. Other liabilities

As at 30 June in $000s Yearended Year ended
2021 2020

Lease liability 190 n3
Accruals 349 340
Total receivables 539 453

20. Operating leases

As at 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Less than one year m 70
Between one and five years 79 43
Total non-cancellable operating leases 190 n3
Risk management 22. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
21. Financial risk management prices will affect LGFA's income or value of
financial instruments. The most significant market
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility risk which LGFA is exposed to is interest rate
for carrying out the business of LGFA in risk. LGFA has no significant exposure to foreign
dccordance with risk management policies, exchange risk.

including those relating to investing, lending,
borrowing and treasury activities. The use of
financial instruments exposes LGFA to financial
risks, the most significant being market risk, credit
risk, and liquidity risk.
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23. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows
or the fair value of financial instruments will
decrease because of a change in market interest
rates. LGFA is exposed to interest rate risk through

its interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities.

Interest rate risk is managed using Value ot Risk
(VaR) and Partial Differential Hedge (PDH) limits

to mitigate the potential change invalue of the
balonce sheet due to changes in interest rates.
PDH risk measures the sensitivity of o portfolio to
a one basis point change in underlying interest
rates, whereas VAR medsures the expected loss
for a given period with a given confidence.

The table below indicates the earliest period in
which the interest-bearing financial instruments

reprice.
As at 30 June 2021 in $000s Face Lessthan é&months 1-2years 2-Syears Overs
value &6 months -1year years
Financial assets
Cash and bank Balances 391,835 391,835 - - - -
Marketable securities 765,762 317070 50,272 182,261 216159 -
Deposits 654,331 509,331 145,000 - - -
Loans N999,282 10,252,377 138,782 252,500 606,100 749,523
Financial liabilities
Bills (610,000)  (610,000) - - - -
Bond repurchases (67,640) (67.640) - - - -
Derivatives - (10924,750) 1,448,000 1463750 3,486,000 4527000
Bonds (12,810,000) (130,000) (1,605,000} (1,660,000) (4,237000) (5,78,000)
Borrower notes (212,750) (180,164) (1982) (4,406) (1,382) (14,815)
Total 110,820 (441,941) 175,07 234,105 59,877 83,708

As at 30 June 2021 in $000s Face

value &

Less than

6 months
-1year

1-2years

months

Financial assets

Cash and bank Balances 165,826 165,826 - - - -
Marketable securities 576,298 335,758 12,903 18,214 109,423 -
Deposits 497980 397980 100,000 o = =
Loans 10,868,876 918964 52%5%0 153,300 532,200 534423
Financial liabilities

Bills (647,500) (647,500) = o = =
Bond repurchases (202.478)  (202,478) = = = =
Derivatives - (9,347750) 1,014,500 1,065,000 3,735,250 3,533,000
Bonds (10990,000) (130,000) (1,450,000) (1155,000) (4,207,000) (4,048,000)
Borrower notes (168,845) (141,197) (8,130) (2,453) (8,515) {8,551)
Total 100,157 (450,397) 299263 79,061 161,358 10,872
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Interest rate sensitivity

Changes in interest rates impact the fair value of fixed rate assets and liabilities, cash flows on floating
rate assets and liabilities, and the fair value and cash flows of interest rate swops. A change of 100

basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased/(decreased) profit or loss and
equity by the amounts shown in the following table. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain
constant.

For the period ending 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps

increase decrease increase decrease
$000s $000s $000s $000s

Fair value sensitivity analysis

Fixed rote assets - - - -

Fixed rate liabilities 558172 (571,857) L8B4 £92 (493186)
Derivative financial instruments (557,130) 570,782 (483,279) 491932
1,042 (1,075) 1,213 (1,254)

Cash flow sensitivity analysis

Variable rate assets 100,661 (100,667 89,636 (89,636)
Varioble rate liabilities (3,093) 3,093 (2712) 2,712
Derivative financial instruments (105,568) 105,568 (93,608) 93,608
(7,599) 7,999 {6,684) 6,684
24. Credit risk Credit risk associated with investing activities,

excluding on-lending, is managed by only
investing with New Zealand Government or
counterparties thaot meet g minimum credit rating
of A (S&P Global Ratings equivalent). The LGFA's
credit risk framework limits concentrations of
credit risk for any single counterparty.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if o
counterparty to a financial instrument fails to
meet its contractual obligations. LGFA is exposed
to credit risk through its lending and investing
activities.

Credit risk associoted with lending activities

is managed by requiring local authorities

that borrow from LGFA to meet specific

credit lending criteria and to provide security
against the borrowing. The LGFA’'s credit risk
framework restricts credit exposures to specific
counterparties.
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Exposure to credit risk

LGFA monitors the concentration of credit risk by the type of counterparty. The following table shows
the carrying value and moximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date, before taking account of
collateral or other credit enhancements, for significant counterparty types.

As at 30 June 2021 in $000s NZ

government
agencies

Financial assets

NZ local
authorities

NZ Other  FairValue Total
registered counter- hedge carrying
banks parties adjustment valve

Cash and bank balances 388960 - 2,875 - - 391,836
Trade and other receivables - 1,000 42,578 Q - 43,587
Marketable securities - 14,006 159,250 602,115 6917) 768,453
Deposits - - 524,839 130,122 - 654961
Derivatives 372,536 - - - - 372,536
Loans - 12,066,760 - - (1,091} 12,065,668

761,497 12,081,765 729,542 732,246 (8,008) 14,297,042

As at 30 June 2020 in $000s NZ

government
agencies

Financial assets

NZ local
authorities

NZ Other  FairValue Total
registered counter- hedge carrying
banks parties adjustment value

Cash and bank balances 165,070 = 756 = = 165,825
Trade and other receivables o o o o o o
Marketable securities 123,615 52,181 89,868 323,460 - 589124
Deposits = = 459783 40,041 = 499,824
Derivatives 999,700 - - - - 999700
Loans = 10,899,756 = = = 10,899,756

1,288,385 10,951,937 550,406 363,501 - 13,154,229

Collateral and credit enhancements

LGFA holds collateral against borrowings from

local quthorities in the form of debenture
securities ond guarantees.

Credit quality of financial assets

All financial assets are neither past due nor
impaired. The carrying value of the financial

assets is expected to be recoverable.

25. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that LGFA will encounter
difficulty in meeting the obligations of its financial
liabilities. LGFA manages liquidity risk by holding
caosh and a portfolio of liquid ossets to meet
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obligations when they fall due. LGFA is required by
policy to maintain sufficient liquidity (comprising
a committed liquidity focility and holdings of cash
and liquid investments) to meet all operating and
funding commitments over a rolling 12-month
period.

The Treasury (New Zealand Debt Management)
provides a committed liquidity facility that LGFA
can draw upon to meet any exceptional and
temporary liquidity shortfall. As at 30 June 2021,
the undrown committed liquidity focility was $500
million (2020: $700 million). The focility is due to
expire in December 2031

Page 154 of 176



26. Contractual cash flows of financial instruments.

The following table shows the contractual cash flows associated with financial assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2021 More Total Total

in $000s On Upto3 3 months 1yearto than5 contractual carrying
demand months tolyear S years years cash flows value

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 391,835 - - - - 391,835 291,835
Trade and other 43 587 - - - - 43 587 43 587
receivables

Marketable secvurities - 157779 19,844 515,213 - 792,836 768,453
Deposits - 249,627 407175 - - 656,802 654,961
Loans - 194,635 1675752 6,285,605 4,573,829 12,729,822 12,065,668

Financial liabilities

Payables and provisions 40200 - - - - 40,200 40900
Bills - (460,000} (150,000} - - (610,000} (609,624}
Bond repurchases - (110,222) - - - (10,222} (110,220}
Bonds - (331) (1988,835) (6999417} (5811,385)  (14799968) (13,217,759}
Borrower notes - (782} (23,588} (112,339} (97.506) (234715} (224,281}
Derivatives - (22,311} 266446 574114 351,867 1169116 372,536

476,322 7,395 306,094 262,676 (983.195) 69,992 176,056

As at 30 June 2020 More Total Total

in $000s Uptoe3 3 months lyearto than5 contractual carrying
months tolyear S years years cash flows value

Financial assets

Cash and bank balances 165,826 = = = = 165,826 165,826
Trade and other - - - - - - -
receivables

Marketable securities - 194,160 2223916 175954 - 583,029 589,124
Deposits = 289,288 212,759 = = 502,048 499,824
Loans = 224293 1802829 6,047,790 3,355,153 1,530,065 10,899,756

Financial liabilities

Payables and provisions (705) - - - - (705) (705)
Bills - (530500) (117,000) - = (647,500) (647.021)
Bond repurchases - (102752)  (100.276) - - (203,028) (202,755)
Bonds - (483) (1,843131) (6,420275) (4512260) (12,776150) (12,038,468)
Borrower notes - {438) {31,198) (99.957) (59,551) (191144)  (182,272)
Derivatives = (21309) 266,054 554,255 265,760 1,064,760 999,700

165,121 52,258 512,953 257,766 (950,898) 37,199 83,008
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Capital and dividends

27. Share capital

As ot 30 June 2021, LGFA had 45 million ordinary shares on issue, 20 million of which remain uncalled.

All ordinary shares rank equally with one vote attached to each ordinary share. Ordinary shares hoave a
face value of §1 per share.

28. Shareholder information

Registered holders of equity securities

asat30June 2021 2020

New Zealand Government 5,000,000 1% 5,000,000 N1%
Auckland Council 3731960 8.3% 3,731860 8.3%
Christchurch City Council 3731960 8.3% 3,731960 8.3%
Hamilton City Council 3,731%60 8.3% 3731360 8.3%
Bay of Plenty Regional Council 3,731,958 8.3% 3731958 8.3%
Greater Wellington Regional Council 3,731958 8.3% 3731958 8.3%
Tasman District Council 3,731,958 8.3% 3731958 8.3%
Tauranga City Council 3,731958 8.3% 3,731,958 8.3%
Wellington City Council 3,731,958 8.3% 3,731,958 8.3%
Western Bay of Plenty District Council 3,731,958 8.3% 3731958 8.3%
Whangarei District Council 1,492784 3.3% 1,492,784 3.3%
Hastings District Council 746,392 1.7% 746,392 1.7%
Marlborough District Council 400,000 09% 400,000 05%
Selwyn District Council 373196 0.8% 373196 0.8%
Gisborne District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Hauraki District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Horowhenua District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Hutt City Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Kapiti Coast District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Manawatu District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Masterton District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 04%
New Plymouth District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Otorohanga District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Palmerston North District Gouncil 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
South Taranaki District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Taupo District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Thames-Coromandel District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Waimakariri District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Waipa District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Whakatane District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%
Whanganui District Council 200,000 0.4% 200,000 0.4%

45,000,000 100% 45,000,000 100%
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29. Capital management

LGFA's capital is equity, which comprises share
caopital and retained earnings. The objective of
mandging LGFA's equity is to ensure LGFA achieves
its goals and objectives for which it has been
established, whilst remaining o going concern.

Other Notes

30. Dividend

LGFA paid a dividend of $878,500 on 4 September
2020, being $0.03514 per paid up share (2019:
$1,285,000 on 6 September 2019, being $0.0462 per
paid up share).

31. Reconciliation of net profit to net cash flow from operating activities

For the year ended 30 June in $000s 2021 2020
Net profit/(loss) for the period 12,007 10,623
Cash applied to loans (1127.002) (1,556,511)
Non-cash adjustments
Amortisation and depreciation (2,347) 528
Working capital movements
Net change in trade debtors and receivables 105 87
Net change in prepayments (a1) (72)
Net change in accruals 29 58
Net Cash From Operating Activities (1,117,249) (1,545,287)

32. Capital commitments

As at 30 June 2021, there are no capital commitments.

33. Contingencies

There are no contingent liabilities at balance date.

34. Related parties

Identity of related parties

LGFA is related to the local authorities set out in
the Shareholder Information in note 28.

LGFA operates under an annual Statement of
Intent with the respective local guthorities that
sets out the intentions and expectations for LGFA's
operations and lending to participating borrowers.

Shareholding local authorities, and non-shareholder
local authorities who borrow more than $20 million,
are required to enter into o guarantee when

they join or participate in LGFA. The guarantee

is in respect of the payment obligations of other
guaranteeing local authorities to the LGFA (cross
guarantee) and of the LGFA itself.

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Related party transactions

LGFA was established for the purpose of raising
funds from the market to lend to participating
borrowers. The lending to individual councils

is disclosed in note 12, and interest income
recognised on this lending is shown in the
statement of comprehensive income.

The purchase of LGFA borrower notes by
participating borrowers Refer note 18.

As at 30 June 2021, Mike Timmer was a non-
independent director of LGFA and was also
employed by Greater Wellington Regional Council
(GWRC) as Treasurer. GWRG borrowed from LGFA
during the financial year on the same terms and
conditions as any other council borrower,

The Treasury (New Zealand Debt Management)
provides LGFA with o committed credit focility and
is LGFA's derivatives counterparty.

Key manogement personnel:

Salaries $989,100 (2020: $951,900)

Fees paid to directors are disclosed in operating
expenses in Note 6.
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35. Subsequent events

On 24 August 2021, the Directors of LGFA declared

a dividend of $856,500 ($0.03426 per paid up share).

COVID-19 pandemic update. On 17 August 2021,
New Zealand moved to Alert Level 4. LGFA hos
processes in place to manage the day-to-day
impacts and the changing risk levels within

each lockdown Alert Level. Monagement have
considered the implications of COVID-19 on all
aspects of our business and note there no events
which require adjustment to or disclosure in these
financial statements.

Subsequent to balance date, LGFA has issued
$485 million in bonds.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE READERS OF NEW ZEALAND LOCAL GOVERNMENT FUNDING AGENCY LIMITED’S FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2021
The Auditor-General is the auditor of New Zealand Local Government Funding Agency Limited (the
company). The Auditor-General has appointed me, Brent Manning, using the staff and resources of KPMG,
to carry out the audit of the financial statements and performance information of the company on his
behalf.
Opinion

We have audited:

the financial statements of the company on pages 59 to 82, that comprise the statement of financial
position as at 30 June 2021, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity
and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date and the notes to the financial statements
that include accounting policies and other explanatory information; and

the performance information of the company on pages 10 to 15.
In our opinion:
» the financial statements of the company on pages 59 to 82:
= present fairly, in all material respects:
- it financial position as at 30 June 2021; and

- its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended; and

comply with generally occepted accounting practice in New Zealand in accordance with New Zealand
Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Stondards (NZ IFRS) and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS); and

the performance information of the company on pages 10 to 15 presents fairly, in all material respects,
the company’s actual performance compared against the performance targets and other measures by
which performance was judged in relation to the company’s objectives for the year ended 30 June 2021.

Our audit was completed on 30 August 2021. This is the date at which our opinion is expressed.

The basis for our opinion is explained below. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of the Board of
Directors and our responsibilities relating to the financial statements and the performance information,
we comment on other information, and we explain our independence.

Basis for our opinion

We carried out our audit in accordance with the Auditor-Generdl's Auditing Standards, which incorporate
the Professional and Ethical Standards and the International Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued
by the New Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Responsibilities of the auditor section of our report.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our opplication of materiality. Materiality helped us to
determine the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures and to evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both individually and on the financial statements as a whole. The materiality for the
financial statements as o whole was set at $110 million determined with reference to o benchmark

of company Total Assets. We chose the benchmark because, in our view, this is a key measure of

the company's performance. In addition, we also assess whether other matters that come to our
attention during the audit would in our judgement change or influence the decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable person (‘qualitative’ materiality).
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Key Audit Matters

KPMG

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements in the current period. We summarise below those matters and our key
audit procedures to address those matters in order that the readers as o body may better understand
the process by which we arrived at our audit opinion. Our procedures were undertaken in the context of
and solely for the purpose of our statutory audit opinion on the financial statements as a whole and we
do not express discrete opinions on separate elements of the financial statements.

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Existence and impairment of foans

Refer to Note 12 to the Financial Statements.

The loans LGFA has provided to local government
make up over 83% of total assets. The loans are
recognised at amortised cost and the nature of
the counterparties is such that we do not consider
these loans to be at high risk of significant
misstatement. However, based on their materiality,
and the judgement involved in assessing the credit
worthiness of counterparties they are considered
to be the area which had the greatest effect on our
overall audit strategy and allocation of resources
in planning and completing our audit.

Our audit procedures included:

- understonding the processes in place
1o assess borrowers and to record loan
transactions. This included evaluating the
control environment in place ot LGFA.

- agreeing the 30 June 2021 loan balances to
external confirmations received from NZ Clear.

- assessing the borrowers’ compliance with
financial covenants.

We did not identify any material differences in

relation to the existence or impairment of loans.

Application of hedge accounting

Refer to Note % of the Financial Statements.

LGFA enters into derivatives (interest rote swaps)
to monage interest rate risk related to issuing fixed
rate bonds. Fair value hedge accounting is applied
where specific requirements are met around
documentation of the hedge relationship and the
relationship is demonstrated as being an effective
hedge. Hedge accounting is complex, particularly
in the area of whether the requirements (both initial
and ongoing) for its application are met. Should
the requirements for hedge accounting not be
met, LGFA could experience significant volatility

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income from
changes in the fair value of the derivatives.

Due to the size of the derivative positions and the
complexity of hedge accounting we consider this
to be a key audit maotter.

Ovur audit procedures included:

- reviewing LGFA's accounting policies reloted to
financial instruments.

- agreeing the terms of the derivatives to the
confirmation provided by the derivative
counterparty.

- using our treasury valuation specialists we
independently recalculated the fair value of
all of the derivatives recorded by LGFA.

- ensuring the hedge documentation
supporting the application of hedge
accounting was in accordance with NZ IFRS
9 and the disclosures made in the financial
staotements were appropriate.

- determining that management's hedge
effectiveness calculations were correctly
performed using appropriate source
information.

We did not identify any material differences in
relation to the application of hedge accounting.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the financial statements and the performance information

The Board of Directors is responsible on behalf of the company for preparing financial statements that
are fairly presented and that comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand
in accordance with NZ IFRS and IFRS. The Board of Directors is also responsible for preparing the

performance information for the company.
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KPMG

The Board of Directors is responsible for such internal control as it determines is necessary to enable it
to prepare financial statements and performance information that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements and the performance information, the Board of Directors is
responsible on behalf of the company for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going
concern. The Board of Directors is also responsible for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, unless the Board of Directors intends to
liguidate the company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors' responsibilities arise from the Local Government Act 2002 and the Financial
Markets Conduct Act 2013.

Respoensibilities of the auditor for the audit of the financial statements and the performance information

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements and the
performance information, as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit carried out in
accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards will always detect o maoterial misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts or disclosures, and can arise from
fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the decisions of readers, taken on the basis of these financial
statements and the performance information.

For the budget information reported in the financial statements and the performance information, our
procedures were limited to checking that the information agreed to the company's statement of intent.
We did not evaluate the security and controls over the electronic publication of the financial statements
and the performance information.

As part of an gudit in accordance with the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the oudit. Also:

We identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements and the
performance information, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and aoppropriate to provide

a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting @ material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

We obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the company's internal control.

We evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

We evaluate the appropriateness of the reported performance information within the company's
framework for reporting its performance.

We conclude on the appropriateness of the use of the going concern basis of accounting by the Board
of Directors and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that moy caost significont doubt on the company’s ability to continue os o going
concern. If we conclude that a materiol uncertainty exists we are required to drow attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial stotements and the performance information
or, if such disclosures are inodequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.

We evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements and the
performance information, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements and the
performance information represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001.
Other Information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included on pages 4 to 9,16 to 58 and 87 to 91, but does not include the financial statements
and the performance information, and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements and the performance information does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of audit opinion or assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements and the performance information, our
responsibility is to read the other information. In doing so, we consider whether the otherinformation is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements and the performance information or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on our work, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Independence

We are independent of the company in accordance with the independence requirements of the Auditor-
General's Auditing Standards, which incorporate the independence requirements of Professional and
Ethical Standard 1{Revised): Code of Ethics for Assurance Practitioners issued by the New Zealand
Auditing and Assurance Stondards Board.

Other than the audit, we have no relationship with, orinterests in, the company.

Brent Maonning

KPMG

On behalf of the Auditor-General
Wellington, New Zealand
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Other disclosures

He whakitanga ano

Donaticns

A donation of $3,000 was made to Kauri 2000 for

the yearended 30 June 2021.

Net Tangible Assets

Net tangible assets per $1,000 of listed bonds as at

30 June 2021is $6.86 (2020: $7.09).

Spread of Quoted Security holders

Holding Range

Holder
Count

Earnings per security

Earnings per $1,000 of bonds on issue as at
30 June 2021 is $0.87 (2020: $0.90).

Amount per security of final dividends

Not applicable

Holder
Count %

Holding Quantity

Holding
Quantity %

10,000 10 49399 426 45.61 $ 10,381,000 0.08
50,000 to 99999 187 20.02 $13,11,000 01
100,000 1o 499999 212 22.7 $42,439,000 0.31
500,000 to 999399 25 2.68 $17,352,000 013
1,000,000 to 9999999399999 84 899 $13,596,717,000 99.39
Total 934 100.0 $13,680,000,000 100.01
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GRI Index
Tapiritanga GRI

The GRI Standards are the world's most widely used sustainability reporting stondard.

This is the second year LGFA has prepared its annual report in compliance with the GRI Standards.

The following index is based on the GRI core option.

Disclosure title Reference/Disclosure

102-1. Name of the organisation Page 16
102-2. Activities, brands, products and services Pages 16-27
102-3. Location of headquarters Page 9
102-4. Location of operations Page 9
102-5. Ownership and legal form Pages 16,62

102-6. Markets served

Pages 4-6, 10-15, 16-27, New
Zealond

102-7. Scale of the organisation

Pages 4-6, 16-32, 60

102-8. Information on employees and other workers

Pages 49, 51, 81

102-9. Supply chain Pages 16-27
102-10. Significant changes to the organization and its supply chain None
102-11. Precautionary Principle or approach Page 40
102-12. External initiatives Page 44

102-13. Membership of Associations

Financial Service Providers
Register

102-14. Statement from senior decision-maker Pages 4-6

102-16. Values, principles, stoandards, and norms Pages 44-53
of behaviour

102-18. Overview of Governance Structure Page 17

102-40. List of stakeholder groups

Pages 4-7,10-15, 28-32, 53

102-41. Collective bargaining agreements None
102-42. Identifying and selecting staokeholders Page 34
102-43. Approach to stakeholder engogement Pages 34-38

LGFA Annual Report 2021 GRI Index
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102-44. Key topics and concerns raised Page 34
102-45. Entities included in the consolidated financial stotements Page 62
102-46. Defining report content and topic Boundaries Page 34
102-47. List of material topics Pages 34-38
102-48. Restatements of information None
102-49. Changes in reporting None

102-50. Reporting period

1July 2020 to 30 June 2021

102-51. Date of most recent report

2020 Annual Report

102-52. Reporting cycle

Annual

102-53. Contact point for questions regarding the report

lgfo@lgfa.org.nz

102-54. Claims of reporting in accordance with the GRI Standards

The report has been prepared
in accordance with the GRI
stondards : core option

102-55. GRI content index

Page 88

102-56. External assurance

None

Cost effective funding

Pages 4-6,10-15, 28

Culture, ethics and governonce

Poages 34-38, 44-53

Transparency and disclosure

Pages 4-6, 34-38, 44-53, 54-57

Environmental and social impact of lending

Pages 4-6, 34-38, 40-42

Health & sofety and wellbeing

Pages 11, 14-15, 34-38, 52

Collaboration and locdl engagement

Pages 4-6, 12, 34-36

Financial markets best praoctice and influence

Pages 4-6,10-15, 44-57

Diversity and inclusion Pages 4-6, 49

Capability and development Pages 4-6, 49

Carbon footprint Pages 34-38
Health and Safety and Wellbeing

£403-1 Occupational health and safety management system Page 52

403-9 Work-related injuries Page 14

403-10 Work-related ill health Page 14
Diversity and Inclusion

£405-1 Diversity of governance bodies and employees Page 49

£405-2 Ratio of basic salary and remuneration of women to men Page 51
Capability and Development

£404-2 Programs for upgrading employee skills and transition Page 4%

assistance programs
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B Construction of Renwick Reservoir.
S8 Marlborough District Council

Wharf Street uﬁgrcde in the central city has
transformed a one-way street to a pedestr
arecawith.gardens and al frescodifl -
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Directory

Rarangi tauwaea

Postal address

P.O. Box 5704
Lambton Quay
Wellington 6145

Office Hours

Monday through Friday,
09.00-17.00 hrs
Except Public Holidays

Wellington
Registered office

Level 8

City Chambers

142 Featherston Street
Wellington 6011

{entrance on Johnston Street)

Auckland

Level 5

Walker Wayland Centre
53 Fort Street

Auckland 1010

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Main Phone
+64 4 974 6530

General Enquiries
lgfa@lgfa.co.nz

Staff E-Mail Addresses

firstname.lastnome@lgfa.co.nz
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LGFA

New Zedland Local
Government Funding Agency

Te POtea Kdwanatanga a-rohe

Igfa.co.nz
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Council Report

Committee: Finance Committee Date: 05 October 2021
Author: Nicolas Wells Authoriser: Blair Bowcott
Position: Strategic Property Manager Position: General Manager Growth

Report Name: COVID-19 Council Rent Relief Eligibility and Gardens Arts Additional Grant

Report Status Open

Purpose - Take

1. To seek a recommendation from the Finance Committee that the Council approves rent relief
to Council tenants during the current Covid-19 lockdown period, subject to eligibility and
assessment criteria.

2. To seek a recommendation from the Finance Committee that the Council approves an
additional funding grant request for the Hamilton Gardens Arts Festival in February 2022.

Staff Recommendation - Tuutohu-aa-kaimahi (Recommendation to the Council)
3. That the Finance Committee:

a) receives the report; and

b) recommends that Council:

i. approves up to $122,000 of immediate funding for 100% rent relief for eligible
Council tenants in the Covid-19 Level 4 and Level 3 lockdown from 18 August to
7 September 2021;

ii. approves up to $61,000 of operating funding for 50% rent relief for eligible Council
tenants in the Covid-19 Level 2 lockdown from 7 to 29 September 2021 to be
calculated and applied retrospectively when Level 1 is confirmed by the Government;

iii. approves the following criteria for assessing eligibility for rent relief:

a. tenants need to occupy Council-owned premises and operate in the
hospitality, retail or community sectors;

b. provide proof of financial hardship and a reduction of more than 50% normal
revenue for the period;

c. provide proof of any Government subsidies applied for and received; and
d. provide proof of any relief funding received from other sources.

iv. approves a special funding grant of $40,000 to the Hamilton Gardens Arts Festival for
their February 2022 event.
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Executive Summary — Whakaraapopototanga matua

4.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Council has received seven applications for rent relief from hospitality and retail tenants.
Three enquiries have been received from community occupancy tenants and one from a large
commercial entity.

Staff recommend that, on application, rent relief be granted to all eligible tenants as follows:

i 100% rent relief for tenants in hospitality, retail, and community sectors for the Levels
4 and 3 period (three weeks) with immediate effect; and

ii. up to a maximum of 50% rent relief for tenants in hospitality, retail, and community
sectors for the Level 2 period to be assessed and applied retrospectively.

To be eligible for rent relief tenants will have to provide proof of hardship, and what subsidies
or relief they are receiving from the Government or other parties. Tenants must also not be
more than 90 days overdue on any payments due under their lease.

Council can provide rent relief in exceptional circumstances, in this case to help mitigate the
potential social and economic impacts of Covid-19 in Hamilton. The recommended rent relief is
intended to complement the Government’s response, and the efforts of other stakeholders.

In addition to the rent relief identified in this report, Council will continue to work with all
tenants, the community, and partners to identify if further support is required.

During the 2020 Covid-19 lockdown, Council provided 100% relief to all Council tenants for a
minimum three-month period.

This time, the proposed response is more tailored, reflecting experience gained from the 2020
lockdown.

The estimated cost of the rent relief proposed is $183K which will be funded from the current
2021/22 FY operating surplus.

The Council has the authority to approve granting of rent relief to its tenants — there is no
delegation of this authority to staff.

In addition, the 2022 Hamilton Gardens Arts Festival is facing severe financial shortfall of $85K
because of sponsor adjustments due to the current COVID-19 outbreak.

The event organisers, the Hamilton Gardens Summer Festival Foundation, is seeking additional
funding from Council for an additional $40K in funding.

The Council has the authority to approve this additional funding grant to Hamilton Gardens
Arts Festival for their 2022 event.

Staff consider the matters to be of medium significance and that the recommendations comply
with Council’s legal requirements.

Background — Koorero whaimaarama

Rent Relief

17.

18.

The Government imposed a national Level 4 lockdown in response to the Delta variant of
Covid-19 for two weeks from 18-31 August 2021. A level 3 lockdown followed (excluding
Auckland and Northland) for one week from 1-7 September 2021. Hamilton is currently in
Delta Level 2+ lockdown (Level 2) until further notice.

All businesses were fully closed under Level 4. Level 3 allowed businesses to provide partial
contactless “click and collect” services; however, those in Council facilities (such as the
Hamilton Gardens) remained fully closed. Level 2 permits businesses to operate under strict
criteria and with limits on customer numbers.
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19. The Level 2 restrictions impact differently across business sectors. Hospitality sector businesses
are more greatly impacted than other sectors — for example in a Level 2 environment
hospitality trading is constrained because of the maximum customer number requirements
and cannot recover lost business, whereas under the same Level 2 restrictions retail can
experience a surge of deferred business, and commercial and industrial sectors may be
completely unaffected.

20. It is unclear how long Level 2 restrictions will last. This report assumes a minimum period of
three weeks from 8 September to 29 September 2021 and consequently it is proposed any
relief granted in Level 2 is applied retrospectively once the extent of the period, and its effects,
are known.

21. Council has tenants operating their businesses from Council-owned premises across the
hospitality, retail, community, commercial and industrial sectors. The Council has received ten
applications for rent relief from tenants in the hospitality, retail and community sectors.

22. Council’s leasing portfolio is described by sector in paragraphs 19 — 22 below. The financial
impact of the proposed rent relief package is detailed in the table in paragraph 39 of the
financial section of this report.

23. Hospitality — 12 tenants in this sector (5 applications for relief).

i The combined monthly rental is $47,220.
ii. 100% rent relief for Levels 4 and 3 (three weeks) is $32,690.
iii.  50% rent relief for Level 2 (three weeks) is $16,345.
iv.  The stricter level 2 conditions limit revenue due to social distancing limits on patronage
and reduced numbers for events and functions.

24. Retail — 14 tenants in this sector (2 applications for relief).

i The combined monthly rental is $32,031.
ii. 100% rent relief for Levels 4 and 3 (three weeks) is $22,175.
iii. 50% rent relief for Level 2 (three weeks) is $11,087.

iv. In Level 2 many of these tenants will be able to operate as normal.
25. Community Occupancy — 102 lessees in this sector (3 applications for relief).

i The total monthly rental revenue is $12,051.
ii. 100% rent relief for Levels 4 and 3 (three weeks) is $9,038.
iii.  50% rent relief for Level 2 (three weeks) is $4,519.

iv. In 2020 approximately one third of community lessees applied for the original three-
month rent relief period totalling approximately $20,407.

V. An estimated amount of $13,557 has been included in this recommendation to provide
rent relief to community occupancy groups.
26. Commercial (includes Industrial) - 3 tenants in this sector.

i The combined monthly rental is $118,916.

ii. One tenant has enquired but is not considered eligible for relief (they operated under
all levels and recouped lost revenue quickly from Level 3 — additionally the Council
provided approximately $20,000 in operational funding).

iii. Financial hardship would need to be proved before any relief would be considered.

Hamilton Gardens Arts Festival — additional funding grant

27. Council is a long-standing major sponsor and supporter of the Hamilton Gardens Arts Festival
and currently has in place a three-year major event sponsorship fund agreement of $120K per
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28.

29.

year for the events in 2021, 2022 and 2023. This was approved by the Community Committee
in 2020.

The 2021 event included 103 performances over a seven day period, with over 7,000 people
attending ticketed evets and 31,000 enjoying access to free events.

Their 2021 festival was severely impacted by earlier COVID-19 lockdowns. In addition to the
above funding, they were also successful in receiving an additional $40K from Council’s COVID-
19 Community Response Fund Grant in July 2020.

Discussion - Matapaki

Hamilton City Council rent relief — 2020 response

30.

31.

During the 2020 Covid-19 lockdown, the Council approved a broad package of response
measures, including $525,000 of operating funding for rent relief:

i.  Council did not charge rent to community group, sports club, businesses operating
from council facilities (such as cafes) and other businesses if unable to pay rent, and
able to demonstrate hardship.

ii. Council granted immediate rent relief lasting for a three-month period, reviewed
thereafter.

iii.  Assumed monthly revenue of $350k with a 50% uptake.
The cost of providing rent relief to Council tenants during the 2020 Covid period was $291k.

Government assistance

32.

The Government is providing payments to eligible businesses and entities on application.

i.  Covid-19 Wage Subsidy Scheme - available to all businesses under Level 4 and 3. $600
per week for each full-time employee, and $359 per week for each part-time
employee.

ii.  Covid-19 Resurgence Support Payment — available to cover wages and fixed costs for
businesses directly affected when there is an increase to Level 2 or higher for a week
or more. To qualify the business must have experienced at least a 30% drop in
revenue or a 30% decline in capital raising ability over a 7-day period, resulting from
the increase in alert levels. Businesses can receive $1,500 per business plus $400 per
full time employee, up to 50 full time employees. The maximum payment is $21,500. A
sole trader can receive a payment up to $1,900.

iii.  Small Business Cashflow Loan Scheme — available to businesses who employ 50 or
fewer staff. They can borrow a maximum of $10,000 plus $1,800 per full time
employee. This is a one off 5-year loan. The business must have experienced a
minimum 30% decline in actual or predicted revenue for the period of a month,
compared to the same month last year. Applications are open until 23 December
2023.

Private and public sector response

33.

34.

Council staff have contacted large private sector landlords, subject matter experts and
neighbouring Local Authorities to gauge their approach in the current lockdown period.

Larger landlords accept that tenants with business requiring face-to-face contact, specifically
hospitality and retail, have experienced 100% loss of revenue and are providing rent relief
packages or rent deferrals. Tenants in other sectors are required to prove financial hardship,
but this is unlikely to apply to “big box” retail companies. Generally, relief packages only apply
to rent — operating costs still need to be paid by the tenants (who can obtain Government
assistance for these costs).
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35.

Local Authorities are taking a “wait and see” approach and intend to provide relief case-by-
case. There is an understanding that retail and hospitality tenants are particularly vulnerable to
hardship under lockdown, and that rent is a significant operating expense.

Eligibility and assessment criteria

36.

37.

38.

39.
40.

41.

42.

To be eligible for the proposed rent relief, tenants will need to occupy Council-owned premises
or land and operate in the hospitality, retail or community sectors.

Eligible tenants will have to provide proof of hardship, and what subsidies or relief they are
receiving from the Government or other parties.

Eligible tenants must not be more than 90 days overdue on any payments due under their
lease. Staff have reviewed all the debtor accounts for the tenants; none has exceeded the
90- day threshold (at 17 September 2021).

Rent relief is for the period of the current Covid-19 Levels 4, 3 and 2 lockdown.
Eligible tenants will be granted rent relief on application as follows:

i 100% rent relief for tenants in hospitality, retail and community sectors for the Levels
4 and 3 period (three weeks) with immediate effect.

ii. Up to a maximum of 50% rent relief for tenants in hospitality, retail and community
sectors for the Level 2period to be assessed and applied retrospectively.

Council tenants operating in other sectors are not eligible for rent relief as part of this package.
Applications for relief from those tenants will be considered on their merits.

Tenants operating in the Council’s H3 Venues, Tourism and Major Events business are excluded
from this rent relief package. Those tenants typically have complex commercial arrangements
with the Council that already provide for fluctuations in revenue. The General Manager
Venues, Tourism, and Major Events has the authority to regulate commercial arrangements
with affected tenants.

Options

Rent Relief

43.

44,

Staff have assessed that there are three reasonable and viable options for Member to
consider. This assessment reflects the level of significance (described below). The options are:

Option 1: Provide rent relief at the level and subject to the eligibility and assessment criteria
described in the staff recommendation 2 b) i -iii.

Option 2: Provide rent relief at a modified level or subject to different eligibility and
assessment criteria.

Option 3: Do not provide rent relief.

Staff recommend Option 1 for the reasons set out in this report.

Hamilton Gardens Arts Funding

45.

46.

The options for Members to consider are:
Option 1: That the request is recommended for approval by the Council.
Option 2: That the request is declined.

The 2021 COVID-19 lockdown periods have imposed additional stress and uncertainty for the
planning and viability of the Festival which has faced as reduction in core sponsorship. This
includes a loss of $70K from Creative NZ because of a change to financially support artists
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47.

48.

49.

directly and not performance events themselves. In addition, the timing for corporate
sponsorship has led to some reductions in sponsorship income normally achieved.

The event organisers, The Hamilton Summer Festival Foundation, have identified a potential
shortfall in total of between $120K - $150K to hold their 2022 event. They remain confident
this can be reduced to around $85K and are in they are in discussions with other parties in the
hopes of securing further funding. However, if they are unable to secure the further funding
needed, they will consider cancelling the 2022 event despite substantial costs to plan and
stage the event having already been incurred.

For the 2021 event, a similar funding shortfall prevailed, and Council awarded an additional
S40K from its Council’s COVID-19 Community Response Fund Grant. This proposal to Council
recommends a repeat of that additional support at the same level for the 2022 event.

Staff recommend Option 1 for the following reasons.

Financial Considerations — Whaiwhakaaro Puutea

Rent Relief

50.

The total cost for the proposed rent relief is $183,000 in the current 2020/21 financial year.
The cost to Council of rent relief is unfunded in the Long-Term Plan and will be funded from
the current operating surplus.

51. A summary of the cost of the proposed rent relief package is shown in the table below:
Sector Level Weeks 2021 FY Period Rate Relief
Hospitality 4and 3 3 18 August — 7 September 2021 100% S 32,690
Retail 4and 3 3 18 August — 7 September 2021 100% S 22,175
Community 4and 3 3 18 August — 7 September 2021 100% S 9,038
Commercial 4and 3 3 18 August — 7 September 2021 100 $ 57,519
Sub Total (across all sectors in Levels 4 and 3) $ 122,000
Hospitality 2 3 7 September — 29 September 2021 50% $16,345
Retail 2 3 7 September — 29 September 2021 50 S 11,087
Community 2 3 7 September — 29 September 2021 50 S 4,519
Commercial 2 3 7 September — 29 September 2021 50 S 28,759
Sub Total (across all sectors in Level 2) $ 61,000
TOTAL $ 183,000

Hamilton Gardens Arts Funding

52.
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The additional $40K grant funding for the Hamilton Gardens Arts Festival cannot be covered
from within existing major Event Sponsorship fund budget as this is fully expended. Therefore
the cost to Council of this relief is unfunded in the Long-Term Plan and will be funded from the
current operating surplus.
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Legal and Policy Considerations — Whaiwhakaaro-aa-ture

53. Staff confirm that the recommendations in this report comply with Council’s legal and policy
requirements.

Wellbeing Considerations — Whaiwhakaaro-aa-oranga tonutanga

54. The purpose of Local Government changed on the 14 May 2019 to include promotion of the
social, economic, environmental and cultural wellbeing of communities in the present and for
the future (‘the 4 wellbeings’).

55. The subject matter of this report has been evaluated in terms of the 4 wellbeings during the
process of developing this report.

56. The recommendations set out in this report are consistent with that purpose.
Social

57. The continued survival of business in the hospitality, retail and community sectors promotes
better outcomes for the community at large, helping to sustain a more vibrant Hamilton with
greater social interaction.

Economic

58. Businesses in the hospitality, retail and community sectors help attract business growth, grow
the city’s economy, and contribute to the overall economic prosperity of Hamilton.

Environmental

59. There are no environmental wellbeings for consideration.

Cultural

60. Businesses in the hospitality, retail and community sectors endorse and enhance the cultural
identity of the city.

Risks - Tuuraru

61. While the extent of the current Covid-19 outbreak is unknown, and the Government’s
response measures remain in place, the financial cost of this rent relief package is an estimate,
based on the assumptions stated. The financial cost will be higher if the Level 2 lockdown is
protracted, and there is greater uptake of rent relief than assumed.

62. To mitigate this, staff will monitor costs closely and report back to Council as soon as possible
with any significant variations to the budget estimates.

Significance & Engagement Policy — Kaupapa here whakahira/anganui

Significance

63. Staff have considered the key considerations under the Significance and Engagement Policy
and have assessed that the recommendations in this report have a medium level of
significance.

Engagement

64. Given the level of significance determined, and the urgent nature of the matters being
considered, no engagement is required.

Attachments
There are no attachments for this report.
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Resolution to Exclude the Public
Section 48, Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987

The following motion is submitted for consideration:

That the public be excluded from the following parts of the proceedings of this meeting, namely
consideration of the public excluded agenda.

The general subject of each matter to be considered while the public is excluded, the reason for passing
this resolution in relation to each matter, and the specific grounds under section 48(1) of the Local
Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 for the passing of this resolution follows.

General subject of each matterto Reasons  for  passing  this Ground(s) under section 48(1) for
be considered resolution in relation to each the passing of this resolution
matter

C1. Confirmation of the Finance ) Good reason to withhold
Committee Public Excluded ) information exists under
Minutes of 24 August 2021 ) Section 7 Local Government

) Official Information and

) Meetings Act 1987

Section 48(1)(a)

C2. Report on overdue debtors
as at 31 August 2021 and )
Debt write-offs 2021/22

C3. Microsoft 365 Digital
Workplaces Project New
Contract

C4. Information Services - Psoda
Contract Renewal

C5. COVID Contract Claims

This resolution is made in reliance on section 48(1)(a) of the Local Government Official Information and
Meetings Act 1987 and the particular interest or interests protected by Section 6 or Section 7 of that Act
which would be prejudiced by the holding of the whole or relevant part of the proceedings of the meeting

in public, as follows:

Item C1. to prevent the disclosure or use of official
information for improper gain or improper
advantage

Iltem C2. to protect the privacy of natural persons

to maintain the effective conduct of public
affairs through protecting persons from
improper pressure or harassment

Iltem C3. to prevent the disclosure or use of official
information for improper gain or improper
advantage

Iltem C4. to enable Council to carry out negotiations

Item C5. to enable Council to carry out commercial

activities without disadvantage
to enable Council to carry out negotiations

Finance Committee Agenda 5 October 2021- OPEN

Section 7 (2) (j)

Section 7 (2) (a)
Section 7 (2) (f) (ii)

Section 7 (2) (j)

Section 7 (2) (i)
Section 7 (2) (h)
Section 7 (2) (i)
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